Hardin County Water District No. 1

Serving Radcliff and Hardin County for Over 50 Years

1400 Rogersville Road Radcliff, KY. 40160

October 26, 2004

Ms. Beth A. O'Donnell Executive Director Kentucky Public Service Commission 211 Sower Boulevard Frankfort, KY 40602-0615

SUBJECT: Request for Certificate of Public Convenience & Necessity Initial Operations as Sewer Utility with Tariff RECEIVED

OCT 2 7 2004

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Dear Director O'Donnell;

On September 30, 2004, our District entered into a Utility Service Contract with the United States Government, specifically the Defense Energy Support Center (DESC) in Ft. Belvoir, Virginia. This contract culminated the bidding process for the Government to privatize the sewer operations at the United States Armor Center & Fort Knox. DESC issued the original Request for Proposals in September, 2001.

Case 2004-00422

Our District entered into a public-private partnership with Veolia Water - North America in March, 2002, and we together submitted our initial proposal on May 30, 2002, followed by two revised and final proposals and several negotiation exchanges and interviews. The Government received two other competitive proposals.

Being a regulated utility, the Government applies different rules and evaluation methods compared to a private, non-regulated bidder. The Government prefers a tariff rate, and the protection a Public Utility Commission offers. As part of our contract, the Government has required that we file our contract and tariff with rates and have approved within 60 days of October 1, 2004. Our anticipated operations takeover date is February 1, 2005.

We would appreciate your expedited review and approval of our contract and tariff before the sixty-day deadline expires. If you or your staff need clarification or additional information, please do not hesitate to call myself or our attorney, Mr. David Wilson (270-351-4404).

Sincerely,

fi Blue

Jim Bruce, General Manager

Encl; Original and 10 Copies of Filing

Cf; Mr. David Wilson, Attorney, HCWD1 Ms. Portia Petties, HCWD1 Chairperson Mr. Rob Nicholas, Veolia Water North America

TABIGE BIE CELLINGEN DE

Application

Rear Services

(The second s

Ĩ

Exhibit 1 (Proposed Tariff)

Exhibit 2 (Contract)

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF) HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT No. 1 FOR)) APPROVAL AND RECOGNITION) 1. AS A SEWER UTILITY AND TO APPROVE) Case No. 2004-00422) INITIAL OPERATIONS WITH TARIFF, AND) TO THE EXTENT NECESSARY, ISSUE A CERTIFICATE) 2.) OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY RECEIVED) INITIAL OWNERSHIP AND OPERATIONS) **OF A WASTEWATER UTILITY** OCT 27 2004 ****** PUBLIC SERVICE APPLICATION COMMISSION / *****

- 1. Applicant is a duly organized and operating water district organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (KRS 74 ET. SEQ.) and is engaged in the business of treating and selling potable water and maintaining a water distribution system. The applicant now operates and does business in an existing service area which includes the city limits of the City of Radcliff and encompasses the City of Vine Grove and a portion of Hardin and Meade counties immediately north of vine Grove. The entire service area is within the boundaries of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.
- 2. The address of the applicant is 1400 Rogersville Road, P.O. Box 489, Radcliff, Kentucky 40159-0489.
- 3. Certified copies of the order of the Hardin County Fiscal Court establishing the water district and all amendments were attached as "Exhibit 1" to the Petition previously of record with the Public Service Commission and identified as Case No. 2001-211 filed in July, 2001.
- 4. The Applicant request it be recognized as an approved sewer utility, recognized by and subject to the Rules and Regulations of the Public Service Commission. Furthermore, the Applicant requests that the Public Service Commission, in accordance with KRS 278.020(5) and 278.040 approve the Applicant's acquisition of the waste water and storm water collection, transmission and treatment facilities located on the Fort Knox Military Installation ("Government"). The terms, conditions and provisions of the acquisition have been reached by virtue of an arms length negotiation pursuant to terms of the attached Utility Service Contract ("Contract"), Exhibit 2.
- 5. The Applicant has agreed to provide sewer services in response to the Government's request for proposals to divest ownership, maintenance and operations of both sanitary and storm sewer facilities. Said request was issued in September, 2001 by the Defense Energy Support Center ("DESC"). After review of bids received, the Government and the Applicant negotiated and entered into the Contract, executed on September 30, 2004, awarding the bid to the District and providing for the District to take over ownership and operations of all included facilities and utility operations. The Contract sets forth the terms under which the Applicant will provide service, and the agreed rates which will be charged to the Government
- 6. The Government in its contract has stipulated that the Applicant must apply for and receive approval from the Commission for the Contract, and the Applicant's tariff and said approval <u>must be obtained within 60 days of</u> October 1, 2005, or the Government may terminate the Contract.
- 7. In accordance with 807 KAR 5:011, the Applicant requests that the Commission approve the attached proposed tariff rate identified as Exhibit 1 which is in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions negotiated between the Applicant and the Government set forth in the Contract (Exhibit 2). Specifically, the Applicant requests that the rates set forth in the attached tariff be effective upon the commencement of services, subject to refund in the event the Commission does not approve said tariff.
- 8. It is the Applicant's intention, subject to Commission approval, to provide storm water and waste water treatment services at the Fort Knox Military Installation. Additionally, the Applicant will, once the Government's current

agreement expires, provide waste water treatment services to the residents of the City of Muldraugh, Kentucky, a city of the fifth class located in Meade County, Kentucky. Furthermore, it is the intent of the Applicant to provide waste water treatment services, where appropriate, to residents within the approved boundaries of the Applicant in Hardin County, Kentucky.

- 9. No debt or other obligations are issued or assumed and, therefore, the Applicant submits that the Commission is not required to approve the transfer of the Government assets to the District.
- 10. There is no duplication of services resulting from the Applicant's acquisition of the Government's waste water and storm water treatment facilities. The Applicant is taking over existing facilities.
- 11. No funds will be expended for the construction of new waste water or storm water treatment facilities.
- 12. Initially, the Applicant will have one customer being the Government. As previously indicated, the District's customer will be the Government, Fort Knox, Kentucky which includes all offices, training facilities, residence of the installation and private and quasi private businesses located thereon. Additionally, by virtue of the Contract with Government, the Applicant will provide sewer services to the residents and businesses of the town of Muldraugh, Kentucky, a city of the fifth class located in Meade County, Kentucky. Meade County, Kentucky is not subject to regulation by a metropolitan sewer Applicant or any sanitation Applicant created pursuant to Chapter 220. If the Applicant is successful in adding additional sewer utility customers, the Applicant will petition the Commission for approval of the rates to be charged to said customers.
- 13. The Applicant requests acceptance of the rates set forth in the attached Exhibit 1 as of the date of transfer pending final jurisdictional status approval of the Applicant as a sewer utility and approval of the tariff filed as Exhibit 1.
- 14. To the extent required by applicable statutory and/or regulatory provisions, the Applicant requests the issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity.

WHERETO, Hardin County Water Applicant No. 1 request that the Public Service Commission of the Commonwealth of Kentucky consider this application and issue an order no later than <u>December 1, 2005</u> to 1). Approve and recognize the Applicant as a Sewer Utility and authorize initial operation including the approval of the new tariff and, 2). If required by the Public Service Commission, issue a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity allowing the Applicant to proceed with all terms of the Contract.

Dated at Radcliff, Kentucky, this <u>26</u> day of <u>Oct</u>, 2004.

HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT No. 1
By:

David T. Wilson II, Attorney at Law Attorney for Hardin County Water Applicant No. 1 Skeeters, Bennett & Wilson PLC 550 W. Lincoln Trail Blvd., P.O. Box 610 Radcliff, Ky 40160 (270) 351-4404 email: david . wilson@sbw-law.com

FOR Entire Area Served

P.S.C. Ky. No. ____1____

Tariff for

HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT No. 1

of

1400 Rogersville Road, Radcliff, Kentucky, 40160

Providing Sewer Service For

U. S. Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky and

Portions of Hardin and Meade Counties as included in Additional Territory Amended by the Judge Executive of Hardin County in 2000

> Excluding the incorporated city limits of the **City of Radcliff, Kentucky**

> > Filed with the

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION of KENTUCKY

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

ISSUED BY: ______, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky

FOR <u>Entire Area Served</u> P.S.C. Ky. No. <u>I</u> <u>Original Sheet</u> No. <u>1</u>

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

(N)

- 1. <u>Applicability:</u> These rules and policies apply to United States Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky ("Government") as the initial wastewater customer of the Hardin County Water District No. 1 ("District") and will be in affect until changed and approved by the District's Board of Commissioners and the Kentucky Public Service Commission ("PSC"). Other rules, policies and levels of service which may be required by the PSC and are available from the PSC offices (phone 1-800-772-4636 or TDD at 1-800-648-6056) or may be reviewed upon request at the District offices.
- 2. <u>Services Provided:</u> The District has agreed and is required to provide sewer services in response to the Government's request for proposals to divest ownership, maintenance and operations of both sanitary and storm sewer facilities. Said request was issued in September, 2001 by the Defense Energy Support Center ("DESC"). After review of bids received, the Government and the District negotiated and entered into a Utility Service Contract ("Contract"), executed on September 30, 2004, awarding the bid to the District and providing for the District to take over ownership and operations of all included facilities and utility operations. The Contract sets forth the terms under which the District will provide service, and the agreed rates which will be charged to the Government.
- 3. <u>Area Served:</u> The service area shall include the U. S. Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky, as described specifically in an Easement and Bill of Sale document provided by the Government to the District as part of the Contract and also may include portions of Hardin and Meade Counties as included in Additional Territory Amended by the Judge Executive of Hardin County in 2000, but excludes the present and future incorporated city limits of the City of Radcliff, Kentucky.
- 4. **Future Customers:** The District may in the future provide sewer utility services also to customers, entities or communities off post (which is provided for in the Contract) in Hardin and Meade Counties.

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

ISSUED BY: ______ Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky _, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

FOR _	Entire Area	Served
P.S.C.	Ky. No	1
<u>O</u> 1	iginal Sheet	No. <u>2</u>

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

(N)

5. **Rates and Charges:** All the terms, services provided, rates, responsibilities of District and process for future rate adjustments have been negotiated and agreed to in the Contract signed and executed on September 30, 2004. The agreed to rates for the Government, being the initial and only customer of the District, are as follows;

SERVICES REQUIRED / SUPPLIED	AGREED MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
Fixed monthly charge for the first 36 months of Contract for District to provide all <u>sanitary sewer services</u> as required in the Contract under Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications and Work Statement</i> .	\$213,659
Initial Monthly Capital Improvement Surcharge for the first 24 months to provide all <u>initial capital upgrades</u> as required and agreed to in the Contract	\$58,995
Initial Monthly Capital Improvement Surcharge for first 24 months to design and install an <u>Ultraviolet Disinfection System</u> as required and agreed to in the Contract	\$19,170
Fixed monthly charge for first 36 months of Contract for District to provide all <u>storm water sewer services</u> as required in the Contract under Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications and Work Statement</i> .	\$33,811
Monthly Credit for 1 month for Purchase Price of both sanitary and storm water utility systems	(\$2.00)

- 6. **Future Rate Adjustments:** All rates and charges shall remain in affect for the number of months shown above, beginning on October 1, 2004. As agreed in the Contract, future rate increases may only be allowed after the number of initial months has passed, and then the frequency and method for rate adjustments will be according to the terms agreed in the Contract.
- 7. <u>Applicable and Executed Contract:</u> The contract which has been agreed to and executed is attached as ATTACHMENT A and is made part of this tariff as if fully set forth herein.

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

 , Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

FOR <u>Entire Area Served</u> P.S.C. Ky. No. <u>1</u>

Original Sheet No. 3

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

ATTACHMENT A

(Follows this sheet)

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

i Blue

ISSUED BY: Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky ___, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

DEFENSE ENERGY SUPPORT CENTER UTILITIES PRIVATIZATION CONTRACT SP0600-04-C-8275



HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #1

UTILITY SERVICE CONTRACT for

WASTEWATER and STORM WATER UTILITY SYSTEM FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY

				1. THIS	CONTRAC	T IS A RATED ORD	ER	RATING		PAGE OF	PAGES	
AWARI	D/Co	ONTRA	АСТ	UND	ER DPAS (15 CFR 350)					1	
2. CONTRACT (Proc. Inst. Ident.)				3. EFFE	CTIVE DA	ТЕ	4. REOUT	SITION/PURCE	ASE REQUEST			52
SP0600-04-C-827	5			SEI	E BLO	CK 20C		0600-01-I		PROJECT NO.		
5. ISSUED BY			CODE	SPO	600	6. ADMINISTER				W91QF5		
Defense Energy Sup	port	Center	-			Contrac	t Admin	nistration		DS A-76 Div	. Chief	
8725 John J. Kingma Fort Belvoir, VA 22			te 3830			SFCA-S	R-KN					
Buyer: Benita Jackso						Bldg. 1	09 Six	th Avenue	e, Fort Kno	ox, KY 4102	1-5000)
Phone: (703)767-94	07		: Benita.Jackson@d	<u>la.mil</u>		Contrac	ting Of	ficer: Ste	even J. Frie	es		
7. NAME AND ADDRESS OF COM	TDAC	TOP 41-	1710.0			Phone:5	02-624			n.Fries@kno:	<u>x.army</u>	<u>.mil</u>
Hardin Count				ode)				8 DELIVE		-		
1400 Rogersv			strict #1						BORIGIN	OTHER	(See below	<i>y</i>
Radcliff, KY								9. DISCOU	NT FOR PROMP	T PAYMENT		
Duns: 130-4			CAGE:									
			011021					10. SUBMIT	INVOICES	ITEM		
CODE				FACI	LITY COD	E		ADDRESS S	HOWN IN: G2			
11. SHIP TO/MARK FOR			CODE			12. PAYMENT V	/ILL BE M			+	_	
						U.S. Arm	y Garris	on				
								SC (Tom]	Hutchins)			
						Bldg 111 Fort Knox		0121				
						POIT KIR	I . 1 4	0121				
13. AUTHORITY FOR USING O		FULL AN				14. ACCOUN	TING AN	D APPROP	RIATION D	ATA		
10 U.S.C. 2304(c)()		41 U.S.C. 253(c)	()		See Section	nG					
15A. 1TEM NO.			15B. SUPPLIES/	SERVIC	ES	15C. QUANTITY	15D. L	DAT 160	UNIT PRICE			
0001			Wastewater Collecti					136.	UNITPRICE	15	F. AMOL	JNT
				-								
0002			Storm Water Collect (See attached pages)		5.							:
					. TOT	AL AMOUNT	OF CO	NTRACT		▶ \$73,764	4 020 (20
				16	TABL	E OF CONTEN	ITS	*********************			1,720.0	//
· (*)	SEC.		DESCRIPTION		PAGE(S)	(*) SEC			UPTION		Γ	PAGE(S)
$\frac{r}{x}$	Contraction of the local division of the loc		TATION/CONTRACT	r		X I CONT	PACTC	PART II - LAUSES	CONTRAC	T CLAUSES		
X			ES OR SERVICES AN		3				FNTS FYU	IBITS AND OT		29
x	С	DESCR	PTION/SPECS./WOR	IK.	9	X J LIST C	OF ATTA	CHMENTS				36
<u>x</u>			GING AND MARKIN		21	I	PART IV	- REPRESE	NTATIONS	AND INSTRU	CTION	
X X		the state of the s	TION AND ACCEPT		22	K REPRI	ESENTA	TIONS, CE	RTIFICATIC	NS		-
X			RIES OR PERFORM		23 24				TS OF OFF			-
X			L CONTRACT	1011	26				FOR AWAR	OFFERORS		-
			NTRACTING OFFI	CER W	VILL CO						Ĺ	-
17. 🛛 CONTRACTOR	'S N		TED AGREEMENT			1		* ***		n this document.)		
required to sign this document	and i	return _2_	copies to issuing offi	ice.) Co	ontractor	Number				including a	he addis	
agrees to furnish and deliver al identified above and on any con	ntinual	tion sheets	for the consideration sta	uted here	in. The	made by you wh items listed abov	ich additio e and on a	ns or change	s are set forth	in full above is 1	herehv ac	cented on to the
rights and obligations of the part following documents: (a) this	tics to	this contra	act shall be subject to and	governe	d by the	consists of the to	lowing do	cuments: (a)	the Governme	nt's solicitation ar	mates the nd your o	ffer, and (b) this
provisions, representations, c	ertifica	tions, an	d specifications, as a	re attac	(c) such thed or	award/contract. }	to further o	contractual do	cument is nece	ssary.		
incorporated by reference herein												
19A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGN	NER (Type or pri	nt)			20A. NAME OF CO						
JAMES BRUCE General Manager								CKSON				
19B. NAME OF CONTRACTOR				19C. D	ATE	Contrac 20B. UNITED STA				C. DATE SIGNE		
/ /		P.		SIGNE	D	<u></u>		Λ		A DATE SIGNE	,	
Cand	\mathcal{O}^{\prime}	31	lan		5EP	1Son ita	$\cap I$	look		an ha	1	2001
(Signature of pe	erson a	uthorized to	o sign)	20	04	Signatu	re of Comin	aquing Officer)	ion		ч. с	xin
1/				b	·····	(, y court	V	l	МВ Аррга	oval 2700-00	42
(NSN 7540-01-152- (REV, 4-85)	8069					26-107		•	ST	ANDARD FOR	LM 26	
PREVIOUS EDITION	on ur	USABLE				Computer Generat	ed		Pre	cribed by GSA		
										R (48 CFR) 53.214((a)	

Preamble

Hardin County Water District No. 1 (Hardin County's) original proposal dated May 30, 2002 in response to the Request for Proposal (RFP) SP0600-01-R-0121 for privatization of the Fort Knox wastewater and storm water utility systems and proposal revisions dated March 25, 2003, December 12, 2003, March 12, 2004, and August 30, 2004 along with all applicable price schedules and technical attachments is hereby accepted. Correspondence dated December 5, 2003, January 21, 2004, August 23, 2004, and August 24, 2004 is incorporated by reference into this contract award.

Hardin County shall assume ownership, operation and maintenance of the Wastewater and Storm Water Systems at Fort Knox, Kentucky. Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrades, and improvements to the utility system. These services shall be provided in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained explicitly in this contract or incorporated by reference, to include the applicable Army Easement for Fort Knox. The Easement will be processed through the conjunction of the Corps of Engineers and Fort Knox Real Estate Office.

As a utility regulated y by the Commonwealth of Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC), Hardin County submitted a tariff rate for the wastewater and storm water utility systems. The price set forth herein in Section B will be fixed for the 1st three years of the contract. Hardin County will not seek an increase in the tariff rate during that period. Any subsequent increase must be approved by the PSC.

Because the prices for services provided under this contract are based on a regulated tariff, the solicitation provisions implementing price redetermination under FAR 52.216-5 shall not apply.

After the contract between the government and the City of Muldraugh has expired, Hardin County will negotiate a new agreement with the Muldraugh. The cost will be based on the percentage of flow received from Muldraugh versus the government. The charge to the government after the first year will be reduced by the amount that is charged to Muldraugh.

This contract is contingent on approval by the PSC. Hardin County will submit the signed contract, including the proposed tariff rate, to the PSC for approval. The PSC will then have 30 days to either accept or reject the contract as submitted. If PSC approval is not obtained within 60 days, the contract may be terminated without cost to either party. In such event, neither party will have any financial or performance obligation to the other.

The Service Contract Act does not apply to this contract in accordance with the statutory exemption for public utilities.

Table of Contents

CONTRACT	1
PREAMBLE	IV
SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/COSTS	
 B.1 CLAUSES AND PROVISIONS B.2 GENERAL B.3 SYSTEMS PRIVATIZED B.4 ALTERNATE PRICE PROPOSAL B.4.1 Alternate Price Proposal B.4.2 Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals B.4.2.1 Sub-CLIN AA: Applicable Tariff(s) 	4 4 4 4 6
B.4.2.2 Sub-CLIN AB: Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price	6
DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/WORK STATEMENT	
C.1 PRECEDENCE C.2 SCOPE AND PURPOSE C.2 General C.2.2 Statutory Directive C.2.3 Utility Service Providers C.2.4 Utility Systems	7 7 7 7 7
C.2.5 Current Service Arrangement C.3 REQUIREMENT C.3.1 Utility Service Requirement C.3.2 Performance Standards C.3.3 Metering	8 8 8 8 8
C.3.3.1 Future Meters C.3.4 Energy and Water Efficiency and Conservation C.3.5 Energy/Water Commodity Supply C.4 SERVICE ABEA	8 9 9 9
C.4.1 Temporary Connections C.4.2 Use of Distribution Systems to Serve Areas Outside the Installation Service Area C.4.3 Joint Use C.4.3.1 Government Use: C.4.3.2 Commercial Use:	<i>10</i> <i>10</i> 10 10
C.5 UTILITY SYSTEM OWNERSHIP, EMPLOYEES, AND SECURITY C.5.1 Utility System Ownership C.5.1.1 Transfer of Title C.5.1.2 Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment C.5.1.3 Placement of Utility System C.5.1.4 Contractor Facilities C.5.1.5 Record Drawings C.5.1.6 Disposition of Removed or Salvaged Materials	10 10 10 10 11 11
C.5.2 Employees C.5.2.1 Personnel Appearance and Identification C.5.2.2 Employee Certification C.5.2.3 National Agency Check C.5.2.4 Controlled Access Areas C.5.2.5 Listing of Employees and Subcontractors C.5.3 Contractor Vehicles	11 11 12 12 12 12 12
C.5.4 Contractor Radios C.6 ACCESS TO THE UTILITY SYSTEM	12

C.7 RESPONSE TO SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS AND CONTINGENCIES	
C.8 REPAIR RESPONSE NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES	13
C.9 COORDINATION OF WORK	13
C.9.1 Routine Work	13
C.9.2 Service Requests	13
C.9.3 Connections and Disconnections	10
C.9.4 Scheduled Utility Service Interruptions	13
C.9.5 Excavation Permits	13
C.9.6 Underground Utility Location	13
C.9.7 Coordination Meetings	14
C.9.8 Exercises and Crisis Situations Requiring Utility Support	14
C.10.1 Permit Compliance	14
C.10.2 Work in Environmentally Sensitive Areas	14
C.10.3 Environmental Impact Assessments	14
C.11 UPGRADES AND RENEWALS AND REPLACEMENTS	
C.11.1 General	15
C.11.2 Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement	15
C.11.2.1 Initial Capital Upgrades	15
C.11.2.2 Future Capital Upgrades	15
C.11.2.3 Renewals and Replacements	15
C.11.2.4 Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan	
C.11.2.5 Capital Upgrades	16
C.11.2.6 Renewals and Replacements	16
C.11.2.7 Requirements and Standards	16
C.11.2.8 Connections and Disconnections	
C.12 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE	
C.12.1 Quality Management Plan	16
C.13 OPERATIONAL TRANSITION PLAN	16
C.13.1 Performance Start Date	17
C.13.2 Connection Requirements	
C.13.3 New Meter Requirements	17
C.13.4 Permits and Procedures	17
C.13.5 Inventory and Transfer Requirements	17
C.13.5.1 Inventory and Transfer of Facilities and Fixed Equipment	17
C.13.5.2 Inventory and Transfer of Non-fixed Equipment, Spare Parts, and Personal Prop	
C.13.5.3 Transfer of Manuals and Records	
C.13.5.4 Joint Inventory	
C.13.6 Initial Meter Readings	17
PACKAGING AND MARKING	18
INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	19
DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE	20
F.1 CONTRACT TERM	20
F.2 COMMENCEMENT OF SERVICE	
F.3 EXTENSION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE PERIOD	
F.4 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.	
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA	
G.1 DFARS 252.201-7000: CONTRACTING OFFICER'S REPRESENTATIVE (DEC 1991)	21
G.2 SUBMISSION AND PAYMENT OF INVOICES	
G.3 SERVICE CHARGE ADJUSTMENT	
G.3.1 Schedule B-2	22

5
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
1
ļ
ļ
1
1
1
,
1
~
5 5
6
5
5
9
0
0
0
0
1
2

•

SECTION B Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs

B.1 Clauses and Provisions

Clauses and provisions from the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) and its supplements are incorporated in this document by reference and in full text. Those incorporated by reference have the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

B.2 General

Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrades, and improvements to these utility systems. These services shall be provided in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained in this solicitation or incorporated by reference.

B.3 Systems Privatized

The contract line item numbers (CLINs), shown in schedule A, represent the utility systems included in this contract for privatization:

SCHEDULE A

Utility System Contract Line Item Numbers

CLIN Installation		Utility System
0001	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Wastewater Collection System
0002	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Storm Water Collection System

B.4 Alternate Price Proposal

B.4.1 Alternate Price Proposal

The Offeror shall complete a schedule B-2 for each utility system included in the proposal if proposing established or special tariff(s), schedule(s) and rate(s).

SCHEDULE B-2

Utility Service Payment by the Government

CLIN	Utility System	
0001	Waste Water Utility System	
Sub- CLINS	SUPPLIES/SERVICES	TARIFF/MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
AA *	Fixed Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff</i>) The Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement.</i>	\$213,659.00**
AB	Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price). 1.00 Monthly Credit for 1 month.	(\$1.00)
AC	Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge \$58,995.00 for 24 months	\$58,995.00
AD	Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge (UV Disinfection) \$19,170.00 for 24 months	\$19,170.00

Fort Knox, Kentucky

Fort Knox, Kentucky

CLIN	Utility System	
0002	Storm Water Utility System	
Sub- CLINS	SUPPLIES/SERVICES	TARIFF/MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
AA *	Fixed Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff)</i> The Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement.</i> ^{a,}	\$33,811.00**
AB	Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price). 1.00 Monthly Credit for 1 month.	(\$1.00)

** The monthly service charge of \$33,811 shall be in effect for a period not less than 36 months.

Table IV.2-5. Initial Capital Upgrade Costs Item	Estimated Cost
Permit Transfer (from Army to District)	\$30,000
RADIO TELEMETRY AT 8 LIFT STATIONS AND SCADA AT PLANT	\$197,126
GIS Mapping of Sewer and Storm Water System	\$166,000
SSES and I/I Study, including Flow Monitoring, Smoke Testing, Line Cleaning and TV Inspection	\$300,000
Design of Improvements and Inspection	\$150,000
Sewer Line Repairs (estimated at 35 dig-down repairs and some line replacement)	\$200,000
236 Manhole Repairs (Basins 2 and 8) 100 Manhole Repairs in Other Basins	\$244,400
Facilities Plan for State	\$48,350
NEPA Compliance	\$35,000
Change from Gas Chlorine to Bleach at Plant	\$20,00
Miscellaneous Lift Station Repairs and Equipment	\$25,00
TOTAL	\$1,415,87

B.4.2 Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals

B.4.2.1 Sub-CLIN AA: Applicable Tariff(s)

The offeror shall propose a tariff rate or rates no less favorable than that offered to similarly situated utility customers. The offeror shall specify each proposed tariff and the buildings to which it applies (see L.7, *Proposal Preparation Instructions - Volume IV: Price Proposal*).

The total monthly price due to Hardin County will be the sum of the amount due under the Applicable Tariff(s), the recoverable portion of the purchase price as defined in paragraph H.9.3, *Recoverable Portion of the Purchase Price*, and listed in the price proposal, and capital upgrades, as defined in paragraph H.9.1, *Initial Capital Upgrades*, and listed in the price proposal.

B.4.2.2 Sub-CLIN AB: Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price

Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price: The monthly credit is the monthly portion of the purchase price which will be credited to the Government over the number of months proposed by the offeror. The purchase price is the product of the monthly credit multiplied by the number of months the Government will receive the credit. (Sub-CLIN AB). The credit will be applied to the fixed monthly charge, as defined in Sub-CLIN AA.

SECTION C Description/Specifications/Work Statement

C.1 Precedence

FAR clause 52.215-8, Order of Precedence - Uniform Contract Format. Any inconsistency in this solicitation or contract shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (a) The Schedule (excluding the specifications). (b) Representations and other instructions. (c) Contract clauses. (d) Other documents, exhibits, and attachments. (e) The specifications.

C.2 Scope and Purpose

C.2 General

Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services required for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrade, and improvement of these utility systems. Hardin County will provide these services in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained in this solicitation or incorporated by reference. This contract does not include the purchase of commodities.

C.2.2 Statutory Directive

The conveyance of the utility systems are authorized by and conducted under 10 USC § 2688. The conveyance of the utility systems is not an acquisition and therefore is not subject to the FAR and its supplements. The acquisition of utility services is an acquisition and will be governed by the FAR and its supplements.

C.2.3 Utility Service Providers

Hardin County shall assume ownership of Government utility system(s) identified herein and provide related utility service(s). This includes, but is not limited to, the obligation to ensure adequate and dependable utility service(s) to all facilities and equipment served.

Services provided shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as they may be amended from time to time, including those requirements relating to health, safety and the environment. Hardin County shall modify its service practice as necessary to accomplish such compliance.

If a change in the service requirement necessitated by such compliance constitutes reasonable cause for an adjustment to the service charge, the charge will be adjusted in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt 1, Changes - Fixed Price or FAR 52.241-7 Changes in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services as applicable.

C.2.4 Utility Systems

The following attachments are included in Section J and are herein referred to as utility-specific attachments. Each utility-specific attachment provides details specific to each Installation utility system and requirement. Upon contract award(s), the appropriate attachments will be incorporated into the contract and the others will be removed.

C.2.5 Current Service Arrangement

The utility-specific attachments (Section J) describe the current service arrangement for each utility service and define specific requirements.

C.3 Requirement

C.3.1 Utility Service Requirement

Hardin County shall provide reliable and dependable utility service to each Government or tenant connection within the service area (see C.4, *Service Area*) 24 hours each and every day. Hardin County shall be responsible for providing capital investments and all other resources required to own, maintain, and operate its utility system(s) in a safe and reliable condition and to meet all the requirements listed herein.

This contract does not include the purchase of commodities.

Hardin County shall obtain and maintain current any and all licenses, permits, or certifications necessary to own, maintain, and operate its utility system(s). Access to its utility systems will be as specified in paragraph C.6, Access to the Utility System.

C.3.2 Performance Standards

Unless otherwise provided for in this contract, Hardin County shall perform its required service(s) in accordance with industry-standard construction, operations, maintenance, management, environmental, safety and other relevant standards, that apply to similarly situated utility service customers whose service characteristics are comparable to the service characteristics of the Installation.

Hardin County shall comply with all applicable Federal, state and local laws/regulations and installation specific requirements, as defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J), in performing its duties under the contract(s). Hardin County shall identify and incorporate standards and specifications not established by this statement of work in the Operations and Maintenance Plan, Section C.12, *Operations and Maintenance*. Hardin County shall modify its service practices as applicable when applicable Federal, state, or local laws/regulations are changed or new ones are enacted.

C.3.3 Metering

Hardin County shall be responsible for reading, maintaining, and calibrating all meters on the utility system(s), including those additional meters identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42) to be installed by Hardin County. Those additional meters shall be installed within the transition period defined in paragraph C.13, *Operational Transition Plan*. The Government will identify in Section J42 any meters on the systems that Hardin County will not be required to read, maintain and calibrate.

All costs for providing, installing, reading, reporting, and maintaining the meters shall be the responsibility of Hardin County. Calibration of meters shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations and any applicable regulations that govern meter calibration.

Readings from each meter will be provided to the Government on a monthly basis. Meter reading reports shall be submitted to the recipient identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42).

C.3.3.1 Future Meters

Hardin County shall provide, install, read, maintain, and calibrate meters requested by the Government for any purpose throughout the contract period. Installation of and responsibility for future meters (not on the systems at the time of conveyance or identified for installation as part of the service contract) may constitute reasonable cause for a service charge adjustment. Any service charge adjustment as a result of these actions will be in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price*.

C.3.4 Energy and Water Efficiency and Conservation

Hardin County shall strive to provide energy- and water-efficient systems. The Government has an established program for conducting and implementing energy- and water-saving and conservation projects to reduce utility usage and costs. Some of these have resulted in the Government entering into long-term financing arrangements with non-government entities. The utility-specific attachments (Section J42) identify any such energy- and water-savings projects that are currently in place for the specific utility system.

Hardin County agrees to use its best efforts to ensure that Hardin County's actions will not negatively impact these projects. Additionally, the Government reserves the right to enter into any future energyand water-savings projects with the goal of reducing Government costs. Hardin County will facilitate the implementation of any such future energy- and water-savings projects.

Government will provide natural gas, electricity and water required to operate wastewater system and Contractor is encouraged to propose projects to the Government that will increase the overall efficiency of the utility system. These three commodities (natural gas, electricity, water) will be metered to determine usage and any savings realized by efficiency measures implemented by Hardin County. Efficiency projects shall be proposed to the Government in accordance with paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*. The Government may consider cost-savings sharing and incentives either through service charge adjustments or lump-sum payments. Service charge adjustments resulting from future efficiency projects will be handled in accordance with paragraph G.3, *Service Charge Adjustment*.

C.3.5 Energy/Water Commodity Supply

Electric, natural gas, and water commodity supply is not included in this contract. The Government retains the right to procure or supply electricity, and/or natural gas, and/or water that will be transported on the system(s) covered by this contract from any lawful source. The successful Contractor(s) may or may not be the supplier(s) of the commodity procured by the Government. The Government or Government Commodity Contractor will retain ownership of all commodities transported and distributed through Hardin County-owned systems. Hardin County shall, however, own wastewater from the point of demarcation, defined in the Easement, until final discharge.

C.4 Service Area

The service area is defined as all areas within the Government installation boundaries and any other facilities and property boundaries under the control of the Installation as defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). Within the service area and upon the Government's request, Hardin County shall provide utility service to all existing and new customers and service connections. At any time, the Administrative Contracting Officer may designate any location within the service area where utility service under this contract shall commence or be discontinued, subject to the requirements of the Easement. Any service charge adjustment as a result of these actions will be in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price* or FAR 52.241-7 *Changes in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services* whichever may be applicable.

C.4.1 Temporary Connections

Hardin County shall extend temporary service to the Government or other contractors performing construction projects or other work on the Installation when requested by the Administrative Contracting Officer.

The Administrative Contracting Officer will identify the party responsible for reimbursing Hardin County for temporary connections or utility usage. The Administrative Contracting Officer shall be provided the following information regarding any temporary service connections:

Name of Contractor/customer

Expected duration of the connection

Description of the connection, including route and type of material

C.4.2 Use of Distribution Systems to Serve Areas Outside the Installation Service Area

Hardin County may use the utility infrastructure on the Installation to serve or benefit areas or customers outside the service area(s) only with concurrence of the Government. Compensation to the Government will be negotiated.

C.4.3 Joint Use

C.4.3.1 Government Use:

The Government may have property and equipment installed on or attached to poles, conduits, pipes, ductbanks, towers, buildings and other portions of the utility systems to be transferred. The Government reserves the right to continue to use the property to be transferred for this purpose, to enter on the transferred property to maintain, repair, operate, upgrade and replace its property and equipment, and to install new property and equipment, all at no cost to itself.

C.4.3.2 Commercial Use:

Hardin County shall enter into joint use agreements with the installation's telephone company, cable television company, and other service providers in accordance with applicable law and regulation. Hardin County shall permit joint use by other commercial service providers at no cost until the Government 's current agreements with such providers expire.

C.5 Utility System Ownership, Employees, and Security

C.5.1 Utility System Ownership

C.5.1.1 Transfer of Title

A general description of the utility system(s) assets to be transferred is included in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). Prior to the transfer of title, such facilities shall continue to be owned by the Government. Transfer of title shall be accomplished by Easement. The Easement shall provide the complete list of all assets to be sold. Contractor is responsible for maintenance of all facilities/equipment/assets transferred under this easement.

An example of the Easement is provided in Section J (Attachment J42). The parties shall prepare and execute such additional documents as may be necessary to implement the ownership transfer.

C.5.1.2 Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment

Unless listed in the final Easement, government-owned tools, vehicles, and equipment used for system operations and maintenance that are not a physical part of the utility systems will remain the property of the Government.

C.5.1.3 Placement of Utility System

Hardin County shall comply with requests from the Installation regarding the placement of new or renewal utility systems either overhead or underground. Requests for placement, which differ from normal utility practice, may be compensable under FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price*.

C.5.1.4 Contractor Facilities

Unless otherwise provided for in this contract, Hardin County will be permitted to locate offices, maintenance shops, and materials storage/staging areas on post, on property provided by the Government. Hardin County, at its expense, shall acquire, furnish, install, and operate and maintain all these facilities if required to provide the utility service(s) hereunder. Hardin County shall have title to all facilities it builds and equipment it installs under this contract, except as otherwise specifically provided.

Hardin County will be responsible for acquiring all utilities, janitorial services, building maintenance, and ground maintenance for these facilities. The Government may, if its capabilities permit, consent to provide certain of these services to Hardin County on a reimbursable basis.

New construction or remodeling existing facilities shall comply with the Fort Knox's architectural standards and be fully coordinated with the installation prior to beginning construction.

C.5.1.5 Record Drawings

Hardin County shall maintain record drawings for all existing and new facilities installed by Hardin County within the service area. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may use and copy such drawings. Hardin County shall provide available drawings to the Government in the form of CAD-CAM disks using the latest release software compatible with Government systems at no cost to the Government. Contractor shall provide updates concerning installation of new facilities to Government Geographical Information System (GIS) within ninety (90) days after installation.

C.5.1.6 Disposition of Removed or Salvaged Materials

The removal and disposition of facilities and materials that are not used and useful for the purpose of providing utility service(s) shall be the responsibility of Hardin County. Hardin County shall notify the Administrative Contracting Officer when removing hazardous substances in accordance with paragraph H.7, *Hazardous Substances*.

C.5.2 Employees

Hardin County shall not employ any person for work on this contract if such person is identified to Hardin County as a potential threat to the health, safety, security, general well being, or operational mission of the Installation or population.

Where reading, understanding and discussing environmental, health and safety warnings are an integral part of a contract employee's duties, that employee shall be able to understand, read, write, and speak the English language. All employees that interface with customers shall be able to speak and understand the English language.

C.5.2.1 Personnel Appearance and Identification

Hardin County's personnel shall present a neat appearance and be readily recognized as Contractor employees.

If required by the Installation, Hardin County shall ensure each employee obtains from Security Forces an identification card that shall include at a minimum the employee's name, photograph, and Contractor's name. Each Contractor employee shall follow established Installation procedures for displaying their identification card while within the boundaries of the Installation.

C.5.2.2 Employee Certification

Hardin County shall ensure that employees meet all applicable federal, state, and local certification, licensing, and health and safety requirements to perform all assigned tasks and functions as defined in this contract.

C.5.2.3 National Agency Check

Hardin County shall provide sufficient information to obtain complete and favorable National Agency Check (NAC) investigations for its employees for unescorted entrance into restricted areas on base. Normal access to the installation shall be in accordance with paragraph C.6, *Access to the Utility System*. Hardin County shall justify to the Installation Security Forces requests for NAC on Contractor employees requiring unescorted entry into restricted areas. Final approval for unescorted entry into restricted areas rests with the Installation Commander.

C.5.2.4 Controlled Access Areas

Hardin County shall apply for personnel security clearances required for performance after the contract is awarded. Personnel requiring access to secured areas or restricted areas under the control of the Installation shall comply with applicable regulations.

C.5.2.5 Listing of Employees and Subcontractors

Hardin County shall maintain a current list of employees, subcontractors, and employees of subcontractors. The list will include employee names, social security numbers, and security clearance levels. This list shall be validated by Hardin County's security manage and provided to the Administrative Contracting Officer and Contracting Officer's Representative at the contract start date. Hardin County shall provide updated lists upon change of employees and subcontractors.

C.5.3 Contractor Vehicles

All of Hardin County's vehicles shall be readily identifiable. Identification shall include displaying Hardin County's name in a clear and unobstructed location on the vehicle. Hardin County may register vehicles with Installation Provost Marshall Office, building 204, and obtain post vehicle stickers good for one year. The stickers will be renewable at the end of each year.

C.5.4 Contractor Radios

Prior to operating two-way, portable, or landmobile devices on the installation, Hardin County shall obtain approval of the Installation Communication Group by requesting an available clear frequency. Hardin County shall follow all installation procedures for operating radios on the installation IAW DFARS 252.235-7003, *Frequency Authorization*. Hardin County shall furnish their own radio equipment.

C.6 Access to the Utility System

Access to the installation and the utility systems shall be in accordance with the Easement, Section J 42.

C.7 Response to Service Interruptions and Contingencies

Hardin County shall employ sound utility practices to ensure continuous, dependable, and reliable utility service is provided to the Installation 24 hours each day and to minimize the scope and length of any service disruption. Hardin County shall ensure it is able to receive the Installation's Service Requests 24 hours a day, every day. Once a request is received, Hardin County shall respond in accordance with their Service Interruption/Contingency Plan. Hardin County shall establish and adhere to standards for responding to service requests and service interruptions. The standards shall distinguish between different categories (routine, emergency) of service requests and service interruptions and, identify response times for each category. In the event that installation specific minimum standards and/or response times are established in Section J, Hardin County shall meet or exceed said standards. Hardin County shall incorporate the Standards and operational plans for meeting the standards in a Service Interruption/Contingency Plan. The Service Interruption/Contingency Plan will be incorporated in the contract at time of award.

In the event the Installation has an Emergency Restoration Plan that prioritizes service restoration, Hardin County shall adhere to the priority list established by the plan.

C.8 Repair Response Notification Procedures

Hardin County shall provide to the Government clearly defined procedures by which installation personnel can submit service requests to Hardin County. The Government will be responsible for disseminating such procedures within the Installation. Hardin County shall provide to the Administrative Contracting Officer the name of the local Project Manager or other responsible person and an alternate with after-hours contacts' telephone numbers.

C.9 Coordination of Work

C.9.1 Routine Work

Routine work, such as the scheduled repair, replacement, or removal of system components that require service interruption, shall be coordinated with the Contracting Officer's Representative at least 2 weeks prior to commencing work unless mutually agreed to otherwise to ensure minimal impact to the mission and operations. Hardin County and Government shall each provide a single point of contact for coordination.

C.9.2 Service Requests

Hardin County shall record all service request calls, documenting the time of the call, time of service response, cause of request, and action taken (including time and date completed). Such records shall be retained for 2 years and may be reviewed by the Administrative Contracting Officer upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice.

If the request affects building operations, Hardin County shall coordinate all work with the person responsible for the building or facility. The Government will provide Hardin County with a list of Government representatives and the buildings or facilities for which they are responsible.

Emergency service requests submitted to Hardin County, or emergencies identified by Hardin County, shall be reported immediately to the Contracting Officer's Representative.

C.9.3 Connections and Disconnections

Hardin County shall coordinate any connections or disconnections with the Contracting Officer's Representative and notify Kentucky Division of Water prior to installation of new connections.

C.9.4 Scheduled Utility Service Interruptions

The Installation reserves the right to require Hardin County to postpone work requiring service interruption if such interruption might adversely affect the Installation's missions and operations. If an interruption is postponed, the parties shall coordinate a mutually acceptable alternate time for the scheduled service interruption.

C.9.5 Excavation Permits

Hardin County shall adhere to the Installation's excavation permit process.

C.9.6 Underground Utility Location

At the request of the Installation, Hardin County shall be responsible for locating underground utility system components in support of the Installation's excavation permit process. Requests for line location shall be responded to within three working days of the request and shall be at no additional cost to the Government.

C.9.7 Coordination Meetings

Hardin County shall be available for meetings as required by the Administrative Contracting Officer.

C.9.8 Exercises and Crisis Situations Requiring Utility Support

Hardin County shall respond to installation emergency and crisis situations (i.e., hostage situations, bomb threats, etc.) and related exercises that require utility support. Hardin County shall respond to these events as soon as possible after notification. Hardin County shall advise and assist the on-scene commander until the event is terminated.

C.10 Environmental Compliance

Hardin County shall comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. Hardin County shall review all applicable Installation procedures related to environmental protection including, but not limited to, pollution prevention, and spill responses.

C.10.1 Permit Compliance

Once ownership of the utility systems is transferred, Hardin County shall be the party of record for all environmental permits related to operating the systems. Thereafter, Hardin County shall be responsible for obtaining any new or revised permits needed to operate and maintain the utility systems. The Government shall remain the party of record and retain responsibility for any applicable permits prior to the transfer of ownership, as defined by paragraph C.13, *Operational Transition Plan*, and for those permits that are not transferable.

C.10.2 Work in Environmentally Sensitive Areas

Hardin County shall comply with the Installation procedures and standards for work in and around environmentally sensitive or contaminated property. Prior to accessing any environmentally sensitive areas Hardin County shall coordinate with the Contracting Officer's Representative and cognizant environmental representative for the site. The Government will provide Hardin County with updated lists showing environmentally sensitive sites and points of contact. In compliance with the Endangered Species Act, Section 7 Consultation, trees 6 inches and above at breast height can be cut only during the period of October 15 – March 31. Prior to removal of any trees Fish and Wildlife Section and Forestry Section, DBOS must be notified. Prior to any digging activities, the Post Archaeologist must be notified. Digging may require consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office.

C.10.3 Environmental Impact Assessments

Modifications of the utility systems require an assessment of the environmental impacts and the preparation of documentation in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and Army Regulation (AR) 200-2, Environmental Effects of Army Actions. Hardin County shall be responsible for conducting this assessment and preparing the NEPA document. Development of the NEPA document will be coordinated with the Environmental Management Division (EMD). The document will be reviewed and approved by Installation Environmental Coordinator prior to any construction. For Environmental Assessments and Environmental Impact Statements, Hardin County is responsible for advertisement in local and regional newspapers, and conducting public meetings per NEPA and AR 200-2. Hardin County will provide a copy of the approved NEPA document to the Contracting Officers Representative.

C.11 Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements

C.11.1 General

Hardin County shall be responsible for accomplishing all required upgrades and renewals and replacements to maintain and operate the utility system(s) in a safe, reliable condition, and to meet the requirements of this contract.

C.11.2 Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement

C.11.2.1 Initial Capital Upgrades

Initial Capital Upgrades consist of those repairs, replacement, and improvement activities of Hardin County required to bring the utility systems, as purchased, up to legally applicable regulatory standards or the standards typically maintained by Hardin County on its utility systems so that subsequent renewals and replacements will permit the long-term safe and reliable operation of the utility systems. All initial capital upgrades shall be listed in the first submittal of the Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan, as part of the offer.

C.11.2.2 Future Capital Upgrades

Future Capital Upgrades are investments in the utility systems resulting from changes in the requirements, laws or regulations. Capital upgrades may also include the implementation of new technologies.

C.11.2.3 Renewals and Replacements

Renewals and replacements are investments in the utility systems to renew or replace system components that fail or reach the end of their useful life.

C.11.2.4 Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan

Hardin County shall prepare and submit an Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan that identifies capital upgrades and major renewals and replacements Hardin County intends to accomplish. The Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement Plan shall contain a proposed upgrade list for each of the next 5 years. The plan shall be structured as follows:

Year 1 shall include detailed upgrade information including site plans, cost estimates, upgrade schedules, an analysis of the impact of construction on installation operations and the environment, and address safety requirements.

Years 2-5 shall include upgrade lists with upgrade descriptions, order-of-magnitude estimates, and proposed site plans.

The initial Capital Upgrade and Renewals and Replacements Plan included in the proposal shall describe initial capital upgrades and initial renewals and replacements in the same detail as required for Year 1.

For offerors submitting price proposals using Schedule B-2, future capital upgrades shall be included in the Applicable Tariff rates. Accordingly, the above cost estimate information is only applicable to initial capital upgrades.

The Administrative Contracting Officer will advise Hardin County of installation development plans with the potential to impact systems requirements.

The first Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall be submitted no later than May 31 of the first full fiscal year following contract award. Thereafter the plan shall be submitted no later than May 31 of each year. The Plan shall be submitted to the Administrative Contracting Officer.

C.11.2.5 Capital Upgrades

Hardin County may propose upgrades in the Annual Capital Upgrade and Renewal and Replacement Plan. The Government reserves the right to determine at its discretion, whether it will pay for any portion of proposed upgrades. Capital Upgrades required to meet legally applicable regulatory requirements that have changed during the contract term will be paid subject to the availability of funds. Approved Capital upgrades and improvements identified in the Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan will be paid, in accordance with Paragraphs H.9, *Accounting for Capital Upgrades/Purchase Price*, and B.5.2, *Service Charges*, or B.6.2, *Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals*, when accomplished. The Government reserves the right to pay for any capital upgrade as a lump-sum payment rather than by amortizing the capital upgrade costs.

C.11.2.6 Renewals and Replacements

Major renewals and replacements identified in the Capital Upgrades and Renewal and Replacement Plan will be paid in accordance with Schedule L-1 and L-3 and Paragraph B.5.2, *Service Charges*, or B.6.2, *Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals.*

C.11.2.7 Requirements and Standards

The Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall include an assessment of any new or revised standards and clearly address planned system improvements or operational changes needed to comply with such standards.

C.11.2.8 Connections and Disconnections

The Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall include a list of anticipated new service connections, including a preliminary design and estimated construction costs. The Government will provide a list of new service requirements and anticipated disconnections.

C.12 Operations and Maintenance

Hardin County shall operate and maintain the systems so as to provide reliable, cost-effective, and compliant service over the term of the contract.

The utility system(s) shall be operated and maintained in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws/regulations and the most current version of any base-specific requirements defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). At a minimum, performance standards and/or specifications shall follow best engineering and management practices consistent with the following:

Wastewater collection system(s): The most recent edition of reference materials published by the American Water Works Association (AWWA), Water Environment Federation (WEF), American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and Factory Mutual Global.

Additional standards for operations and maintenance of the utility systems the Offeror proposes.

C.12.1 Quality Management Plan

Hardin County shall establish, maintain and adhere to a Quality Management Plan to ensure the provision of reliable, cost-effective and compliant service over the term of the contract.

C.13 Operational Transition Plan

Hardin County shall propose an Operational Transition Plan describing Hardin County's plan for the transfer of the utility systems from the Government to Hardin County. The Operational Transition Plan will be incorporated in the contract at time of award.

The paragraphs below constitute the minimum requirements for the Operational Transition Plan. Installation and utility-specific transition items are listed in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42).

C.13.1 Performance Start Date

Hardin County shall propose a date on which Hardin County will assume full responsibility for the utility system(s) and for providing utility service(s). The date shall be within ninety (90) days of contract award.

C.13.2 Connection Requirements

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for the construction of new connections, if identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J), or any new connections as proposed by Hardin County. The Operational Transition Plan shall include procedures for notification of any related outages.

C.13.3 New Meter Requirements

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for installing new meters, if identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42) or, any new meters as may be proposed by Hardin County. All new meters required by this contract shall be installed within 30 days of the start of the performance period unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. The Operational Transition Plan shall include procedures for notification of any related outages.

C.13.4 Permits and Procedures

The Government will make initial notification to state agencies regarding the termination or transfer of environmental permits and/or other items, if needed. The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for the transfer or acquisition of permits as required. It is essential that advanced planning occur and Hardin County initiate the acquisition of permits within 1 week after contract award.

C.13.5 Inventory and Transfer Requirements

Checklists will be the basis for the transfer of operations to Hardin County.

C.13.5.1 Inventory and Transfer of Facilities and Fixed Equipment

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of all facilities and fixed equipment, to include building structures and installed equipment.

C.13.5.2 Inventory and Transfer of Non-fixed Equipment, Spare Parts, and Personal Property

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of personal property transferring from the Government to Hardin County.

C.13.5.3 Transfer of Manuals and Records

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of all operating manuals, record drawings, plans and specifications, maintenance records, and other such information available for each utility.

C.13.5.4 Joint Inventory

The joint inventory will be completed prior to the start of the performance period. The final Easement will be amended to reflect the results of the joint inventory.

C.13.6 Initial Meter Readings

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a description and schedule for joint meter readings for secondary meters in place prior to transition.

SECTION D Packaging and Marking

None

.

SECTION E Inspection and Acceptance

The following FAR Clause is Incorporated by Reference: FAR 52.246-4: Inspection of Services -- Fixed-Price (Aug 1996) IAW FAR 46.304

Deliveries or Performance

F.1 Contract Term

Hardin County(s) agrees to furnish, and the Government agrees to purchase, utility distribution services, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this solicitation, for a period of 50 years commencing with the performance start date.

F.2 Commencement of Service

Hardin County shall complete all transitions and be prepared to provide utility services on the performance start date. The date shall be within one hundred twenty (120) days of contract award. The performance start date is defined as the expiration of the transition period (proposed by the Offeror) and the initiation of monthly utility service. The 50-year period of performance begins at the performance start date.

Phase I	Phase II	Phase III
Contract Award Date	Transition Period	Performance Start Date
30 September 2004	(Pre-performance)	
Fixed date in time Government and Offeror agree to terms and conditions of utility service contract.	Offeror proposes duration of transition period; Transition period begins upon execution of contract award.	Transition Period Ends and Performance of Utility Services begins.

F.3 Extension of Contract Performance Period

The contract performance period may be extended on a month-to-month basis for up to 6 months on the same terms and conditions upon the mutual agreement of the parties.

F.4 Clauses Incorporated by Reference

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	Date
52.242-15	Stop Work Order IAW 42.1305(b)(1)	Aug 1989
52.242-17	Government Delay of Work IAW 42.1305(d)	Apr 1984

SECTION G Contract Administration Data

G.1 DFARS 252.201-7000: Contracting Officer's Representative (Dec 1991)

Contracting Officer's Representative means an individual designated in accordance with subsection 201.602-2 of the Department of Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement and authorized in writing by the Contracting Officer to perform specific technical or administrative functions.

If the Contracting Officer designates a Contracting Officer's Representative (COR), Hardin County will receive a copy of the written designation. It will specify the extent of the COR's authority to act on behalf of the Contracting Officer. The COR is not authorized to make any commitments or changes that will affect price, quality, quantity, delivery, or any other term or condition of the contract.

The Administrative Contracting Officer for this contract administration is:

Steven J. Fries, Contract Administration Div., DBOS A-76 Div. Chief SFCA-SR-KN Bldg. 1109 Sixth Avenue Fort Knox, KY 41021-5000 Ph (502) 624-8043

The Administrative Contracting Officer Representative for this contract administration is:

Bob Ender, Plants Branch Chief ATZK-OSO Bldg. 1205 Water Street Fort Knox, KY 40121-5000 Ph (502) 624-5252

G.2 Submission and Payment of Invoices

The Government will pay Hardin County for utility service through a Monthly Service Charge. Subject to the provisions set forth in Section B, utility services will be billed according to the Sub-CLIN items in schedule B-2 on a monthly basis.

Hardin County shall prepare and send one original invoice and four copies to the Installation for payment by the 25th of each month for the previous month's billing period. Invoices shall be sent to the recipient and address identified below:

US Army Garrison ATTN: ATZK-OSC (Tom Hutchins) Bldg 1110-B Fort Knox, KY 40121 Accounting and Appropriation Data:

97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.25 E04PAF2E1119MS S33181 \$495,000.00 97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.27 E04PAF2E1126MS S33181 \$318,787.48 97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.25 E04PAF2E1102MS S33181 \$333,346.50

G.3 Service Charge Adjustment

G.3.1 Schedule B-2

Changes to regulated tariff rates will be made in accordance with Clause FAR 52.241-7, Changes in rates or terms and conditions of service for regulated services.

Special Contract Provisions

H.1 Mobilization and Other Contingencies

In the event of mobilization or other contingencies Hardin County shall promptly take whatever measures are needed to meet any new demands placed upon it, to include extended work hours and expansion of the contract work force.

Extra work effort under these circumstances may entitle Hardin County to equitable adjustment under the Changes Clause FAR 52.243-1 Alt 1, *Changes - Fixed Price.*

H.2 Insurance Requirements

Note: It is recommended that Hardin County(s) furnish a copy of the following requirements to its insurance company, in order to assure that an insurance certificate is issued meeting the minimum requirements shown.

H.2.1 Insurance Certificate

Hardin County shall deliver or cause to be delivered upon execution of this contract (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this contract) to Government a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance required by this contract.

H.2.2 Types of Insurance

During the entire period this contract shall be in effect, Hardin County shall carry and maintain and require its contractors performing work on the Premises to carry and maintain:

H.2.2.1 General Liability

Comprehensive general liability insurance on an "occurrence basis" against claims for "personal injury" including, without limitation, bodily injury, death, or property damage. Such insurance is to afford immediate protection at all times during the term of this contract. The insurance will include limits of liability in amounts approved by the Government, but not less than \$1 million in the event of bodily injury or death to any one or more persons in one accident and, not less than \$500,000 for property damage.

H.2.2.2 Automobile Liability

Comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering the operation of all automobiles used in connection with the performance of the contract in the minimum limits of \$200,000 per person, and \$500,000 per accident for bodily injury, and \$20,000 per accident for property damage.

H.2.2.3 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability

If and to the extent required by law, workers' compensation and employer's liability or similar insurance in form and amounts required by law but not less than the amount of \$100,000.

H.2.3 General

All policies of insurance which this contract requires Hardin County to carry and maintain, or cause to be carried or maintained, pursuant to this contract shall be effected under valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required under this contract, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility. All such policies of insurance shall be for the mutual benefit of Government and Contractor.

Each such policy shall provide that any losses shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of Contractor or Government or any other person; provide that no cancellation, reduction in amount, or material change in coverage thereof shall be effective until at least sixty (60) days after receipt by Government of written notice thereof; provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against Government; and be reasonably satisfactory to Government in all other respects.

Under no circumstances will Contractor be entitled to assign to any third party rights of action which Hardin County may have against the Government. The foregoing notwithstanding, any cancellation of insurance coverage based on nonpayment of the premium shall be effective upon ten (10) days' written notice to the Government. Hardin County understands and agrees that cancellation of any insurance coverage required to be carried and maintained by Hardin County under this contract will constitute a failure to comply with the terms of this contract.

H.3 Catastrophic Loss

Hardin County(s) shall propose how it plans to protect itself from a catastrophic loss (for example, an earthquake) and/or personal injury due to negligence. If Hardin County(s) has catastrophic insurance, Hardin County(s) shall provide a copy of the coverage to the Administrative Contracting Officer.

H.4 Availability of Funds

Unless otherwise authorized by Public Law or Federal Regulation, nothing contained herein shall be construed as binding the Government to expend in any one fiscal year in furtherance of the matter of the contract or to involve the Government in an obligation for the future expenditure of monies before an appropriation is made (Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. 1341.A.1).

H.5 Notification

Hardin County shall provide 120 day written notice prior to any resale, transfer, or encumbrance of the systems or any components thereof.

H.7 Hazardous Substances

Hardin County, at its expense, must comply with all applicable laws on occupational safety and health, the handling and storage of hazardous materials, and the proper handling and disposal of hazardous wastes and hazardous substances generated by its activities. Responsibility for the costs of proper handling and disposal of hazardous wastes and hazardous substances is governed by applicable law.

H.8 Contribution in Aid of Construction (CIAC) Tax Liability

The parties hereby recognize that a purchase by Hardin County of Government utility systems at less than fair market value may be treated as a CIAC and therefore taxable income to Hardin County. As a result, Hardin County may incur an associated income tax liability. Any such liability will be Hardin County's responsibility and shall not be the basis for any claim against the Government.

H.9 Accounting for Capital Upgrades/Purchase Price

H.9.1 Initial Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*)

The price of each initial capital upgrade proposed by the offeror in Schedule L-3 of the Price Proposal will be added to the Fixed Monthly Charge, for the number of months indicated, when the upgrade is put in useful service. The Fixed Monthly Charge is the monthly service charge for the relevant utility system (the utility system of which the upgrade is a part) stated in Schedule B-2.

The price for each initial capital upgrade is fixed and is not subject to renegotiation under Paragraph B.7, *Type of Contract – Price Redetermination—Prospective.* The price for each upgrade will be amortized over the term proposed by the offeror in Schedule L-3 of the Price Proposal. With every monthly invoice that includes a request for payment for a capital upgrade identified in Schedule L-3, Hardin County shall

submit an amortization schedule. The amortization schedule shall specify for each upgrade the additional monthly payment to be included in the Fixed Monthly Charge, the number of the payment (of the total payments required), and the remaining principal.

For offers using Schedule B-2, the upgrades will be paid in accordance with the method proposed by the offeror and accepted by the Government.

H.9.2 Future Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, Upgrades and Renewals and

Replacements)

Future capital upgrades for which the Government agrees to pay in accordance with Paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*, will be added to the Fixed Monthly Charge for the number of months agreed upon when the upgrade is put in useful service. With every monthly invoice that includes a request for payment for such an upgrade, Hardin County will include an amortization schedule. The amortization schedule shall specify for each upgrade the additional monthly payment included in the Fixed Monthly Charge, the number of the payment (of the total payments required), and the remaining principal. For offers using Schedule B-2, the upgrades will be paid in accordance with the method proposed by the offeror and accepted by the Government.

SECTION I Contract Clauses

I.1 FAR 52.252-2 Clauses Incorporated by Reference (Feb 1998)

(IAW FAR 52.107(b))

This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

The full text of a clause may be accessed electronically at these addresses:

http://farsite.hill.af.mil (All CLAUSES) and http://www.arnet.gov/far (FAR Clauses ONLY [Clauses I-11 through I-750]). (End of Clause)

I.2 FAR Clauses Incorporated by Reference

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.202-1	Definitions	2.201	Jul 2004
52.20 3-3	Gratuities	3.202	Apr 1984
52.203-5	Covenant against Contingent Fees	3.404	Apr 1984
52.203-6	Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Government	3.503-2	Jul 1995
52.203-7	Anti-Kickback Procedures	3.502-3	Jul 1995
52.203-8	Cancellation, Rescission, and Recovery of Funds for Illegal or Improper Activity	3.104-9(a)	Jan 1997
52.203-10	Price or Fee Adjustment for Illegal or Improper Activity	3.104-9(b)	Jan 1997
52.203-12	Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions	3.808(b)	Jun 2003
52.204-4	Printing/Copying Double-Sided on Recycled Paper	4.303	Aug 2000
52.207 -3	Right of First Refusal of Employment	7.305(c)	Nov 1991
52.209-6	Protecting the Government's Interest when Subcontracting with Contractors Debarred, Suspended, or Proposed for Debarment	9.409(b)	Jul 1995
52.215-2	Audit and Records Negotiations	15.209(b)	Jun 1999
52.215-8	Order of Precedence – Uniform Contract Format See Section C.1 of contract	15.209(h)	Oct 1997
52.215-11	Price Reduction for Defective Cost or Pricing Data—Modifications	15.408(c)	Oct 1997
52.215-13	Subcontractor Cost or Pricing Data—Modifications	15.408(e)	Oct 1997
52.215-21	Requirement for Cost or Pricing Data or Information other than Cost or Pricing	15.408(m)	Oct 1997
52.219-4	Notice of Price Evaluation for HUBZone Small Business Concerns	19.1308(b)	Jan 1999

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.219-8	Utilization of Small Business Concerns	19.708(a)	May 2004
52.219-9	Small Business Subcontracting Plan	19.708(b)	Jan 2002
52.219-9	Alternate II	19.708(b)(1)	Oct 2001
52.219-16	Liquidated Damages—Subcontracting Plan	19.708(b)(2)	Jan 1999
52.219-25	Small Disadvantaged Business participation Program-Disadvantaged Status and Reporting	19.1204(b)	Oct 1999
52.222-1	Notice to the Government of Labor Disputes	22.103-5(a)	Feb 1997
52.222-3	Convict Labor	22.202	Jun 2003
52.222-4	Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Overtime Compensation	22.305	Sep 2000
52.222-21	Prohibition of Segregated Facilities	22.810(a)(1)	Feb 1999
52.222-26	Equal Opportunity	22.810(e)	Apr 2002
52.222-35	Affirmative Action for Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era	22.1310(a)	Dec 2001
52.222-36	Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilities	22.1408(a)	Jun 1998
52.222-37	Employment Reports on Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era	22.1310(b)	Dec 2001
52.223-5	Pollution Prevention and Right-to-Know Information	23.1005	Aug 2003
52.223-6	Drug-Free Workplace	23.505	May 2001
52.223-12	Refrigeration Equipment And Air Conditioners	23.804(b)	May 1995
52.223-13	Certification of Toxic Chemical Release Reporting	23.907(a)	Aug 2003
52.223-14	Toxic Chemical Release Reporting	23.907(b)	Aug 2003
52.226-1	Utilization of Indian Organizations and Indian-Owned Economic Enterprises	26.104(a)	Jun 2000
52.227-1	Authorization and Consent	27.201-2(a)	Jul 1995
52.228-5	Insurance-Work on a Government Installation	28.310	Jan 1997
52.229-3	Federal, State, and Local Taxes	29.401-3	Apr 2003
52.232-1	Payments	32.111(a)(1)	Apr 1984
52.232-8	Discounts for Prompt Payment	32.111(c)(1)	Feb 2002
52.232-11	Extras	32.111(d)(2)	Apr 1984

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.232-17	Interest	32.617	Jun 1996
52.232-18	Availability of Funds	32.705-1(a)	Apr 1984
52.232-23	Assignment of Claims, ALT 1	32.806(a)(1)	Jan 1986
52.232-25	Prompt Payment For the purposes of this clause, the blank(s) are completed as follows: (A)(6)(I) 7 th (B)(2) 30 th	32.908(c)	Oct 2003
52.232-33	Payment by Electronic Funds TransferCentral Contractor Registration	32.1110(A)(1)	Oct 2003
52.233-1	Disputes (Alt 1)	33.215	Jul 2002
52.233-3	Protest after Award	33.106(b)	Aug 1996
52.237-2	Protection of Government Buildings, Equipment, and Vegetation	37.110(b)	Apr 1984
52.237-3	Continuity of Services	37.110(c)	Jan 1991
52.241-8	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows:	41.501(d)(2)	Feb 1998
	To be determined.		
52.242-1	Notice of Intent to Disallow Costs	42.802	Apr 1984
52.242-13	Bankruptcy	42.903	Jul 1995
52.243-1	Changes – Fixed Price - Alt I	43.205(a)(1)(2)	Aug 198
52.244-6	Subcontracts for Commercial Items	44.403	Jul 2004
52.249-2	Termination for Convenience of the Government (Fixed Price)	43.205(a)(1)	May 200
52.249-8	Default (Fixed Price Supply and Service)	49.504(a)(1)	Apr 198
52.252-6	Authorized Deviations in Clauses	52.107(f)	Apr 1984
52.248-1	Value Engineering	48.201	Feb 200

I.3 DFARS Clauses Incorporated by Reference

The use in this solicitation or contract of any Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (48 CFR Chapter 2) clause with an authorized deviation is indicated by the addition of "(DEVIATION)" after the name of the regulation.

The following DFAR clauses are incorporated by reference:

DFARS Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
252.203-7001	Prohibition on Persons Convicted of Fraud or Other Defense-Contract-Related Felonies	DFARS 203.570-5	Mar 1999
252.203-7002	Display of DoD Hotline Poster	DFARS 203.7002	Dec 1991
252.204-7000	Disclosure of Information	DFARS 204.404-70(a)	Dec 1991
252.204-7003	Control of Government Personnel Work Product	DFARS 204.404-70(b)	Apr 1992
252.204-7004	Required Central Contractor Registration	DFARS 252.204-7304	Nov 2003
252.205-7000	Provision of Information to Cooperative Agreement Holders	DFARS 205.470-2	Dec 1991
252.209-7000	Acquisition from Subcontractors Subject to Onsite Inspection under the Intermediate-Range Nuclear Forces (INF) Treaty	DFARS 209.103-70	Nov 1995
252.209-7001	Disclosure of Ownership or Control by the Government of a Terrorist Country	DFARS 209.104-70(a)	Sep 2004
252.209-7004	Subcontracting with Firms that Are Owned or Controlled by the Government of a Terrorist Country	DFARS 209.409	Mar 1998
252.215-7000	Pricing Adjustments	IAW DFARS 215.408(1)	Dec 1991
252.219-7003	Small, Small Disadvantaged and Women-Owned Small Business Subcontracting Plan (DoD Contracts)	DFARS 219.708(B)(1)(a)	Apr 1996
252.223-7004	Drug-Free Work Force	DFARS 223.570-4(a)	Sep 1988
252.223-7006	Prohibition on Storage and Disposal of Toxic and Hazardous Materials	DFARS 223.7103(a)	Apr 1993
252.225-7031	Secondary Arab Boycott of Israel	DFARS 225.770-5	Apr 2003
252.231-7000	Supplemental Cost Principals	DFARS 231.100-70	Dec 1991
252.235-7003	Frequency Authorization	DFARS 235.071(b)	Dec 1991
252.236-7005	Airfield Safety Precautions	DFARS 236.570(b)(3)	Dec 1991
252.241-7001	Government Access	DFARS 241.501-70(b)	Dec 1991
252.242-7000	Post-award Conference	DFARS 242.570	Dec 1991
252.243-7001	Pricing of Contract Modifications	DFARS 243.205-71	Dec 1991
252.243-7002	Requests for Equitable Adjustment	DFARS 243.205-72	Mar 1998
252.247-7023	Transportation of Supplies by Sea	DFARS 247.573(b)	May 2002

I.4 Clauses not applicable to Entities Submitting Prices Set by Law or Regulation (Incorporated by Reference)

Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
52.222-41	Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended	FAR 22.1006(a)	May 1989
52.222-44	Fair Labor Standards Act and Service Contract Act – Price Adjustment (Multiple Year and Option Contracts)	FAR 22.1006(c)	Feb 2002
52.230-2	Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(a)	Apr 1998
52.230-3	Disclosure and Consistency of Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(b)(1)	Apr 1998
52.230-6	Administration of Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(d)	Nov 1999

I.5 Clauses Applicable to Entities Submitting Prices Set by Law or Regulation

The following FAR clauses are incorporated by reference if award is made to an entity that is subject to rate regulation by an independent regulatory body with respect to its proposal under this solicitation.

Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
52.241-3	Scope and Duration of Contract	FAR 41.501(c)(2)	Feb 1995
	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows: a. 50 years		
	b. (Wastewater and Storm Water)		
52.241-4	Change in Class of Service	FAR 41.501(c)(3)	Feb 1995
52.241-5	Contractor's Facilities	FAR 41.501(c)(4)	Feb 1995
52.241-7	Change in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services	FAR 41.501(d)(1)	Feb 1995
	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows: <u>30 days.</u>		

I.6 Other Clauses

FAR 52.222-42: Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires (May 1989)

In compliance with the Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended, and the regulations of the Secretary of Labor (29 CFR Part 4), this clause identifies the classes of service for employees expected to be employed under the contract. This clause also states the wages and fringe benefits payable to each if they were employed by the contracting agency subject to the provisions of 5 USC 5341 or 5332.

This statement is for information only; it is not a wage determination.

EMPLOYEE CLASS MONETARY WAGE - FRINGE BENEFITS

See Attachment J41 – Federal Equivalents

FAR 52.244-6: Subcontracts for Commercial Items (April 2003)

Commercial item, as used in this clause, has the meaning contained in the clause at 52.202-1. *Subcontract,* as used in this clause, includes a transfer of commercial items between divisions, subsidiaries, or affiliates of the Contractor or subcontractor at any tier.

To the maximum extent practicable, Contractor shall incorporate, and require its subcontractors at all tiers to incorporate, commercial items or nondevelopmental items as components of items to be supplied under this contract.

Notwithstanding any other clause of this contract, the Contractor is not required to include any FAR provision or clause, other than those listed below to the extent they are applicable and as may be required to establish the reasonableness of prices under Part 15, in a subcontract at any tier for commercial items or commercial components:

52.222-26: Equal Opportunity (EO 11246)

52.222-35: Affirmative Action for Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era (38 USC 4212[a])

52.222-36: Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilities (29 USC 793)

52.247-64: Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flagged Commercial Vessels (46 USC 1241) (flow down not required for subcontracts awarded beginning May 1, 1996).

The Contractor shall include the terms of this clause, including this paragraph, in subcontracts awarded under this contract.

-END OF SECTION-

List of Attachments

TABLE J.1-1 Utility-Specific Attachments

RFP Attachment	Installation	Utility System
J32	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Wastewater and Storm Water System

Attachment J42 – Example Easement

Attachment J43 – Example Bill-of-Sale

Attachment J45 – Legislative Authority

--END OF SECTION---

ATTACHMENT J32

U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems

Table of Contents

J32 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX WASTEWATE SYSTEM	R	J1
J32.1 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX OVERVIEW		J1
J32.2 WASTEWATER AND STORM WATER SYSTEMS DESCRIPTION		J1
REQUIREMENTS		
J32.4 CURRENT SERVICE ARRANGEMENT		J7
J32.5 SECONDARY METERING		J7
J32.6 MONTHLY SUBMITTALS		J7
J32.7 INFILTRATION AND INFLOW (I&I) PROJECTS		J7
J32.8 SERVICE		J8
J32.9 OFF-INSTALLATION SITES	····	J8
J32.10 SPECIFIC TRANSITION REQUIREMENTS		J8

List of Tables

Table 1 - Wastewater Collections System Age	 J2
Distribution	

Table 2 - Lift Station Age Distribution	 JЗ
Table 3 - Fixed	 J 4
Table 4 - Spare Parts	 J5
Table 5 - Specialized Equipment and Vehicles	 J5
Table 6 - Manuals, Drawings, and Records	 J6
Table 7 - Service Connections and Disconnections	 J9
Table 8 - System Improvement Projects	 J9

J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems

J32.1 U.S. Army Fort Knox Overview

Located in north central Kentucky, Fort Knox is the home of the U.S. Army Armor Center, the U.S. Army Armor School, and the U.S. Bullion Depository. The 170 square mile post is currently under the command of the U.S. Army Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC).

American soldiers occupied Fort Knox as early as the Civil War. In 1862 the 6th Michigan Infantry constructed the first fortifications in the area. In January 1918, Congress established a field artillery training center that they named Camp Knox after Major General Henry Knox, chief of Artillery for the Continental Army during the American Revolution and later the nation's first Secretary of War. The post was closed as a permanent installation in 1922, but continued to serve until 1932 as a training center for the V Corps, for reserve officer training, Citizens Military Training Camps, and for the National Guard. In 1936 the U.S. Treasury Department began construction of the U.S. Bullion Depository. The Gold Vault was opened in 1937.

On January 1, 1932, Congress designated Camp Knox as a permanent garrison and changed the name to Fort Knox. The Armored Force School and the Armored Force Replacement Center were officially established at Fort Knox October 1, 1940. Today, Fort Knox has an on-post population of nearly 27,000 people and the post serves a total of 163,000 people including over 10,000 soldiers.

J32.2 Wastewater and Storm water Systems Description

J32.2.1 Wastewater System Fixed Equipment Inventory

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater system consists of all appurtenances physically connected to the system from the point of demarcation. Generally, the point of demarcation will be the termination of a building's service line at the collection system including the collection joint. The system may include, but is not limited to, pipelines, lift stations, manholes, and a wastewater treatment plant. The following description and inventory is included to provide the Offeror with a general understanding of the size and configuration of the system. The Offeror shall base the proposal on site inspections, information in the offeror's library, other pertinent information and the following description. Under no circumstances shall the successful Contractor be entitled to any rate adjustment based on the accuracy of the following description and inventory.

J32.2.1.1 Description

Wastewater Collection System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater collection system consists of sewer mains and service connections for disposal. The sewer mains direct sewage from both the base and the City of

Muldraugh, Kentucky to a wastewater treatment plant located on the base. The collection system on the base consists of approximately 838,979 feet of sewer mains ranging in size from 2" to 36", with 8" being the most common size. There are approximately 1,745 manholes within the base collection system.

The collection system is broken up into four individual classifications that are identified with the letters C, H, M and W followed by two numbers (e.g. C10). Letter C is an abbreviation for Capart Housing, letter H is an abbreviation for other housing, M is an abbreviation for Military and W is an abbreviation for Wherry Housing. The two numbers followed by two zeros represent block numbers (e.g. 1000 Block).

The age of the wastewater collection system ranges from 70 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups with the majority of the collection system being constructed prior to 1940.

Storm Water System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox storm water system consists of, but is not limited to, manholes, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, metal and concrete culverts, open concrete ditches, and various lengths of underground pipes ranging in size from 2 to 72 inches in diameter. Majority, but not all of these components, are shown on storm water drawing attached. See Table 3.1 for inventory of system. The age of the system components range from 50+ years to 5 years and the approximate age of various components is shown in Table 1.1.

Table 1 presents a summary of the age distribution.

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM AGE DISTRIBUTION WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX Sewer Main Number of Year Length in ft Manholes < 1950 1,205 516,807 1950 - 1989 304,547 486 1990 - 2000 101,515 54

TABLE 1

Lift Stations

The U.S. Army Fort Knox collection system includes a total of twenty (20) lift stations with sixteen (16) containing submersible pumps, three (3) containing dry pit pumps, four (4) containing grinder pumps and one (1) containing a sewage ejector.

The lift stations containing submersible pumps include pumps ranging in size from 2 to 40 hp. Fourteen (14) are identified as the following building numbers: 2389A, 2389B, 4015, 6151, 4767, 4990, 6035, 7233, 7238, 7241, 9384, 9101A, 9387 and 5543. The remaining two (2) lift stations are located at the following locations: Brave Rifles, and Camp Carlson 9101B.

The lift stations containing dry pit pumps include pumps ranging in size from 10 to 60 hp and are identified as the following building numbers: 4208, 5540 and 7873.

The sewage ejector has a capacity of 50 gpm and is identified as Bldg. 4002. Seven (7) lift stations have emergency generators as part of their system. These lift stations are identified as the following building numbers with the size of the generator in parentheses: 4002 (10 KW), 4015 (188 KW), 4208 (256 KW), 5540 (169 KW), 6151 (33 KW), 7873 (100KW), 4767 (33 KW).

The age of the lift stations ranges from 58 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups. **Table 2** presents a summary of the age distribution of the lift station structure. The equipment in the lift station has typically been replaced and is significantly newer than the date listed.

TABLE 2

LIFT STATION AGE DISTRIBUTION
WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM U.S.
ARMY FORT KNOX

Year	Number of Lift Stations
< 1950	2
1950 - 1989	10
1990 - 2000	8

Wastewater Treatment System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system consists of one 6 million-gallonsper-day (MGD) wastewater treatment plant. The wastewater treatment plant is designed for an average wastewater flow of 6 MGD, a maximum daily flow of 14 MGD and a peak wastewater flow of 18 MGD.

The wastewater treatment plant consists of the following components:

- Preliminary Treatment
 - Two Mechanical Bar Screens
 - Two Vortex Grit Removal System
 - Influent Lift Station
- Septage Receiving Station 10,000 gal capacity
- Two Extended Aeration Oxidation Ditches at 2.55 MGD capacity each with four 75 hp brush surface rotors each
- Four Secondary Clarifiers at 75' diameter and 13' SWD
- Sludge pumping includes six 15 hp return activated sludge pumps and six 5 hp waste activated sludge pumps
- Two Chlorine Contact Basins at 93,750 gal each, with a total of two chlorine gas feeders with

Dechlorination Injection System and a total of two sulfonators

Two Gravity Sludge Thickeners at 35' diameter and 13' SWD

- Two Aerobic Digesters at 65' by 65' and 17' SWD with three 150 hp Blowers and Coarse Bubble Air Diffusion
- Sludge Dewatering Facility with two Belt Press Systems, 2 m width each, polymer feeds, sludge handling pumps, and conveyor systems
- Non-potable water system capable of supplying between 250 gpm and 500 gpm.

This wastewater treatment plant handles flows from both the Base and the City of Muldraugh. Between April 1999 and March 2000, the wastewater treatment plant received an average influent flow of 3.3 MGD and a maximum daily influent flow of 13.8 MGD. In addition, plant personnel indicated that during wet weather, the influent flow into the treatment plant could be as high as 20 MGD.

Emergency Generator will be owned and maintained by Nolin RECC. Generator will be available at all times for emergency backup.

The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds will no longer be required as part of the wastewater contract. Thus any specific references to the sludge drying beds have been deleted form the solicitation.

TABLE 1.1Storm Water Collection Age DistributionStorm Water Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Storm Water Pipe (Linear Feet)
<1950	90,000
1950 -1989	298,000
1990 - 2002	18,000

Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity.

J32.2.1.2 Inventory

Table 3 provides a general listing of the major collection system fixed assets for the U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system included in the purchase. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition without any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

TABLE 3

FIXED INVENTORY

Item	Size	Quantity	Unit	Approximate Year of Construction
Pipe	2"	3,00	Linear Feet	Various
	4"	16,300	Linear Feet	Various
	6"	250,150*	Linear Feet	Various
	8"	346,900*	Linear Feet	Various
	10"	49,629*	Linear Feet	Various
	12"	54,300	Linear Feet	Various
	15"	43,000	Linear Feet	Various
	18"	28,100	Linear Feet	Various
	20"	4,600	Linear Feet	Various
	21"	3,000	Linear Feet	Various
	24"	17,700	Linear Feet	Various
	30"	15,600	Linear Feet	Various
	36"	7,070	Linear Feet	Various
Manholes		1,745	Each	Various
Lift Stations		20	Each	Various

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

*The changes to TABLE 3 above are per amendment 0007 02/09/04. 6" pipe is reduced by 13,350 LF from 263,500 to 250,150, 8" pipe is reduced by 67,100 from 414,000 to 346,900, and 10" pipe is reduced by 2,571 from 52,200 to 49,629. Total LF is reduced to 838,979. *"Linear feet of wastewater pipes shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity."*

TABLE 3.1 Fixed Inventory Storm Water System U.S. Army Fort Knox

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.) M	ISC. SIZES
		(<u>UNKNOWN LF)</u>
	4.004	
2	1,904	6" X 12"
4	1,711	16" X 25"
5	1,247	16" X 29"
6	18,862	18" X 29"
8	35,209	20" X 96"
10	8,353	36" X 58"
12	97,424	2' X 2'
14	49	3' X 4'
15	40,788	4' X 4'
16	883	4' X 5'
18	51,289	4' X 6'
20	186	4' X 7'
21	10,560	4' X 8'
22	51	4' X 10'
24	43,367	4' X 12'
27	2,194	5' X 18'
28	477	8' X 8'
30	20,565	8' X 11'

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.)	MISC. SIZES (UNKNOWN LF)
34	756	9.5' X 13'
35	234	10' X 15'
36 42	10,808 3,632	
48	2,527	
54	832	
60	2,872	
72	6,372	
UNKNOWN DIM.	10,057	
OPEN CONCRETE DITCHES	<u>33,721</u>	
ΤΟΤΑ	L 406,930	

Table 3.1 provides a general listing of the major storm water system fixed assets at Fort Knox. Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. Majority of underground pipes are clay tile, concrete with the latest installed being PVC and culverts are both concrete and corrugated metal. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition in that any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

J32.2.2 Wastewater System Non-Fixed Equipment and Specialized Tools Inventory

Table 4 lists other ancillary equipment (spare parts) and **Table 5** lists specialized vehicles and tools included in the purchase. Offerors shall field verify all equipment and tools prior to submitting a offeror. Offerors shall make their own determination of the adequacy of all equipment and tools. The successful Contractor shall provide any and all equipment, vehicles, and tools, whether included in the purchase or not, to maintain a fully operating system under the terms of this contract.

TABL	E 4		
			SPARE PARTS
vvaste	ewater Syst	tem U.S. Army Fort Knox	
Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
		The spare parts inventory varies on a day-to-day basis, but is estimated to be worth \$ 64,000.	
TABL		SPECIALIZED EQUIPME	NT AND VEHICLES
Waste	water Syst	tem U.S. Army Fort Knox	
Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT LABORATORY EQUIPMENT	****
1	Ea	INCUBATOR – MODEL #MFU20F3GW	
1	Ea	11.8 REFRIGERATOR – MODEL #TB12SBB	
1	Ea	DESICCATOR	
1	Ea	TIMER – MODEL #171	
1	Ea	STEAM STERILIZER – MODEL #800V	
1	Ea	LAB OVEN – MODEL #10201C	
1	Ea	LAB LINE – MODEL #4205	
1	Ea	STILL – WALL MOUNT	
1	Ea	WATER BATH – MODEL #5D	
1	Ea	COLONY COUNTER – MODEL #3325	
1	Ea	D.O. METER – MODEL 54ARC	
1	Ea	VAC PUMP – MODEL #XX6000000	
1	Ea	BALANCES – MODEL #AC100	
2	Ea	ISCO SAMPLER – MODEL #6700FR	
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT COLLEC SYSTEM EQUIP	
1	Ea	JET RODDER AND VACUUM TRUCK	
1	Ea	FARM TRACTOR	

1	Ea	TRASH PUMP, 3" DISCHARGE, 5 HP GAS MOTOR
1	Ea	ELECTRIC EEL SEWER MACHINE AND TRAILER
1	Ea	MODEL 666 SEWER RODDER
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
		EQUIPMENT
1	Ea	FORKLIFT
1	Ea	TRUCK, LIGHT CUSHMAN
		PUMP, FAIRBANKS-MORSE, W-3 WATER,
1	Ea	VERTICAL TURBINE,
		3-STAGE, MODEL #7M-7000AW
1	Ea	PUMP, JOHNSTON – SERIES JT, 3-STAGE
•		PROPELLER, BELTWASH, MODEL #6AC-3 PUMP, FLYGT, SUBMERSIBLE – 35 HP, 2250 GPM,
1	Ea	RAW WASTEWATER, MODEL #CP-3201X-MT
		PUMP, FLYGT, SUBMERSIBLE – 5 HP,
1	Ea	DILLUTION WATER, MODEL #CP-3102
	_	PUMP, CHLORINE INDUCTION - MODEL SWC
1	Ea	3F
1	Ea	PUMP, SULFUR DIOXIDE INDUCTION – MODEL
I	La	SWC 2F
1	Ea	PUMP, SUBMERSIBLE, SEWAGE, ZOELLER – 1
		HP, 230V, MODEL #E-284C MOTOR, SEW, EURODRIVE, 230/460V, 3 HP, BELT
1	Ea	PRESS DRIVE, TYPE DF26BHSDT100L24-KS
		MOTOR, GE, 184T-FR, 5 HP, 230/460V, SLUDGE
1	Ea	CONVEYOR, MODEL #5KS184BC205
	۳.	MOTOR, BALDOR, 215T-FR, 10 HP, 230/460V, PTB AIR
1	Ea	HANDLER DRIVE, MODEL #37F380X954

J32.2.3 Wastewater and Storm Water System Manuals, Drawings, and Records Inventory

Table 6 lists the manuals, drawings, and records that will be transferred with the system.

TABLE 6

MANUALS, DRAWINGS, AND RECORDS

Wastewater and Storm Water Systems U. S. Army Fort Knox

Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
3	12 Volumes	Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M Manuals	N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Drawings	N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant As-Built Drawings	Reviewing
1	CD*	Storm Water Drawing (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)	None

* The CD can be requested by contacting Mr. J. R. Cardin, Fort Knox at (502) 624-7914 or by sending an email at "<u>James.Cardin@knox.army.mil</u>", or Mr. Randy Ball at (502) 624-6061, email at "<u>Randy.Ball@knox.army.mil.</u>" The site visit can be setup during May 6 –10, 2002 by contacting Mr. Cardin or Mr. Ball.

J32.3 Specific Service Requirements

Excess Capacity

The wastewater treatment plant currently has excess capacity except during some storm water events. The Contractor may use the excess capacity per paragraph C.4.2. However this excess capacity is reserved for mobilization and must be available to Fort Knox at any time. Full capacity of treatment plant must be maintained in order to meet mobilization requirements.

Pretreatment Program

Successful offeror shall implement and maintain a Pretreatment Plan in accordance with KPDES permit. The U.S. Army Fort Knox currently has a pretreatment program for their wastewater treatment plant and a copy of the program is available for viewing. The objective of the pretreatment program is to prevent violation of the Clean Water Act by preventing the introduction of pollutants into the Wastewater Treatment Plant that could interfere with its operation; and/or prevent the pass-through of pollutants that could cause a violation of the operating permit limitations and/or applicable water quality standards. The Pretreatment Program document, dated 26 November 1996, presents a description of the pretreatment program including discharge limits for pollutants, typical sampling locations and a monitoring plan. Activities associated with the pretreatment program include, but are not limited to, facility monitoring and source identification of prohibited pollutants. Facility monitoring includes facility inspections, wastewater sampling/analysis and wastewater flow measurement. Facility inspections include semi-annual formal inspections and informal inspections as required. Sampling/analysis includes quarterly scheduled sampling/analysis events for each facility and unscheduled random sampling/analysis events as required. Flow from each facility is measured as required to quantify waste streams. Currently, a total of 25 on-base facilities and the City of Muldraugh are being monitored as part of the pretreatment program.

Geographical Information System

The Government shall furnish available drawings and related engineering and property information to the Contractor within sixty (60) days of contract award. Such available drawings of the wastewater and storm water systems may not be comprehensive. Drawings and related property information shall include, but not be limited to, wastewater and storm water systems facilities and distribution lines and related system components. The Contractor shall thereafter incorporate the entire privatized wastewater and storm water systems into an automated Geographical Information System (GIS) compatible with the Government system within six (6) months of receipt of the Government furnished information. GIS system being utilized by Government is GEOSYNC and drawings are in AUTOCAD format. Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment facilities, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, culverts, and storm water pipes shall be included in the GIS system. Information shall include, but not be limited to, sewer and storm water pipe lines sizes, materials, and age, manhole type, materials, age, and invert elevations, lift station pipe sizes, materials, age and invert elevations, valve sizes, materials and age, lift station pump sizes, materials and age, emergency generators information, culvert sizes and materials, and treatment plant information. The Contractor shall maintain "as-built" drawings for all facilities and related system components installed and/or modified and update the Government GIS system within ninety (90) days after installation/modification. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may inspect and copy such drawings and the Contractor shall provide available to the Government.

J32.4 Current Service Arrangement

The U.S. Army currently provides wastewater collection and treatment service for Fort Knox and the City of Muldraugh. Current service agreement with City of Muldraugh shall remain in affect for a period of one year after award. At that time a new agreement may be negotiated. Other treatment services to be provided include treatment of waste from Field Latrines and grey water placed in system at Septic Receiving Station by contractors and units, treatment of Landfill Leachate placed by contractor in Burke Motor Park Manhole, and treatment of cooked grease from dining facilities and soil from car wash placed on drying beds by contractors. The treated wastewater is discharged into Mill Creek under a Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit # KY 0002917.

J32.5 Secondary Metering

There are currently no requirements for secondary metering of wastewater included in this contract. Any future wastewater secondary metering requested by the Government will be IAW C.3, Future Secondary Meters.

J32.6 Monthly Submittals

In addition to the submittal requirements from Clause H.5, the Contractor shall provide the Government monthly submittals for:

1. Invoicing (IAW G.2) for the previous months services. The Contractor's invoice shall be prepared in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer. Monthly invoices shall be submitted to Directorate of Base Operation Support, Engineer and Services Division, Building 1110, Fort Knox, KY 40121.

- 2. Monthly interruption report for the previous month. The Contractor's monthly interruption report shall be prepared in the format presented in Attachment 1.
- 3. System Efficiency Report. If required by Clause C.3 the Contractor shall submit a system efficiency report in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer.

J32.7 Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) Projects

IAW C.3, Utility Service Requirement, only an Infiltration and Inflow Study has been implemented by the Government for managing and monitoring I&I.

Roy F. Weston, Inc. conducted an Infiltration and Inflow Study for the U.S. Army Fort Knox Base in November 1998. The study's scope was to identify sources of infiltration and inflow in the Base's wastewater collection system. Infiltration is defined as water originating from rainfall or groundwater seepage flowing into the wastewater collection system through cracks in pipes and separated pipe joints. Inflow is defined as water being contributed to the wastewater collection system from connected housing sump pumps, storm sewers and roof drains.

For the purpose of the study, the entire base wastewater collection system was divided into ten distinct drainage basins. The study included the inspection of 50 manholes and dry and wet weather flow monitoring throughout the entire wastewater collection system. During the flow monitoring, the flow meters were checked for accuracy and reliability once per day.

Manhole inspection indicated that most manholes had cracked offset rings and some pipes to manhole connections were also cracked. Both of these conditions can result in significant infiltration. The flow monitoring indicated, that all basins except one had no significant I&I sources. One drainage basin exhibited I&I of between 1,500 to 2,000 gpd/idm.

Weston, Inc.'s major recommendations were to repair cracked offset rings and pipe to manhole connections and to investigate the one drainage basin with the highest I&I for the location of pipe cracks and non-wastewater connections. A copy of I & I report will be available for viewing during solicitation process and will be provided to successful offeror.

J32.8 Service Area

IAW Clause C.4, Service Area, the service area is defined as all areas within the installation boundaries. Fort Knox has a total area of approximately 170 square miles. The northern boundary of the installation is the Ohio River and the town of Cupio. On the east, the installation extends to Beech Grove and Lebanon Junction. The south is bounded by highway 313 and Radcliff, while the western boundary is Rock Haven and Red Hill.

J32.9 Off-Installation Sites

There is only one off-installation site, which is the City of Muldraugh. The City is located approximately one (1) mile north of the U.S. Army base and has an approximate population of 1,376. The requirement for sewage services is part of and associated with this scope. The City of Muldraugh maintains the sewer system to the end of the force main.

J32.10 Specific Transition Requirements

IAW Clause C.17, Transition Plan, **Table 7** lists service connections and disconnections required upon transfer, and **Table 8** lists the improvement projects required upon transfer of

the Fort Knox wastewater collection and treatment system. Other transition requirements include development of a modified pretreatment program including reassigning of specific duties and reporting requirements.

TABLE 7

SERVICE CONNECTIONS AND DISCONNECTIONS

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Location

Description

None Identified

TABLE 8

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Project Location Project Description

None Identified

ATTACHMENT J42 Army Easement (Real Estate Office)

TO BE ISSUED BY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY REAL ESTATE OFFICE AND COORDINATED WITH THE CONTRACTING OFFICER REPRESENTATIVE (COR).

ATTACHMENT J43 Army Bill of Sale (Real Estate Office)

TO BE ISSUED BY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY REAL ESTATE OFFICE AND COORDINATED WITH THE CONTRACTING OFFICER REPRESENTATIVE (COR).

FORT KNOX WASTEWATER SND STORM WATER COLLECTION SYSTEM HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #1 CONTRACT SP00600-04-C-8275

ATTACHMENT J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table of Contents

J32 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX WASTEWATER SYSTEM	J1
J32.1 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX OVERVIEW	J1
J32.2 WASTEWATER AND STORM WATER SYSTEMS (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) DESCRIPTION	J1
J32.3 SPECIFIC SERVICE REQUIREMENTS	J6
J32.4 CURRENT SERVICE ARRANGEMENT	J7
J32.5 SECONDARY METERING	J7
J32.6 MONTHLY SUBMITTALS	J7
J32.7 INFILTRATION AND INFLOW (I&I) PROJECTS	J7
J32.8 SERVICE AREA	J8
J32.9 OFF-INSTALLATION SITES	J8
J32.10 SPECIFIC TRANSITION REQUIREMENTS	J8

List of Tables

Table 1 - Wastewater Collections System Age Distribution	J2
Table 2 - Lift Station Age Distribution	J3
Table 3 - Fixed Inventory	J4
Table 4 - Spare Parts	J5
Table 5 - Specialized Equipment and Vehicles	J5
Table 6 - Manuals, Drawings, and Records	J6

Table 7 - Service Connections and Discon-	nections	J9
Table 8 - System Improvement Projects		J9

J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Section J32 with revisions highlighted in RED replaces the current Section J32 in its entirety Per Amendment 0002 01/14/02. Revisions highlighted in BLUE are Per Amendment 0005 04/26/02. Revisions highlighted in GREEN are Per Amendment 0007 02/09/04.

J32.1 U.S. Army Fort Knox Overview

Located in north central Kentucky, Fort Knox is the home of the U.S. Army Armor Center, the U.S. Army Armor School, and the U.S. Bullion Depository. The 170 square mile post is currently under the command of the U.S. Army Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC).

American soldiers occupied Fort Knox as early as the Civil War. In 1862 the 6th Michigan Infantry constructed the first fortifications in the area. In January 1918, Congress established a field artillery training center that they named Camp Knox after Major General Henry Knox, chief of Artillery for the Continental Army during the American Revolution and later the nation's first Secretary of War. The post was closed as a permanent installation in 1922, but continued to serve until 1932 as a training center for the V Corps, for reserve officer training, Citizens Military Training Camps, and for the National Guard. In 1936 the U.S. Treasury Department began construction of the U.S. Bullion Depository. The Gold Vault was opened in 1937.

On January 1, 1932, Congress designated Camp Knox as a permanent garrison and changed the name to Fort Knox. The Armored Force School and the Armored Force Replacement Center were officially established at Fort Knox October 1, 1940. Today, Fort Knox has an on-post population of nearly 27,000 people and the post serves a total of 163,000 people including over 10,000 soldiers.

J32.2 Wastewater and storm water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) Description

J32.2.1 Wastewater System Fixed Equipment Inventory

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater system consists of all appurtenances physically connected to the system from the point of demarcation. Generally, the point of demarcation will be the termination of a building's service line at the collection system including the collection joint. The system may include, but is not limited to, pipelines, lift stations, manholes, septic tanks (delete) and a wastewater treatment plant. The following description and inventory is included to provide the Offeror with a general understanding of the size and configuration of the system. The Offeror shall base the proposal on site inspections, information in the offeror's library, other pertinent information and the following description. Under no circumstances shall the successful Contractor be entitled to any rate adjustment based on the accuracy of the following description and inventory.

J32.2.1.1 Description

Wastewater Collection System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater collection system consists of sewer mains and service connections for disposal. The sewer mains direct sewage from both the base and the City of Muldraugh, Kentucky to a wastewater treatment plant located on the base. The collection system on the base consists of approximately 838,979 922,870 (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04) feet of sewer mains ranging in size from 2" to 36", with 8" being the most common size. There are approximately 1,745 manholes within the base collection system.

The collection system is broken up into four individual classifications that are identified with the letters C, H, M and W followed by two numbers (e.g. C10). Letter C is an abbreviation for Capart Housing, letter H is an abbreviation for other housing, M is an abbreviation for Military and W is an abbreviation for Wherry Housing. The two numbers followed by two zeros represent block numbers (e.g. 1000 Block).

The age of the wastewater collection system ranges from 70 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups with the majority of the collection system being constructed prior to 1940.

Storm Water System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox storm water system consists of, but is not limited to, manholes, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, metal and concrete culverts, open concrete ditches, and various lengths of underground pipes ranging in size from 2 to 72 inches in diameter. Majority, but not all of these components, are shown on storm water drawing attached. See Table 3.1 for inventory of system. The age of the system components range from 50+ years to 5 years and the approximate age of various components is shown in Table 1.1. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table 1 presents a summary of the age distribution.

TABLE 1

Wastewater Collection System Age Distribution Wastewater Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Sewer Main Length in ft	Number of Manholes
< 1950	516,807	1,205
1950 - 1989	304,547	486
1990 - 2000	101,515	54

Lift Stations

The U.S. Army Fort Knox collection system includes a total of twenty (20) lift stations with sixteen (16) containing submersible pumps, three (3) containing dry pit pumps, four (4) containing grinder pumps and one (1) containing a sewage ejector.

The lift stations containing submersible pumps include pumps ranging in size from 2 to 40 hp. Fourteen Eleven (delete) (14) are identified as the following building numbers: 2389A, 2389B, 4015, 6151, 4767,

4990, 6035, 7233, 7238, 7241, 9384, 9101A, 9387 and 5543. The remaining two (2) lift stations are located at the following locations: Brave Rifles, Ammo Storage (delete) and Camp Carlson 9101B.

The lift stations containing dry pit pumps include pumps ranging in size from 10 to 60 hp and are identified as the following building numbers: 4208, 5540 and 7873.

The sewage ejector has a capacity of 50 gpm and is identified as Bldg. 4002. The lift station containing two (2) grinder pumps, with 2 hp motors each, is identified as Bldg. 4760. (delete) Seven (7) lift stations have emergency generators as part of their system. These lift stations are identified as the following building numbers with the size of the generator in parentheses: 4002 (10 KW), 4015 (188 KW), 4208 (256 KW), 5540 (169 KW), 6151 (33 KW), 7873 (100KW), 4767 (33 KW).

The age of the lift stations ranges from 58 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups. **Table 2** presents a summary of the age distribution of the lift station structure. The equipment in the lift station has typically been replaced and is significantly newer than the date listed.

TABLE 2

Lift Station Age Distribution Wastewater Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Number of Lift Stations
< 1950	2
1950 - 1989	10
1990 - 2000	8

Wastewater Treatment System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system consists of one 6 million-gallons-per-day (MGD) wastewater treatment plant and two septic tanks (delete). The wastewater treatment plant is designed for an average wastewater flow of 6 MGD, a maximum daily flow of 14 MGD and a peak hourly (delete) wastewater flow of 18 MGD.

The wastewater treatment plant consists of the following components:

- Preliminary Treatment
 - Two Mechanical Bar Screens
 - Two Vortex Grit Removal System
 - Influent Lift Station
- Septage Receiving Station 10,000 gal capacity
- Two Extended Aeration Oxidation Ditches at 2.55 MGD capacity each with four 75 hp brush surface rotors each
- Four Secondary Clarifiers at 75' diameter and 13' SWD
- Sludge pumping includes six 15 hp return activated sludge pumps and six 5 hp waste activated sludge pumps
- Two Chlorine Contact Basins at 93,750 gal each, with a total of two chlorine gas feeders with two-(delete) Dechlorination Injection System Chambers, one following each chlorination basin with (delete) and a total of two sulfonators
- Two Gravity Sludge Thickeners at 35' diameter and 13' SWD

- Two Aerobic Digesters at 65' by 65' and 17' SWD with three 150 hp Blowers and Coarse Bubble Air Diffusion
- Sludge Dewatering Facility with two Belt Press Systems, 2 m width each, polymer feeds, sludge handling pumps, and conveyor systems
- Non-potable water system capable of supplying between 250 gpm and 500 gpm.
- 17 Sludge Dryng Beds, 63280 SF, with filtrate return pumps, 2' + depth (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04)

This wastewater treatment plant handles flows from both the Base and the City of Muldraugh. Between April 1999 and March 2000, the wastewater treatment plant received an average influent flow of 3.3 MGD and a maximum daily influent flow of 13.8 MGD. In addition, plant personnel indicated that during wet weather, the influent flow into the treatment plant could be as high as 20 MGD.

Two septic tank systems are used on the Base. One is located north of the City of Muldraugh in the Armor Board Area and the other is located in the Ammo Storage Area. (delete)

Emergency Generator will be owned and maintained by Nolin RECC. Generator will be available at all times for emergency backup.

The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds at the WWTP are regulated as Solid Waste Management Units (SWMUs) by the Corrective Action section of our Hazardous Waste Storage Permit (Part B), IAW the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). A RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) has been accomplished. Based on the results of the RFI, more investigation or remediation/monitoring will need to be performed. This will be the responsibility of the Contractor. (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04) The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds will no longer be required as part of the wastewater contract. Thus any specific references to the sludge drying beds have been deleted form the solicitation (per amendment 0007 02/09/04).

TABLE 1.1Storm Water Collection Age DistributionStorm Water Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Storm Water Pipe (Linear Feet)
<1950	90,000
1950 -1989	298,000
1990 - 2002	18,000

Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.2.1.2 Inventory

Table 3 provides a general listing of the major collection system fixed assets for the U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system included in the purchase. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition without any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

TABLE 3

Fixed Inventory Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Item	Size	Quantity	Unit	Approximate Year of Construction
Pipe	2"	3,00	Linear Feet	Various
	4"	16,300	Linear Feet	Various
	6"	263,500 250,150*	Linear Feet	Various
	8"	4 14,000 346,900*	Linear Feet	Various
	10"	52,200 49,629*	Linear Feet	Various
	12"	54,300	Linear Feet	Various
	15"	43,000	Linear Feet	Various
	18"	28,100	Linear Feet	Various
	20"	4,600	Linear Feet	Various
	21"	3,000	Linear Feet	Various
	24"	17,700	Linear Feet	Various
	30"	15,600	Linear Feet	Various
	36"	7,070	Linear Feet	Various
Manholes		1,745	Each	Various
Lift Stations		20	Each	Various
Wastewater Treatment Plant (delete)		1	Each	1995

*The changes to TABLE 3 above are per amendment 0007 02/09/04. 6" pipe is reduced by 13,350 LF from 263,500 to 250,150, 8" pipe is reduced by 67,100 from 414,000 to 346,900, and 10" pipe is reduced by 2,571 from 52,200 to 49,629. Total LF is reduced to 838,979. "Linear feet of wastewater pipes shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity."

TABLE 3.1 Fixed Inventory Storm Water System U.S. Army Fort Knox

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.)	MISC. SIZES
		(UNKNOWN LF)
2	1.00.4	
2	1,904	6" X 12"
4	1,711	16" X 25"
5	1,247	16" X 29"

6	18,862	18" X 29"
8	35,209	20" X 96"
10	8,353	36" X 58"
12	97,424	2' X 2'
14	49	3' X 4'
15	40,788	4' X 4'
16	883	4' X 5'
18	51,289	4' X 6'
20	186	4' X 7'
21	10,560	4' X 8'
22	51	4' X 10'
24	43,367	4' X 12'
27	2,194	5' X 18'
28	477	8' X 8'
30	20,565	8' X 11'

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.) N	MISC. SIZES (UNKNOWN LF)
34	756	9.5' X 13'
35	234	10' X 15'
36	10,808	
42	3,632	
48	2,527	
54	832	
60	2,872	
72	6,372	
UNKNOWN DIM.	10,057	
OPEN CONCRETE DITCHES	<u>33,721</u>	
TOTA	L 406,930	

Table 3.1 provides a general listing of the major storm water system fixed assets at Fort Knox. Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. Majority of underground pipes are clay tile, concrete with the latest installed being PVC and culverts are both concrete and corrugated metal. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition in that any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.2.2 Wastewater System Non-Fixed Equipment and Specialized Tools Inventory

Table 4 lists other ancillary equipment (spare parts) and **Table 5** lists specialized vehicles and tools included in the purchase. Offerors shall field verify all equipment and tools prior to submitting a offeror bid (delete). Offerors shall make their own determination of the adequacy of all equipment and tools.

The successful Contractor shall provide any and all equipment, vehicles, and tools, whether included in the purchase or not, to maintain a fully operating system under the terms of this contract.

TABLE 4

Spare Parts Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
		The spare parts inventory varies on a day-to-day basis, but is estimated to be worth \$ 64,000.	

TABLE 5

Specialized Equipment and Vehicles Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
1 .'.W.m/m		Wastewater Treatment Plant Laboratory Equipment	
1	Ea	Incubator – Model #MFU20F3GW	
1	Ea	11.8 Refrigerator – Model #TB12SBB	
1	Ea	Desiccator	
1	Ea	Timer – Model #171	
1	Ea	Steam Sterilizer – Model #800V	
1	Ea	Lab Oven – Model #10201C	
1	Ea	Lab Line – Model #4205	
1	Ea	Still – Wall Mount	
1	Ea	Water Bath – Model #5D	
1	Ea	Colony Counter – Model #3325	
1	Ea	D.O. Meter – Model 54ARC	
1	Ea	VAC Pump – Model #XX6000000	
1	Ea	Balances – Model #AC100	
2	Ea	ISCO Sampler – Model #6700FR	
		Wastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipn	nent
1	Ea	Jet Rodder and Vacuum Truck	
1	Ea	Farm Tractor	
1	Ea	Trash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor	
1	Ea	Electric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer	
1	Ea	Model 666 Sewer Rodder	
		Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment	
1	Ea	Forklift	
1	Ea	Truck, Light Cushman	

1	Ea	Pump, Fairbanks-Morse, W-3 Water, Vertical Turbine, 3-Stage, Model #7M-7000AW
1	Ea	Pump, Johnston – Series JT, 3-Stage Propeller, Beltwash, Model #6AC-3
1	Ea	Pump, FLYGT, Submersible – 35 HP, 2250 GPM, Raw Wastewater, Model #CP-3201X-MT
1	Ea	Pump, FLYGT, Submersible – 5 HP, Dillution Water, Model #CP-3102
1	Ea	Pump, Chlorine Induction – Model SWC 3F
1	Ea	Pump, Sulfur Dioxide Induction – Model SWC 2F
1	Ea	Pump, Submersible, Sewage, Zoeller – 1 HP, 230V, Model #E-284C
1	Ea	Motor, SEW, Eurodrive, 230/460V, 3 HP, Belt Press Drive, Type DF26BHSDT100L24-KS
1	Ea	Motor, GE, 184T-FR, 5 HP, 230/460V, Sludge Conveyor, Model #5KS184BC205
1	Ea	Motor, Baldor, 215T-FR, 10 HP, 230/460V, PTB Air Handler Drive, Model #37F380X954

J32.2.3 Wastewater and Storm Water System Manuals, Drawings, and Records Inventory (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table 6 lists the manuals, drawings, and records that will be transferred with the system.

TABLE 6

Manuals, Drawings, and Records

Wastewater and Storm Water Systems U. S. Army Fort Knox (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Qty Item		Description	Remarks		
3	12 Volumes	Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M Manuals	None N/A		
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Drawings	None N/A		
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant As-Built Drawings	Reviewing		
1	CD*	Storm Water Drawing (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)	None		

* The CD can be requested by contacting Mr. J. R. Cardin, Fort Knox at (502) 624-7914 or by sending an email at "James.Cardin@knox.army.mil", or Mr. Randy Ball at (502) 624-6061, email at "<u>Randy.Ball@knox.army.mil.</u>" The site visit can be setup during May 6 –10, 2002 by contacting Mr. Cardin or Mr. Ball. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.3 Specific Service Requirements

Excess Capacity

The wastewater treatment plant currently has excess capacity except during some storm water events. The Contractor may use the excess capacity per paragraph C.4.2. However this excess capacity is reserved for mobilization and must be available to Fort Knox at any time. Full capacity of treatment plant must be maintained in order to meet mobilization requirements.

Pretreatment Program

Successful offeror shall implement and maintain a Pretreatment Plan in accordance with KPDES permit. The U.S. Army Fort Knox currently has a pretreatment program for their wastewater treatment plant and a copy of the program is available for viewing. The objective of the pretreatment program is to prevent violation of the Clean Water Act by preventing the introduction of pollutants into the Wastewater Treatment Plant that could interfere with its operation; and/or prevent the pass-through of pollutants that could cause a violation of the operating permit limitations and/or applicable water quality standards. The Pretreatment Program document, dated 26 November 1996, presents a description of the pretreatment program including discharge limits for pollutants, typical sampling locations and a monitoring plan. Activities associated with the pretreatment program include, but are not limited to. facility monitoring and source identification of prohibited pollutants. Facility monitoring includes facility inspections, wastewater sampling/analysis and wastewater flow measurement. Facility inspections include semi-annual formal inspections and informal inspections as required. Sampling/analysis includes quarterly scheduled sampling/analysis events for each facility and unscheduled random sampling/analysis events as required. Flow from each facility is measured as required to quantify waste streams. Currently, a total of 25 on-base facilities and the City of Muldraugh are being monitored as part of the pretreatment program.

Geographical Information System

The Government shall furnish available drawings and related engineering and property information to the Contractor within sixty (60) days of contract award. Such available drawings of the wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) may not be comprehensive. Drawings and related property information shall include, but not be limited to, wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) facilities and distribution lines and related system components. The Contractor shall thereafter incorporate the entire privatized wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) into an automated Geographical Information System (GIS) compatible with the Government system within six (6) months of receipt of the Government furnished information. GIS system being utilized by Government is GEOSYNC and drawings are in AUTOCAD format. Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations and treatment facilities shall be included in the GIS system. (delete) Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment facilities, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, culverts, and storm water pipes shall be included in the GIS system. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) Information shall include, but not be limited to, sewer and storm water pipe lines sizes, materials, and age, manhole type, materials, age, and invert elevations, lift station pipe sizes, materials, age and invert elevations, valve sizes, materials and age, lift station pump sizes, materials and age, emergency generators information, culvert sizes and materials, and treatment plant information. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) The Contractor shall maintain "as-built" drawings for all facilities and related system components installed and/or modified and update the Government GIS system within ninety (90) days after installation/modification. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may inspect and copy such drawings and the Contractor shall provide available to the Government.

J32.4 Current Service Arrangement

The U.S. Army currently provides wastewater collection and treatment service for Fort Knox and the City of Muldraugh. Current service agreement with City of Muldraugh shall remain in affect for a period of one year after award. At that time a new agreement may be negotiated. Other treatment services to be provided include treatment of waste from Field Latrines and grey water placed in system at Septic Receiving Station by contractors and units, treatment of Landfill Leachate placed by contractor in Burke Motor Park Manhole, and treatment of cooked grease from dining facilities and soil from car wash placed on drying beds by contractors. The treated wastewater is discharged into Mill Creek under a Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit # KY 0002917.

J32.5 Secondary Metering

There are currently no requirements for secondary metering of wastewater included in this contract. Any future wastewater secondary metering requested by the Government will be IAW C.3, Future Secondary Meters.

J32.6 Monthly Submittals

In addition to the submittal requirements from Clause H.5, the Contractor shall provide the Government monthly submittals for:

- 1. Invoicing (IAW G.2) for the previous months services. The Contractor's invoice shall be prepared in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer. Monthly invoices shall be submitted to Directorate of Base Operation Support, Engineer and Services Division, Building 1110, Fort Knox, KY 40121.
- 2. Monthly interruption report for the previous month. The Contractor's monthly interruption report shall be prepared in the format presented in Attachment 1.
- 3. System Efficiency Report. If required by Clause C.3 the Contractor shall submit a system efficiency report in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer.

J32.7 Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) Projects

IAW C.3, Utility Service Requirement, only an Infiltration and Inflow Study has been implemented by the Government for managing and monitoring I&I.

Roy F. Weston, Inc. conducted an Infiltration and Inflow Study for the U.S. Army Fort Knox Base in November 1998. The study's scope was to identify sources of infiltration and inflow in the Base's wastewater collection system. Infiltration is defined as water originating from rainfall or groundwater seepage flowing into the wastewater collection system through cracks in pipes and separated pipe joints. Inflow is defined as water being contributed to the wastewater collection system from connected housing sump pumps, storm sewers and roof drains.

For the purpose of the study, the entire base wastewater collection system was divided into ten distinct drainage basins. The study included the inspection of 50 manholes and dry and wet weather flow monitoring throughout the entire wastewater collection system. During the flow monitoring, the flow meters were checked for accuracy and reliability once per day.

Manhole inspection indicated that most manholes had cracked offset rings and some pipe to manhole connections were also cracked. Both of these conditions can result in significant infiltration. The flow

monitoring indicated, that all basins except one had no significant I&I sources. One drainage basin exhibited I&I of between 1,500 to 2,000 gpd/idm.

Weston, Inc.'s major recommendations were to repair cracked offset rings and pipe to manhole connections and to investigate the one drainage basin with the highest I&I for the location of pipe cracks and non-wastewater connections. A copy of I & I report will be available for viewing during solicitation process and will be provided to successful offeror.

J32.8 Service Area

IAW Clause C.4, Service Area, the service area is defined as all areas within the installation boundaries. Fort Knox has a total area of approximately about (delete) 170 square miles. The northern boundary of the installation is the Ohio River and the town of Cupio. On the east west (delete), the installation extends to Beech Grove and Lebanon Junction. The south is bounded by highway 313 and Radcliff, while the western eastern (delete) boundary is Rock Haven and Red Hill.

J32.9 Off-Installation Sites

There is only one off-installation site, which is the City of Muldraugh. The City is located approximately one (1) mile north of the U.S. Army base and has an approximate total (delete) population of 1,376. The requirement for sewage services is part of and associated with this scope. The City of Muldraugh maintains the sewer system to the end of the force main.

J32.10 Specific Transition Requirements

IAW Clause C.17, Transition Plan, **Table 7** lists service connections and disconnections required upon transfer, and **Table 8** lists the improvement projects required upon transfer of the Fort Knox wastewater collection and treatment system. Other transition requirements include development of a modified pretreatment program including reassigning of specific duties and reporting requirements.

TABLE 7

Service Connections and Disconnections Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Location	Description	
None Identified		
TABLE 8 System Improvement Wastewater System U		
Project Location	Project Description	
None Identified		

FORT KNOX WASTEWATER SYSTEM PRIVATIZATION

FOR	Entire	Area	Served
-----	--------	------	--------

P.S.C. Ky. No. ____1___

Tariff for

HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT No. 1

of

1400 Rogersville Road, Radcliff, Kentucky, 40160

Providing Sewer Service For

U. S. Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky and

Portions of Hardin and Meade Counties as included in Additional Territory Amended by the Judge Executive of Hardin County in 2000

> Excluding the incorporated city limits of the City of Radcliff, Kentucky

> > Filed with the

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION of KENTUCKY

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

ISSUED BY: ______, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky

FOR <u> </u>	Entire Area	Served
P.S.C. Ky	y. No	1
Orig	inal Sheet	No. <u>1</u>

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

(N)

- 1. <u>Applicability</u>: These rules and policies apply to United States Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky ("Government") as the initial wastewater customer of the Hardin County Water District No. 1 ("District") and will be in affect until changed and approved by the District's Board of Commissioners and the Kentucky Public Service Commission ("PSC"). Other rules, policies and levels of service which may be required by the PSC and are available from the PSC offices (phone 1-800-772-4636 or TDD at 1-800-648-6056) or may be reviewed upon request at the District offices.
- 2. <u>Services Provided:</u> The District has agreed and is required to provide sewer services in response to the Government's request for proposals to divest ownership, maintenance and operations of both sanitary and storm sewer facilities. Said request was issued in September, 2001 by the Defense Energy Support Center ("DESC"). After review of bids received, the Government and the District negotiated and entered into a Utility Service Contract ("Contract"), executed on September 30, 2004, awarding the bid to the District and providing for the District to take over ownership and operations of all included facilities and utility operations. The Contract sets forth the terms under which the District will provide service, and the agreed rates which will be charged to the Government.
- 3. <u>Area Served:</u> The service area shall include the U. S. Armor Center & Fort Knox, Kentucky, as described specifically in an Easement and Bill of Sale document provided by the Government to the District as part of the Contract and also may include portions of Hardin and Meade Counties as included in Additional Territory Amended by the Judge Executive of Hardin County in 2000, but excludes the present and future incorporated city limits of the City of Radcliff, Kentucky.
- 4. **Future Customers:** The District may in the future provide sewer utility services also to customers, entities or communities off post (which is provided for in the Contract) in Hardin and Meade Counties.

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

i Blue ISSUED BY: Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky

, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

FOR _	Entire Area	Se	rved
P.S.C.	Ky. No	1	
O	riginal Sheet		No. <u>2</u>

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

(N)

5. **<u>Rates and Charges:</u>** All the terms, services provided, rates, responsibilities of District and process for future rate adjustments have been negotiated and agreed to in the Contract signed and executed on September 30, 2004. The agreed to rates for the Government, being the initial and only customer of the District, are as follows;

SERVICES REQUIRED / SUPPLIED	AGREED MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
Fixed monthly charge for the first 36 months of Contract for District to provide all <u>sanitary sewer services</u> as required in the Contract under Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications and Work Statement</i> .	\$213,659
Initial Monthly Capital Improvement Surcharge for the first 24 months to provide all <u>initial capital upgrades</u> as required and agreed to in the Contract	\$58,995
Initial Monthly Capital Improvement Surcharge for first 24 months to design and install an <u>Ultraviolet Disinfection System</u> as required and agreed to in the Contract	\$19,170
Fixed monthly charge for first 36 months of Contract for District to provide all <u>storm water sewer services</u> as required in the Contract under Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications and Work Statement</i> .	\$33,811
Monthly Credit for 1 month for Purchase Price of both sanitary and storm water utility systems	(\$2.00)

- 6. <u>Future Rate Adjustments</u>: All rates and charges shall remain in affect for the number of months shown above, beginning on October 1, 2004. As agreed in the Contract, future rate increases may only be allowed after the number of initial months has passed, and then the frequency and method for rate adjustments will be according to the terms agreed in the Contract.
- 7. <u>Applicable and Executed Contract:</u> The contract which has been agreed to and executed is attached as ATTACHMENT A and is made part of this tariff as if fully set forth herein.

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

i Blue **ISSUED BY:**

Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky

_, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

FOR <u>Entire Area Served</u> P.S.C. Ky. No. <u>1</u> <u>Original Sheet</u> No. <u>3</u>

Hardin County Water District No. 1

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE: GENERAL RULES AND POLICIES

ATTACHMENT A

(Follows this sheet)

DATE OF ISSUE January 1, 2005

i Blue

ISSUED BY: ______ Hardin County Water District No. 1, Radcliff, Kentucky

_____, Mr. Jim Bruce, General Manager

DEFENSE ENERGY SUPPORT CENTER UTILITIES PRIVATIZATION CONTRACT SP0600-04-C-8275



HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #1

UTILITY SERVICE CONTRACT for

WASTEWATER and STORM WATER UTILITY SYSTEM FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY

				I THIS	CONTRA	ACT IS	A RATED ORDE	R	RATING	PAGE OF	PAGES
AWAD		NTD	ACT .	UND	ER DPAS	115 (78	7 1601			ince or	FAUES
AWARD/CONTRACT 2. CONTRACT (Proc. Inst. Ident.) NO.									1	52	
SP0600-04-C-8275				1	CTIVE D		" Incontrolocomise Request/PROJECT NO.				
				£			K 20C SP0600-01-R-0121				
Defense Energy Support Center CODE SP0600				600	^{6.}	6. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than liem 6) CODE W91QF5					
8725 John J. Kingm			e 3830				Contract	Admin	istration Div., DB	OS A-76 Div	v. Chief
Fort Belvoir, VA 22	2060-62	222					SFCA-S				
Buyer: Benita Jacks							Bldg. 11	09 Sixt	h Avenue, Fort Kn	ox, KY 4102	21-5000
Phone: (703)767-94	107	Email	: Benita.Jackson@dl	<u>la.mil</u>			Phone:5($\log OT$	icer: Steven J. Fri	es	
7. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CO	NTRACTO	OR (No. s	rest county state and 71P Co	(ala)			1 10110.50		8043 Email: Steve	n.Fries(a)kno	<u>)x.army.mil</u>
Hardin Coun				<i>uc)</i>					8. DELIVERY		
1400 Rogers			50100 // 1						FOB ORIGIN		(See below)
Radcliff, KY	40160)							9. DISCOUNT FOR PROM	PT PAYMENT	
Duns: 130-4			CAGE:								
									10. SUBMIT INVOICES	ITEM	
CODE				FACI	LITY COD	DE			ADDRESS SHOWN IN: G2	► Intern	
11. SHIP TO/MARK FOR			CODE				PAYMENT WI	TT DE MA	1		
				L		۳.	U.S. Army			L	
							ATTN: A	TZK-OS	SC (Tom Hutchins)		
							Bldg 1110	-B			
							Fort Knox,	KY 40	121		
13. AUTHORITY FOR USING O	THER FL	JLL AND	O OPEN COMPETITION:			14	ACCOUNT	INC AND	O APPROPRIATION I		
10 U.S.C. 2304(c)()		41 U.S.C. 253(c)()		Se	e Section	G	DAFFROPRIATION L	DATA	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·											
15A. ITEM NO. 0001			15B. SUPPLIES/S			ISC. QUANTITY ISD. UNIT ISE. UNIT PRICE ISF. AMO			SF. AMOUNT		
0001			Wastewater Collectio	on Sys.							
0002			Storm Water Collection	on Sys	i.						
			(See attached pages)	-							
							AMOUNT		TRACT	▶ \$73.76	4,920.00
(*)	SEC.		DESCRIPTION	16.			F CONTEN	ГS			
		THE SO	CHEDULE		PAGE(S)	<u>)(~)</u>	SEC.		DESCRIPTION		PAGE(S)
x			ATION/CONTRACT		1	TXT	I CONTR	ACT CI	PART II - CONTRAC	T CLAUSES	
X	B SI	UPPLIE	S OR SERVICES AN	D	3	1~1	PART III	LISTO	F DOCUMENTS, EXH	UDITE AND O	29
<u>x</u>	C D	ESCRI	PTION/SPECS./WORI	ĸ	9	X	J LIST OF	ATTAC	CHMENTS	IBITS AND U	THER ATTACH.
X X	D PA	ACKAC	JING AND MARKING	G	21		PA	RT IV -	REPRESENTATIONS	AND INSTRU	ICTIONS
<u>x</u>	E IN F DI	SPECT	TION AND ACCEPTA	NCE	22	$\downarrow \downarrow$	K REPRES	SENTAT	ONS, CERTIFICATIO	INS	-
X	GCC	ONTRA	RIES OR PERFORMA	INCE	23	+	AND OT	THER ST	ATEMENTS OF OFFI	ERORS	-
X	H SP	PECIAL	CONTRACT		24 26	╉╌╂	L INSTRS M EVALU	ATION F	S., AND NOTICES TO	OFFERORS	•
			NTRACTING OFFIC	TER W			FTE ITEM	17 00	ACTORS FOR AWAR	ω	·
17. X CONTRACTOR	'S NEC	TIA	TED AGREEMENT	10							
required to sign this document	and retu	<i>an</i> 2	contes to insuing offic	a) Ca		18. Nun					Your offer on Solicitation
identified above and on any con	tinuation	r perform	m all the services set for for the consideration state	th or oil	herwise	mad	e by you which	h addition	or changes are set forth	in full shows in t	the additions or changes hereby accepted as to the
ingina and congations of the part	ies to the	s contrac	t shall be subject to and a		the state of the s	cons	ists of the follo	wing docu	ments: (a) the Governme	us award consum	imates the contract which ind your offer, and (b) this
following documents: (a) this provisions, representations, ce	nuncatio	ns. and	specifications as an	, and (e attach	c) such	awa	rd/contract. No	further co	ntractual document is nece	ssary.	ka your offer, and (b) thus
incorporated by reference herein.	(Attachi	ments an	e listed herein.)		~~ ~						
19A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGN	ER (Typ	e or prin	U)			20A.	NAME OF CON	TRACTIN	G OFFICER		
	JAMES BRUCE						BENITA	C. JAC	KSON		
General Manager 19B. NAME OF CONTRACTOR				100 -			Contraction	ng Offic	cer		
	D	>		19C. DA SIGNED	TE	208. 0	UNITED STATE	S OF AME	RICA 20	C. DATE SIGNED)
TEAN	TAMAN AMAGE 30-5EP				EP	ÍL.	· · /-	\wedge		~ 0	1
(Signature of per	son autho	Vized to	en	200		1-4	rita	U.b		30 Ser	xt. 2004
1					-/	_	(Signature	of Contrac	ing Officer)		*
NSN 7540-01-152-8	069						26-107	(/		oval 2700-0042
(REV. 4-85) PREVIOUS EDITIO		101 0							SI	ANDARD FOR	M 26
• 86 ¥1003 2D110	AN UNUS	MDLE				Con	puter Generated			cribed by GSA	
									FAF	t (48 CFR) 53.214(2)

Preamble

Hardin County Water District No. 1 (Hardin County's) original proposal dated May 30, 2002 in response to the Request for Proposal (RFP) SP0600-01-R-0121 for privatization of the Fort Knox wastewater and storm water utility systems and proposal revisions dated March 25, 2003, December 12, 2003, March 12, 2004, and August 30, 2004 along with all applicable price schedules and technical attachments is hereby accepted. Correspondence dated December 5, 2003, January 21, 2004, August 23, 2004, and August 24, 2004 is incorporated by reference into this contract award.

Hardin County shall assume ownership, operation and maintenance of the Wastewater and Storm Water Systems at Fort Knox, Kentucky. Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrades, and improvements to the utility system. These services shall be provided in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained explicitly in this contract or incorporated by reference, to include the applicable Army Easement for Fort Knox. The Easement will be processed through the conjunction of the Corps of Engineers and Fort Knox Real Estate Office.

As a utility regulated y by the Commonwealth of Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC), Hardin County submitted a tariff rate for the wastewater and storm water utility systems. The price set forth herein in Section B will be fixed for the 1st three years of the contract. Hardin County will not seek an increase in the tariff rate during that period. Any subsequent increase must be approved by the PSC.

Because the prices for services provided under this contract are based on a regulated tariff, the solicitation provisions implementing price redetermination under FAR 52.216-5 shall not apply.

After the contract between the government and the City of Muldraugh has expired, Hardin County will negotiate a new agreement with the Muldraugh. The cost will be based on the percentage of flow received from Muldraugh versus the government. The charge to the government after the first year will be reduced by the amount that is charged to Muldraugh.

This contract is contingent on approval by the PSC. Hardin County will submit the signed contract, including the proposed tariff rate, to the PSC for approval. The PSC will then have 30 days to either accept or reject the contract as submitted. If PSC approval is not obtained within 60 days, the contract may be terminated without cost to either party. In such event, neither party will have any financial or performance obligation to the other.

The Service Contract Act does not apply to this contract in accordance with the statutory exemption for public utilities.

Table of Contents

CONTRACT	1
PREAMBLE	IV
SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/COSTS	4
B.1 CLAUSES AND PROVISIONS	4
B.2 GENERAL	
B.3 SYSTEMS PRIVATIZED	
B.4 ALTERNATE PRICE PROPOSAL	
B.4.1 Alternate Price Proposal	
B.4.2 Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals	
B.4.2.1 Sub-CLIN AA: Applicable Tariff(s)	
B.4.2.2 Sub-CLIN AB: Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price	6
DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/WORK STATEMENT	7
C.1 PRECEDENCE	.7
C.2 SCOPE AND PURPOSE	
C.2 General	
C.2.2 Statutory Directive	
C.2.3 Utility Service Providers	
C.2.4 Utility Systems	
C.2.5 Current Service Arrangement	8
C.3 REQUIREMENT	8
C.3.1 Utility Service Requirement	8
C.3.2 Performance Standards	
C.3.3 Metering	8
C.3.3.1 Future Meters	
C.3.4 Energy and Water Efficiency and Conservation	9
C.3.5 Energy/Water Commodity Supply	
C.4 SERVICE AREA	9
C.4.1 Temporary Connections	9
C.4.2 Use of Distribution Systems to Serve Areas Outside the Installation Service Area	
C.4.3 Joint Use	
C.4.3.1 Government Use:	
C.4.3.2 Commercial Use:	
C.5 UTILITY SYSTEM OWNERSHIP, EMPLOYEES, AND SECURITY	
C.5.1 Utility System Ownership	
C.5.1.1 Transfer of Title	
C.5.1.2 Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment	
C.5.1.3 Placement of Utility System	
C.5.1.4 Contractor Facilities	
C.5.1.5 Record Drawings C.5.1.6 Disposition of Removed or Salvaged Materials	11
C.5.1.6 Disposition of Removed of Salvaged Materials	
C.5.2.1 Personnel Appearance and Identification	
C.5.2.1 Personner Appearance and Identification	
C.5.2.2 Employee Certification	12
C.5.2.4 Controlled Access Areas	
C.5.2.5 Listing of Employees and Subcontractors	
C.5.3 Contractor Vehicles	
C.5.4 Contractor Radios	
C.6 ACCESS TO THE UTILITY SYSTEM	

C.7 RESPONSE TO SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS AND CONTINGENCIES	
C.8 REPAIR RESPONSE NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES	
C.9 COORDINATION OF WORK	
C.9.1 Routine Work	
C.9.2 Service Requests	
C.9.3 Connections and Disconnections	10
C.9.4 Scheduled Utility Service Interruptions	
C.9.5 Excavation Permits	
C.9.6 Underground Utility Location	13 12
C.9.7 Coordination Meetings	
C.9.8 Exercises and Crisis Situations Requiring Utility Support	+1۱۲ ۱۸
C.10.1 Permit Compliance	14
C.10.2 Work in Environmentally Sensitive Areas	14
C.10.3 Environmental Impact Assessments	
C.11 UPGRADES AND RENEWALS AND REPLACEMENTS	
C.11.1 General.	
C.11.2 Capital Ungrades and Panewals and Depletement	
C.11.2 Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement	
C.11.2.1 Initial Capital Upgrades	
C.11.2.2 Future Capital Upgrades	
C.11.2.3 Renewals and Replacements	15
C.11.2.4 Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan	15
C.11.2.5 Capital Upgrades	16
C.11.2.6 Renewals and Replacements	
C.11.2.7 Requirements and Standards	16
C.11.2.8 Connections and Disconnections	16
C.12 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE	
C.12.1 Quality Management Plan	16
C.13 OPERATIONAL TRANSITION PLAN	16
C.13.1 Performance Start Date	17
C.13.2 Connection Requirements	17
C.13.3 New Meter Requirements	17
C.13.4 Permits and Procedures	17
C.13.5 Inventory and Transfer Requirements	17
C.13.5.1 Inventory and Transfer of Facilities and Fixed Equipment	17
C.13.5.2 Inventory and Transfer of Non-fixed Equipment, Spare Parts, and Personal Pro	perty
C.13.5.3 Transfer of Manuals and Records	
C.13.5.4 Joint Inventory	
C.13.6 Initial Meter Readings	17
PACKAGING AND MARKING	18
INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	10
DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE	20
F.1 CONTRACT TERM	20
F.2 COMMENCEMENT OF SERVICE	20
F.3 EXTENSION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE PERIOD	
F.4 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	20
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA	31
G.1 DFARS 252.201-7000: CONTRACTING OFFICER'S REPRESENTATIVE (DEC 1991)	
G.2 SUBMISSION AND PAYMENT OF INVOICES	
G.3 SERVICE CHARGE ADJUSTMENT	22
G.3.1 Schedule B-2	22

SPECIAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS	23
H.1 MOBILIZATION AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES	23
H.2 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	23
H.2.1 Insurance Certificate	23
H.2.2 Types of Insurance	23
H.2.2.1 General Liability	23
H.2.2.2 Automobile Liability	
H.2.2.3 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability	23
H.2.3 General	
H.3 CATASTROPHIC LOSS	24
H.4 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS	24
H.5 NOTIFICATION	
H.7 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES	24
H.8 CONTRIBUTION IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION (CIAC) TAX LIABILITY	24
H.9 ACCOUNTING FOR CAPITAL UPGRADES/PURCHASE PRICE	24
H.9.1 Initial Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, Upgrades and Renewals and	
	24
H.9.2 Future Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, Upgrades and Renewals and	
Replacements)	
H.9.3 Recoverable Portion of the Purchase Price	25
CONTRACT CLAUSES	26
I.1 FAR 52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998)	26
1.2 FAR CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	26
I.3 DFARS CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	
I.4 CLAUSES NOT APPLICABLE TO ENTITIES SUBMITTING PRICES SET BY LAW OR REGULATION	
(INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE)	
1.5 CLAUSES APPLICABLE TO ENTITIES SUBMITTING PRICES SET BY LAW OR REGULATION	30
I.6 OTHER CLAUSES	
FAR 52.222-42: Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires (May 1989)	
FAR 52.244-6: Subcontracts for Commercial Items (April 2003)	31
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS	32

•

SECTION B Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs

B.1 Clauses and Provisions

Clauses and provisions from the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) and its supplements are incorporated in this document by reference and in full text. Those incorporated by reference have the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

B.2 General

Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrades, and improvements to these utility systems. These services shall be provided in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained in this solicitation or incorporated by reference.

B.3 Systems Privatized

The contract line item numbers (CLINs), shown in schedule A, represent the utility systems included in this contract for privatization:

SCHEDULE A

Utility System Contract Line Item Numbers

CLIN	Installation	Utility System
0001	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Wastewater Collection System
0002	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Storm Water Collection System

B.4 Alternate Price Proposal

B.4.1 Alternate Price Proposal

The Offeror shall complete a schedule B-2 for each utility system included in the proposal if proposing established or special tariff(s), schedule(s) and rate(s).

SCHEDULE B-2

Utility Service Payment by the Government

Waste Water Utility System	
vvasie vvaler Oliniy System	
SUPPLIES/SERVICES	TARIFF/MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
Fixed Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff</i>) The Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement</i> .	\$213,659.00**
Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price).	(\$1.00)
Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge \$58,995.00 for 24 months	\$58,995.00
Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge (UV Disinfection) \$19,170.00 for 24 months	\$19,170.00
	Fixed Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff</i>) The Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with Section C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement</i> . Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, <i>Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price</i>). 1.00 Monthly Credit for 1 month. Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge \$58,995.00 for 24 months Initial Capital Improvement Surcharge (UV Disinfection)

Fort Knox, Kentucky

Fort Knox, Kentucky

Storm Water Utility System	
	1
SUPPLIES/SERVICES	TARIFF/MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE
ked Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff)</i> the Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with action C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement</i> . ^{a.}	\$33,811.00**
onthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, onthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price). 00 Monthly Credit for 1 month.	(\$1.00)
	ted Monthly Charge (see B.4.2.1, <i>Applicable Tariff</i>) e Contractor shall provide utility service in accordance with ction C, <i>Descriptions, Specifications, and Work Statement</i> . ^{a,} posthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price (see B.4.2.2, ponthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price).

Item	Estimated Cost
Permit Transfer (from Army to District)	\$30,000
RADIO TELEMETRY AT 8 LIFT STATIONS AND SCADA AT PLANT	\$197,126
GIS Mapping of Sewer and Storm Water System	\$166,000
SSES and I/I Study, including Flow Monitoring, Smoke Testing, Line Cleaning and TV Inspection	\$300,000
Design of Improvements and Inspection	\$150,000
Sewer Line Repairs (estimated at 35 dig-down repairs and some line replacement)	\$200,000
236 Manhole Repairs (Basins 2 and 8) 100 Manhole Repairs in Other Basins	\$244,400
Facilities Plan for State	\$48,350
NEPA Compliance	\$35,000
Change from Gas Chlorine to Bleach at Plant	\$20,000
Miscellaneous Lift Station Repairs and Equipment	\$25,000
TOTAL	\$1,415,870

B.4.2 Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals

B.4.2.1 Sub-CLIN AA: Applicable Tariff(s)

The offeror shall propose a tariff rate or rates no less favorable than that offered to similarly situated utility customers. The offeror shall specify each proposed tariff and the buildings to which it applies (see L.7, *Proposal Preparation Instructions - Volume IV: Price Proposal*).

The total monthly price due to Hardin County will be the sum of the amount due under the Applicable Tariff(s), the recoverable portion of the purchase price as defined in paragraph H.9.3, *Recoverable Portion of the Purchase Price*, and listed in the price proposal, and capital upgrades, as defined in paragraph H.9.1, *Initial Capital Upgrades*, and listed in the price proposal.

B.4.2.2 Sub-CLIN AB: Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price

Monthly Credit as Payment for Purchase Price: The monthly credit is the monthly portion of the purchase price which will be credited to the Government over the number of months proposed by the offeror. The purchase price is the product of the monthly credit multiplied by the number of months the Government will receive the credit. (Sub-CLIN AB). The credit will be applied to the fixed monthly charge, as defined in Sub-CLIN AA.

SECTION C Description/Specifications/Work Statement

C.1 Precedence

FAR clause 52.215-8, Order of Precedence - Uniform Contract Format. Any inconsistency in this solicitation or contract shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (a) The Schedule (excluding the specifications). (b) Representations and other instructions. (c) Contract clauses. (d) Other documents, exhibits, and attachments. (e) The specifications.

C.2 Scope and Purpose

C.2 General

Hardin County shall furnish all necessary labor, management, supervision, permits, equipment, supplies, materials, transportation, and any other incidental services required for the complete ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, upgrade, and improvement of these utility systems. Hardin County will provide these services in accordance with all terms, conditions, and special contract requirements, specifications, attachments, and drawings contained in this solicitation or incorporated by reference. This contract does not include the purchase of commodities.

C.2.2 Statutory Directive

The conveyance of the utility systems are authorized by and conducted under 10 USC § 2688. The conveyance of the utility systems is not an acquisition and therefore is not subject to the FAR and its supplements. The acquisition of utility services is an acquisition and will be governed by the FAR and its supplements.

C.2.3 Utility Service Providers

Hardin County shall assume ownership of Government utility system(s) identified herein and provide related utility service(s). This includes, but is not limited to, the obligation to ensure adequate and dependable utility service(s) to all facilities and equipment served.

Services provided shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as they may be amended from time to time, including those requirements relating to health, safety and the environment. Hardin County shall modify its service practice as necessary to accomplish such compliance.

If a change in the service requirement necessitated by such compliance constitutes reasonable cause for an adjustment to the service charge, the charge will be adjusted in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt 1, Changes - Fixed Price or FAR 52.241-7 Changes in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services as applicable.

C.2.4 Utility Systems

The following attachments are included in Section J and are herein referred to as utility-specific attachments. Each utility-specific attachment provides details specific to each Installation utility system and requirement. Upon contract award(s), the appropriate attachments will be incorporated into the contract and the others will be removed.

C.2.5 Current Service Arrangement

The utility-specific attachments (Section J) describe the current service arrangement for each utility service and define specific requirements.

C.3 Requirement

C.3.1 Utility Service Requirement

Hardin County shall provide reliable and dependable utility service to each Government or tenant connection within the service area (see C.4, *Service Area*) 24 hours each and every day. Hardin County shall be responsible for providing capital investments and all other resources required to own, maintain, and operate its utility system(s) in a safe and reliable condition and to meet all the requirements listed herein.

This contract does not include the purchase of commodities.

Hardin County shall obtain and maintain current any and all licenses, permits, or certifications necessary to own, maintain, and operate its utility system(s). Access to its utility systems will be as specified in paragraph C.6, *Access to the Utility System*.

C.3.2 Performance Standards

Unless otherwise provided for in this contract, Hardin County shall perform its required service(s) in accordance with industry-standard construction, operations, maintenance, management, environmental, safety and other relevant standards, that apply to similarly situated utility service customers whose service characteristics are comparable to the service characteristics of the Installation.

Hardin County shall comply with all applicable Federal, state and local laws/regulations and installation specific requirements, as defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J), in performing its duties under the contract(s). Hardin County shall identify and incorporate standards and specifications not established by this statement of work in the Operations and Maintenance Plan, Section C.12, *Operations and Maintenance*. Hardin County shall modify its service practices as applicable when applicable Federal, state, or local laws/regulations are changed or new ones are enacted.

C.3.3 Metering

Hardin County shall be responsible for reading, maintaining, and calibrating all meters on the utility system(s), including those additional meters identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42) to be installed by Hardin County. Those additional meters shall be installed within the transition period defined in paragraph C.13, *Operational Transition Plan*. The Government will identify in Section J42 any meters on the systems that Hardin County will not be required to read, maintain and calibrate.

All costs for providing, installing, reading, reporting, and maintaining the meters shall be the responsibility of Hardin County. Calibration of meters shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations and any applicable regulations that govern meter calibration.

Readings from each meter will be provided to the Government on a monthly basis. Meter reading reports shall be submitted to the recipient identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42).

C.3.3.1 Future Meters

Hardin County shall provide, install, read, maintain, and calibrate meters requested by the Government for any purpose throughout the contract period. Installation of and responsibility for future meters (not on the systems at the time of conveyance or identified for installation as part of the service contract) may constitute reasonable cause for a service charge adjustment. Any service charge adjustment as a result of these actions will be in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price*.

C.3.4 Energy and Water Efficiency and Conservation

Hardin County shall strive to provide energy- and water-efficient systems. The Government has an established program for conducting and implementing energy- and water-saving and conservation projects to reduce utility usage and costs. Some of these have resulted in the Government entering into long-term financing arrangements with non-government entities. The utility-specific attachments (Section J42) identify any such energy- and water-savings projects that are currently in place for the specific utility system.

Hardin County agrees to use its best efforts to ensure that Hardin County's actions will not negatively impact these projects. Additionally, the Government reserves the right to enter into any future energyand water-savings projects with the goal of reducing Government costs. Hardin County will facilitate the implementation of any such future energy- and water-savings projects.

Government will provide natural gas, electricity and water required to operate wastewater system and Contractor is encouraged to propose projects to the Government that will increase the overall efficiency of the utility system. These three commodities (natural gas, electricity, water) will be metered to determine usage and any savings realized by efficiency measures implemented by Hardin County. Efficiency projects shall be proposed to the Government in accordance with paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*. The Government may consider cost-savings sharing and incentives either through service charge adjustments or lump-sum payments. Service charge adjustments resulting from future efficiency projects will be handled in accordance with paragraph G.3, *Service Charge Adjustment*.

C.3.5 Energy/Water Commodity Supply

Electric, natural gas, and water commodity supply is not included in this contract. The Government retains the right to procure or supply electricity, and/or natural gas, and/or water that will be transported on the system(s) covered by this contract from any lawful source. The successful Contractor(s) may or may not be the supplier(s) of the commodity procured by the Government. The Government or Government Commodity Contractor will retain ownership of all commodities transported and distributed through Hardin County-owned systems. Hardin County shall, however, own wastewater from the point of demarcation, defined in the Easement, until final discharge.

C.4 Service Area

The service area is defined as all areas within the Government installation boundaries and any other facilities and property boundaries under the control of the Installation as defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). Within the service area and upon the Government's request, Hardin County shall provide utility service to all existing and new customers and service connections. At any time, the Administrative Contracting Officer may designate any location within the service area where utility service under this contract shall commence or be discontinued, subject to the requirements of the Easement. Any service charge adjustment as a result of these actions will be in accordance with FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price* or FAR 52.241-7 *Changes in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services* whichever may be applicable.

C.4.1 Temporary Connections

Hardin County shall extend temporary service to the Government or other contractors performing construction projects or other work on the Installation when requested by the Administrative Contracting Officer.

The Administrative Contracting Officer will identify the party responsible for reimbursing Hardin County for temporary connections or utility usage. The Administrative Contracting Officer shall be provided the following information regarding any temporary service connections:

Name of Contractor/customer

Expected duration of the connection

Description of the connection, including route and type of material

C.4.2 Use of Distribution Systems to Serve Areas Outside the Installation Service Area

Hardin County may use the utility infrastructure on the Installation to serve or benefit areas or customers outside the service area(s) only with concurrence of the Government. Compensation to the Government will be negotiated.

C.4.3 Joint Use

C.4.3.1 Government Use:

The Government may have property and equipment installed on or attached to poles, conduits, pipes, ductbanks, towers, buildings and other portions of the utility systems to be transferred. The Government reserves the right to continue to use the property to be transferred for this purpose, to enter on the transferred property to maintain, repair, operate, upgrade and replace its property and equipment, and to install new property and equipment, all at no cost to itself.

C.4.3.2 Commercial Use:

Hardin County shall enter into joint use agreements with the installation's telephone company, cable television company, and other service providers in accordance with applicable law and regulation. Hardin County shall permit joint use by other commercial service providers at no cost until the Government's current agreements with such providers expire.

C.5 Utility System Ownership, Employees, and Security

C.5.1 Utility System Ownership

C.5.1.1 Transfer of Title

A general description of the utility system(s) assets to be transferred is included in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). Prior to the transfer of title, such facilities shall continue to be owned by the Government. Transfer of title shall be accomplished by Easement. The Easement shall provide the complete list of all assets to be sold. Contractor is responsible for maintenance of all facilities/equipment/assets transferred under this easement.

An example of the Easement is provided in Section J (Attachment J42). The parties shall prepare and execute such additional documents as may be necessary to implement the ownership transfer.

C.5.1.2 Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment

Unless listed in the final Easement, government-owned tools, vehicles, and equipment used for system operations and maintenance that are not a physical part of the utility systems will remain the property of the Government.

C.5.1.3 Placement of Utility System

Hardin County shall comply with requests from the Installation regarding the placement of new or renewal utility systems either overhead or underground. Requests for placement, which differ from normal utility practice, may be compensable under FAR 52.243-1 Alt I, *Changes - Fixed Price*.

C.5.1.4 Contractor Facilities

Unless otherwise provided for in this contract, Hardin County will be permitted to locate offices, maintenance shops, and materials storage/staging areas on post, on property provided by the Government. Hardin County, at its expense, shall acquire, furnish, install, and operate and maintain all these facilities if required to provide the utility service(s) hereunder. Hardin County shall have title to all facilities it builds and equipment it installs under this contract, except as otherwise specifically provided.

Hardin County will be responsible for acquiring all utilities, janitorial services, building maintenance, and ground maintenance for these facilities. The Government may, if its capabilities permit, consent to provide certain of these services to Hardin County on a reimbursable basis.

New construction or remodeling existing facilities shall comply with the Fort Knox's architectural standards and be fully coordinated with the installation prior to beginning construction.

C.5.1.5 Record Drawings

Hardin County shall maintain record drawings for all existing and new facilities installed by Hardin County within the service area. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may use and copy such drawings. Hardin County shall provide available drawings to the Government in the form of CAD-CAM disks using the latest release software compatible with Government systems at no cost to the Government. Contractor shall provide updates concerning installation of new facilities to Government Geographical Information System (GIS) within ninety (90) days after installation.

C.5.1.6 Disposition of Removed or Salvaged Materials

The removal and disposition of facilities and materials that are not used and useful for the purpose of providing utility service(s) shall be the responsibility of Hardin County. Hardin County shall notify the Administrative Contracting Officer when removing hazardous substances in accordance with paragraph H.7, *Hazardous Substances*.

C.5.2 Employees

Hardin County shall not employ any person for work on this contract if such person is identified to Hardin County as a potential threat to the health, safety, security, general well being, or operational mission of the Installation or population.

Where reading, understanding and discussing environmental, health and safety warnings are an integral part of a contract employee's duties, that employee shall be able to understand, read, write, and speak the English language. All employees that interface with customers shall be able to speak and understand the English language.

C.5.2.1 Personnel Appearance and Identification

Hardin County's personnel shall present a neat appearance and be readily recognized as Contractor employees.

If required by the Installation, Hardin County shall ensure each employee obtains from Security Forces an identification card that shall include at a minimum the employee's name, photograph, and Contractor's name. Each Contractor employee shall follow established Installation procedures for displaying their identification card while within the boundaries of the Installation.

C.5.2.2 Employee Certification

Hardin County shall ensure that employees meet all applicable federal, state, and local certification, licensing, and health and safety requirements to perform all assigned tasks and functions as defined in this contract.

C.5.2.3 National Agency Check

Hardin County shall provide sufficient information to obtain complete and favorable National Agency Check (NAC) investigations for its employees for unescorted entrance into restricted areas on base. Normal access to the installation shall be in accordance with paragraph C.6, *Access to the Utility System.* Hardin County shall justify to the Installation Security Forces requests for NAC on Contractor employees requiring unescorted entry into restricted areas. Final approval for unescorted entry into restricted areas rests with the Installation Commander.

C.5.2.4 Controlled Access Areas

Hardin County shall apply for personnel security clearances required for performance after the contract is awarded. Personnel requiring access to secured areas or restricted areas under the control of the Installation shall comply with applicable regulations.

C.5.2.5 Listing of Employees and Subcontractors

Hardin County shall maintain a current list of employees, subcontractors, and employees of subcontractors. The list will include employee names, social security numbers, and security clearance levels. This list shall be validated by Hardin County's security manage and provided to the Administrative Contracting Officer and Contracting Officer's Representative at the contract start date. Hardin County shall provide updated lists upon change of employees and subcontractors.

C.5.3 Contractor Vehicles

All of Hardin County's vehicles shall be readily identifiable. Identification shall include displaying Hardin County's name in a clear and unobstructed location on the vehicle. Hardin County may register vehicles with Installation Provost Marshall Office, building 204, and obtain post vehicle stickers good for one year. The stickers will be renewable at the end of each year.

C.5.4 Contractor Radios

Prior to operating two-way, portable, or landmobile devices on the installation, Hardin County shall obtain approval of the Installation Communication Group by requesting an available clear frequency. Hardin County shall follow all installation procedures for operating radios on the installation IAW DFARS 252.235-7003, *Frequency Authorization*. Hardin County shall furnish their own radio equipment.

C.6 Access to the Utility System

Access to the installation and the utility systems shall be in accordance with the Easement, Section J 42.

C.7 Response to Service Interruptions and Contingencies

Hardin County shall employ sound utility practices to ensure continuous, dependable, and reliable utility service is provided to the Installation 24 hours each day and to minimize the scope and length of any service disruption. Hardin County shall ensure it is able to receive the Installation's Service Requests 24 hours a day, every day. Once a request is received, Hardin County shall respond in accordance with their Service Interruption/Contingency Plan. Hardin County shall establish and adhere to standards for responding to service requests and service interruptions. The standards shall distinguish between different categories (routine, emergency) of service requests and service interruptions and, identify response times for each category. In the event that installation specific minimum standards and/or response times are established in Section J, Hardin County shall meet or exceed said standards. Hardin County shall incorporate the Standards and operational plans for meeting the standards in a Service Interruption/Contingency Plan. The Service Interruption/Contingency Plan will be incorporated in the contract at time of award.

In the event the Installation has an Emergency Restoration Plan that prioritizes service restoration, Hardin County shall adhere to the priority list established by the plan.

C.8 Repair Response Notification Procedures

Hardin County shall provide to the Government clearly defined procedures by which installation personnel can submit service requests to Hardin County. The Government will be responsible for disseminating such procedures within the Installation. Hardin County shall provide to the Administrative Contracting Officer the name of the local Project Manager or other responsible person and an alternate with after-hours contacts' telephone numbers.

C.9 Coordination of Work

C.9.1 Routine Work

Routine work, such as the scheduled repair, replacement, or removal of system components that require service interruption, shall be coordinated with the Contracting Officer's Representative at least 2 weeks prior to commencing work unless mutually agreed to otherwise to ensure minimal impact to the mission and operations. Hardin County and Government shall each provide a single point of contact for coordination.

C.9.2 Service Requests

Hardin County shall record all service request calls, documenting the time of the call, time of service response, cause of request, and action taken (including time and date completed). Such records shall be retained for 2 years and may be reviewed by the Administrative Contracting Officer upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice.

If the request affects building operations, Hardin County shall coordinate all work with the person responsible for the building or facility. The Government will provide Hardin County with a list of Government representatives and the buildings or facilities for which they are responsible.

Emergency service requests submitted to Hardin County, or emergencies identified by Hardin County, shall be reported immediately to the Contracting Officer's Representative.

C.9.3 Connections and Disconnections

Hardin County shall coordinate any connections or disconnections with the Contracting Officer's Representative and notify Kentucky Division of Water prior to installation of new connections.

C.9.4 Scheduled Utility Service Interruptions

The Installation reserves the right to require Hardin County to postpone work requiring service interruption if such interruption might adversely affect the Installation's missions and operations. If an interruption is postponed, the parties shall coordinate a mutually acceptable alternate time for the scheduled service interruption.

C.9.5 Excavation Permits

Hardin County shall adhere to the Installation's excavation permit process.

C.9.6 Underground Utility Location

At the request of the Installation, Hardin County shall be responsible for locating underground utility system components in support of the Installation's excavation permit process. Requests for line location shall be responded to within three working days of the request and shall be at no additional cost to the Government.

C.9.7 Coordination Meetings

Hardin County shall be available for meetings as required by the Administrative Contracting Officer.

C.9.8 Exercises and Crisis Situations Requiring Utility Support

Hardin County shall respond to installation emergency and crisis situations (i.e., hostage situations, bomb threats, etc.) and related exercises that require utility support. Hardin County shall respond to these events as soon as possible after notification. Hardin County shall advise and assist the on-scene commander until the event is terminated.

C.10 Environmental Compliance

Hardin County shall comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. Hardin County shall review all applicable Installation procedures related to environmental protection including, but not limited to, pollution prevention, and spill responses.

C.10.1 Permit Compliance

Once ownership of the utility systems is transferred, Hardin County shall be the party of record for all environmental permits related to operating the systems. Thereafter, Hardin County shall be responsible for obtaining any new or revised permits needed to operate and maintain the utility systems. The Government shall remain the party of record and retain responsibility for any applicable permits prior to the transfer of ownership, as defined by paragraph C.13, *Operational Transition Plan*, and for those permits that are not transferable.

C.10.2 Work in Environmentally Sensitive Areas

Hardin County shall comply with the Installation procedures and standards for work in and around environmentally sensitive or contaminated property. Prior to accessing any environmentally sensitive areas Hardin County shall coordinate with the Contracting Officer's Representative and cognizant environmental representative for the site. The Government will provide Hardin County with updated lists showing environmentally sensitive sites and points of contact. In compliance with the Endangered Species Act, Section 7 Consultation, trees 6 inches and above at breast height can be cut only during the period of October 15 – March 31. Prior to removal of any trees Fish and Wildlife Section and Forestry Section, DBOS must be notified. Prior to any digging activities, the Post Archaeologist must be notified. Digging may require consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office.

C.10.3 Environmental Impact Assessments

Modifications of the utility systems require an assessment of the environmental impacts and the preparation of documentation in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and Army Regulation (AR) 200-2, Environmental Effects of Army Actions. Hardin County shall be responsible for conducting this assessment and preparing the NEPA document. Development of the NEPA document will be coordinated with the Environmental Management Division (EMD). The document will be reviewed and approved by Installation Environmental Coordinator prior to any construction. For Environmental Assessments and Environmental Impact Statements, Hardin County is responsible for advertisement in local and regional newspapers, and conducting public meetings per NEPA and AR 200-2. Hardin County will provide a copy of the approved NEPA document to the Contracting Officers Representative.

C.11 Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements

C.11.1 General

Hardin County shall be responsible for accomplishing all required upgrades and renewals and replacements to maintain and operate the utility system(s) in a safe, reliable condition, and to meet the requirements of this contract.

C.11.2 Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement

C.11.2.1 Initial Capital Upgrades

Initial Capital Upgrades consist of those repairs, replacement, and improvement activities of Hardin County required to bring the utility systems, as purchased, up to legally applicable regulatory standards or the standards typically maintained by Hardin County on its utility systems so that subsequent renewals and replacements will permit the long-term safe and reliable operation of the utility systems. All initial capital upgrades shall be listed in the first submittal of the Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan, as part of the offer.

C.11.2.2 Future Capital Upgrades

Future Capital Upgrades are investments in the utility systems resulting from changes in the requirements, laws or regulations. Capital upgrades may also include the implementation of new technologies.

C.11.2.3 Renewals and Replacements

Renewals and replacements are investments in the utility systems to renew or replace system components that fail or reach the end of their useful life.

C.11.2.4 Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan

Hardin County shall prepare and submit an Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan that identifies capital upgrades and major renewals and replacements Hardin County intends to accomplish. The Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacement Plan shall contain a proposed upgrade list for each of the next 5 years. The plan shall be structured as follows:

Year 1 shall include detailed upgrade information including site plans, cost estimates, upgrade schedules, an analysis of the impact of construction on installation operations and the environment, and address safety requirements.

Years 2-5 shall include upgrade lists with upgrade descriptions, order-of-magnitude estimates, and proposed site plans.

The initial Capital Upgrade and Renewals and Replacements Plan included in the proposal shall describe initial capital upgrades and initial renewals and replacements in the same detail as required for Year 1.

For offerors submitting price proposals using Schedule B-2, future capital upgrades shall be included in the Applicable Tariff rates. Accordingly, the above cost estimate information is only applicable to initial capital upgrades.

The Administrative Contracting Officer will advise Hardin County of installation development plans with the potential to impact systems requirements.

The first Annual Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall be submitted no later than May 31 of the first full fiscal year following contract award. Thereafter the plan shall be submitted no later than May 31 of each year. The Plan shall be submitted to the Administrative Contracting Officer.

C.11.2.5 Capital Upgrades

Hardin County may propose upgrades in the Annual Capital Upgrade and Renewal and Replacement Plan. The Government reserves the right to determine at its discretion, whether it will pay for any portion of proposed upgrades. Capital Upgrades required to meet legally applicable regulatory requirements that have changed during the contract term will be paid subject to the availability of funds. Approved Capital upgrades and improvements identified in the Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan will be paid, in accordance with Paragraphs H.9, *Accounting for Capital Upgrades/Purchase Price*, and B.5.2, *Service Charges*, or B.6.2, *Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals*, when accomplished. The Government reserves the right to pay for any capital upgrade as a lump-sum payment rather than by amortizing the capital upgrade costs.

C.11.2.6 Renewals and Replacements

Major renewals and replacements identified in the Capital Upgrades and Renewal and Replacement Plan will be paid in accordance with Schedule L-1 and L-3 and Paragraph B.5.2, *Service Charges*, or B.6.2, *Service Charges for Alternate Price Proposals*.

C.11.2.7 Requirements and Standards

The Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall include an assessment of any new or revised standards and clearly address planned system improvements or operational changes needed to comply with such standards.

C.11.2.8 Connections and Disconnections

The Capital Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements Plan shall include a list of anticipated new service connections, including a preliminary design and estimated construction costs. The Government will provide a list of new service requirements and anticipated disconnections.

C.12 Operations and Maintenance

Hardin County shall operate and maintain the systems so as to provide reliable, cost-effective, and compliant service over the term of the contract.

The utility system(s) shall be operated and maintained in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws/regulations and the most current version of any base-specific requirements defined in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42). At a minimum, performance standards and/or specifications shall follow best engineering and management practices consistent with the following:

Wastewater collection system(s): The most recent edition of reference materials published by the American Water Works Association (AWWA), Water Environment Federation (WEF), American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and Factory Mutual Global.

Additional standards for operations and maintenance of the utility systems the Offeror proposes.

C.12.1 Quality Management Plan

Hardin County shall establish, maintain and adhere to a Quality Management Plan to ensure the provision of reliable, cost-effective and compliant service over the term of the contract.

C.13 Operational Transition Plan

Hardin County shall propose an Operational Transition Plan describing Hardin County's plan for the transfer of the utility systems from the Government to Hardin County. The Operational Transition Plan will be incorporated in the contract at time of award.

The paragraphs below constitute the minimum requirements for the Operational Transition Plan. Installation and utility-specific transition items are listed in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42).

C.13.1 Performance Start Date

Hardin County shall propose a date on which Hardin County will assume full responsibility for the utility system(s) and for providing utility service(s). The date shall be within ninety (90) days of contract award.

C.13.2 Connection Requirements

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for the construction of new connections, if identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J), or any new connections as proposed by Hardin County. The Operational Transition Plan shall include procedures for notification of any related outages.

C.13.3 New Meter Requirements

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for installing new meters, if identified in the utility-specific attachments (Section J42) or, any new meters as may be proposed by Hardin County. All new meters required by this contract shall be installed within 30 days of the start of the performance period unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. The Operational Transition Plan shall include procedures for notification of any related outages.

C.13.4 Permits and Procedures

The Government will make initial notification to state agencies regarding the termination or transfer of environmental permits and/or other items, if needed. The Operational Transition Plan shall include a plan and schedule for the transfer or acquisition of permits as required. It is essential that advanced planning occur and Hardin County initiate the acquisition of permits within 1 week after contract award.

C.13.5 Inventory and Transfer Requirements

Checklists will be the basis for the transfer of operations to Hardin County.

C.13.5.1 Inventory and Transfer of Facilities and Fixed Equipment

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of all facilities and fixed equipment, to include building structures and installed equipment.

C.13.5.2 Inventory and Transfer of Non-fixed Equipment, Spare Parts, and Personal Property

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of personal property transferring from the Government to Hardin County.

C.13.5.3 Transfer of Manuals and Records

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a detailed plan, schedule, and checklist for the joint inventory of all operating manuals, record drawings, plans and specifications, maintenance records, and other such information available for each utility.

C.13.5.4 Joint Inventory

The joint inventory will be completed prior to the start of the performance period. The final Easement will be amended to reflect the results of the joint inventory.

C.13.6 Initial Meter Readings

The Operational Transition Plan shall include a description and schedule for joint meter readings for secondary meters in place prior to transition.

SECTION D Packaging and Marking

None

.

SECTION E Inspection and Acceptance

The following FAR Clause is Incorporated by Reference: FAR 52.246-4: Inspection of Services -- Fixed-Price (Aug 1996)

IAW FAR 46.304

Deliveries or Performance

F.1 Contract Term

Hardin County(s) agrees to furnish, and the Government agrees to purchase, utility distribution services, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this solicitation, for a period of 50 years commencing with the performance start date.

F.2 Commencement of Service

Hardin County shall complete all transitions and be prepared to provide utility services on the performance start date. The date shall be within one hundred twenty (120) days of contract award. The performance start date is defined as the expiration of the transition period (proposed by the Offeror) and the initiation of monthly utility service. The 50-year period of performance begins at the performance start date.

Phase I	Phase II	Phase III
Contract Award Date	Transition Period	Performance Start Date
30 September 2004	(Pre-performance)	
Fixed date in time Government and Offeror agree to terms and conditions of utility service contract.	Offeror proposes duration of transition period; Transition period begins upon execution of contract award.	Transition Period Ends and Performance of Utility Services begins.

F.3 Extension of Contract Performance Period

The contract performance period may be extended on a month-to-month basis for up to 6 months on the same terms and conditions upon the mutual agreement of the parties.

F.4 Clauses Incorporated by Reference

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	Date
52.242-15	Stop Work Order IAW 42.1305(b)(1)	Aug 1989
52.242-17	Government Delay of Work IAW 42.1305(d)	Apr 1984

Contract Administration Data

G.1 DFARS 252.201-7000: Contracting Officer's Representative (Dec 1991)

Contracting Officer's Representative means an individual designated in accordance with subsection 201.602-2 of the Department of Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement and authorized in writing by the Contracting Officer to perform specific technical or administrative functions.

If the Contracting Officer designates a Contracting Officer's Representative (COR), Hardin County will receive a copy of the written designation. It will specify the extent of the COR's authority to act on behalf of the Contracting Officer. The COR is not authorized to make any commitments or changes that will affect price, quality, quantity, delivery, or any other term or condition of the contract.

The Administrative Contracting Officer for this contract administration is:

Steven J. Fries, Contract Administration Div., DBOS A-76 Div. Chief SFCA-SR-KN Bldg. 1109 Sixth Avenue Fort Knox, KY 41021-5000 Ph (502) 624-8043

The Administrative Contracting Officer Representative for this contract administration is:

Bob Ender, Plants Branch Chief ATZK-OSO Bldg. 1205 Water Street Fort Knox, KY 40121-5000 Ph (502) 624-5252

G.2 Submission and Payment of Invoices

The Government will pay Hardin County for utility service through a Monthly Service Charge. Subject to the provisions set forth in Section B, utility services will be billed according to the Sub-CLIN items in schedule B-2 on a monthly basis.

Hardin County shall prepare and send one original invoice and four copies to the Installation for payment by the 25th of each month for the previous month's billing period. Invoices shall be sent to the recipient and address identified below:

US Army Garrison ATTN: ATZK-OSC (Tom Hutchins) Bldg 1110-B Fort Knox, KY 40121 Accounting and Appropriation Data:

97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.25 E04PAF2E1119MS S33181 \$495,000.00

97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.27 E04PAF2E1126MS S33181 \$318,787.48

97X4930.5CF1 001 125.07 E 25.25 E04PAF2E1102MS S33181 \$333,346.50

G.3 Service Charge Adjustment

G.3.1 Schedule B-2

Changes to regulated tariff rates will be made in accordance with Clause FAR 52.241-7, Changes in rates or terms and conditions of service for regulated services.

Special Contract Provisions

H.1 Mobilization and Other Contingencies

In the event of mobilization or other contingencies Hardin County shall promptly take whatever measures are needed to meet any new demands placed upon it, to include extended work hours and expansion of the contract work force.

Extra work effort under these circumstances may entitle Hardin County to equitable adjustment under the Changes Clause FAR 52.243-1 Alt 1, *Changes - Fixed Price.*

H.2 Insurance Requirements

Note: It is recommended that Hardin County(s) furnish a copy of the following requirements to its insurance company, in order to assure that an insurance certificate is issued meeting the minimum requirements shown.

H.2.1 Insurance Certificate

Hardin County shall deliver or cause to be delivered upon execution of this contract (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this contract) to Government a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance required by this contract.

H.2.2 Types of Insurance

During the entire period this contract shall be in effect, Hardin County shall carry and maintain and require its contractors performing work on the Premises to carry and maintain:

H.2.2.1 General Liability

Comprehensive general liability insurance on an "occurrence basis" against claims for "personal injury" including, without limitation, bodily injury, death, or property damage. Such insurance is to afford immediate protection at all times during the term of this contract. The insurance will include limits of liability in amounts approved by the Government, but not less than \$1 million in the event of bodily injury or death to any one or more persons in one accident and, not less than \$500,000 for property damage.

H.2.2.2 Automobile Liability

Comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering the operation of all automobiles used in connection with the performance of the contract in the minimum limits of \$200,000 per person, and \$500,000 per accident for bodily injury, and \$20,000 per accident for property damage.

H.2.2.3 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability

If and to the extent required by law, workers' compensation and employer's liability or similar insurance in form and amounts required by law but not less than the amount of \$100,000.

H.2.3 General

All policies of insurance which this contract requires Hardin County to carry and maintain, or cause to be carried or maintained, pursuant to this contract shall be effected under valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required under this contract, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility. All such policies of insurance shall be for the mutual benefit of Government and Contractor.

Each such policy shall provide that any losses shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of Contractor or Government or any other person; provide that no cancellation, reduction in amount, or material change in coverage thereof shall be effective until at least sixty (60) days after receipt by Government of written notice thereof; provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against Government; and be reasonably satisfactory to Government in all other respects.

Under no circumstances will Contractor be entitled to assign to any third party rights of action which Hardin County may have against the Government. The foregoing notwithstanding, any cancellation of insurance coverage based on nonpayment of the premium shall be effective upon ten (10) days' written notice to the Government. Hardin County understands and agrees that cancellation of any insurance coverage required to be carried and maintained by Hardin County under this contract will constitute a failure to comply with the terms of this contract.

H.3 Catastrophic Loss

Hardin County(s) shall propose how it plans to protect itself from a catastrophic loss (for example, an earthquake) and/or personal injury due to negligence. If Hardin County(s) has catastrophic insurance, Hardin County(s) shall provide a copy of the coverage to the Administrative Contracting Officer.

H.4 Availability of Funds

Unless otherwise authorized by Public Law or Federal Regulation, nothing contained herein shall be construed as binding the Government to expend in any one fiscal year in furtherance of the matter of the contract or to involve the Government in an obligation for the future expenditure of monies before an appropriation is made (Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. 1341.A.1).

H.5 Notification

Hardin County shall provide 120 day written notice prior to any resale, transfer, or encumbrance of the systems or any components thereof.

H.7 Hazardous Substances

Hardin County, at its expense, must comply with all applicable laws on occupational safety and health, the handling and storage of hazardous materials, and the proper handling and disposal of hazardous wastes and hazardous substances generated by its activities. Responsibility for the costs of proper handling and disposal of hazardous wastes and hazardous substances is governed by applicable law.

H.8 Contribution in Aid of Construction (CIAC) Tax Liability

The parties hereby recognize that a purchase by Hardin County of Government utility systems at less than fair market value may be treated as a CIAC and therefore taxable income to Hardin County. As a result, Hardin County may incur an associated income tax liability. Any such liability will be Hardin County's responsibility and shall not be the basis for any claim against the Government.

H.9 Accounting for Capital Upgrades/Purchase Price

H.9.1 Initial Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*)

The price of each initial capital upgrade proposed by the offeror in Schedule L-3 of the Price Proposal will be added to the Fixed Monthly Charge, for the number of months indicated, when the upgrade is put in useful service. The Fixed Monthly Charge is the monthly service charge for the relevant utility system (the utility system of which the upgrade is a part) stated in Schedule B-2.

The price for each initial capital upgrade is fixed and is not subject to renegotiation under Paragraph B.7, *Type of Contract – Price Redetermination—Prospective.* The price for each upgrade will be amortized over the term proposed by the offeror in Schedule L-3 of the Price Proposal. With every monthly invoice that includes a request for payment for a capital upgrade identified in Schedule L-3, Hardin County shall

submit an amortization schedule. The amortization schedule shall specify for each upgrade the additional monthly payment to be included in the Fixed Monthly Charge, the number of the payment (of the total payments required), and the remaining principal.

For offers using Schedule B-2, the upgrades will be paid in accordance with the method proposed by the offeror and accepted by the Government.

H.9.2 Future Capital Upgrades (reference Paragraph C.11, Upgrades and Renewals and

Replacements)

Future capital upgrades for which the Government agrees to pay in accordance with Paragraph C.11, *Upgrades and Renewals and Replacements*, will be added to the Fixed Monthly Charge for the number of months agreed upon when the upgrade is put in useful service. With every monthly invoice that includes a request for payment for such an upgrade, Hardin County will include an amortization schedule. The amortization schedule shall specify for each upgrade the additional monthly payment included in the Fixed Monthly Charge, the number of the payment (of the total payments required), and the remaining principal. For offers using Schedule B-2, the upgrades will be paid in accordance with the method proposed by the offeror and accepted by the Government.

Contract Clauses

I.1 FAR 52.252-2 Clauses Incorporated by Reference (Feb 1998)

(IAW FAR 52.107(b))

This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

The full text of a clause may be accessed electronically at these addresses:

http://farsite.hill.af.mil (All CLAUSES) and http://www.arnet.gov/far (FAR Clauses ONLY [Clauses I-11 through I-750]). (End of Clause)

I.2 FAR Clauses Incorporated by Reference

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.202-1	Definitions	2.201	Jul 2004
52.203-3	Gratuities	3.202	Apr 1984
52.203-5	Covenant against Contingent Fees	3.404	Apr 1984
52.203-6	Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Government	3.503-2	Jul 1995
52.203-7	Anti-Kickback Procedures	3.502-3	Jul 1995
52.203-8	Cancellation, Rescission, and Recovery of Funds for Illegal or Improper Activity	3.104-9(a)	Jan 1997
52.203-10	Price or Fee Adjustment for Illegal or Improper Activity	3.104-9(b)	Jan 1997
52.203-12	Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions	3.808(b)	Jun 2003
52.204-4	Printing/Copying Double-Sided on Recycled Paper	4.303	Aug 2000
52.207-3	Right of First Refusal of Employment	7.305(c)	Nov 1991
52.209-6	Protecting the Government's Interest when Subcontracting with Contractors Debarred, Suspended, or Proposed for Debarment	9.409(b)	Jul 1995
52.215-2	Audit and Records Negotiations	15.209(b)	Jun 1999
52.215-8	Order of Precedence – Uniform Contract Format	15.209(h)	Oct 1997
	See Section C.1 of contract		
52.215-11	Price Reduction for Defective Cost or Pricing Data—Modifications	15.408(c)	Oct 1997
52.215-13	Subcontractor Cost or Pricing DataModifications	15.408(e)	Oct 1997
52.215-21	Requirement for Cost or Pricing Data or Information other than Cost or Pricing	15.408(m)	Oct 1997
52.219-4	Notice of Price Evaluation for HUBZone Small Business Concerns	19.1308(b)	Jan 1999

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.219-8	Utilization of Small Business Concerns	19.708(a)	May 2004
52.219-9	Small Business Subcontracting Plan	19.708(b)	Jan 2002
52.219-9	Alternate II	19.708(b)(1)	Oct 2001
52.219-16	Liquidated Damages—Subcontracting Plan	19.708(b)(2)	Jan 1999
52.219-25	Small Disadvantaged Business participation Program-Disadvantaged Status and Reporting	19.1204(b)	Oct 1999
52.222-1	Notice to the Government of Labor Disputes	22.103-5(a)	Feb 1997
52.22 2-3	Convict Labor	22.202	Jun 2003
52.222-4	Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Overtime Compensation	22.305	Sep 2000
52.22 2- 21	Prohibition of Segregated Facilities	22.810(a)(1)	Feb 1999
52.22 2- 26	Equal Opportunity	22.810(e)	Apr 2002
52.222-35	Affirmative Action for Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era	22.1310(a)	Dec 2001
52.222-36	Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilities	22.1408(a)	Jun 1998
52.222-37	Employment Reports on Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era	22.1310(b)	Dec 2001
52.223-5	Pollution Prevention and Right-to-Know Information	23.1005	Aug 2003
52.223-6	Drug-Free Workplace	23.505	May 2001
52.223-12	Refrigeration Equipment And Air Conditioners	23.804(b)	May 1995
52.223-13	Certification of Toxic Chemical Release Reporting	23.907(a)	Aug 2003
52.223-14	Toxic Chemical Release Reporting	23.907(b)	Aug 2003
52.226-1	Utilization of Indian Organizations and Indian-Owned Economic Enterprises	26.104(a)	Jun 2000
52.227-1	Authorization and Consent	27.201-2(a)	Jul 1995
52.228 -5	Insurance-Work on a Government Installation	28.310	Jan 1997
52.229-3	Federal, State, and Local Taxes	29.401-3	Apr 2003
52.232-1	Payments	32.111(a)(1)	Apr 1984
52.232-8	Discounts for Prompt Payment	32.111(c)(1)	Feb 2002
52.232-11	Extras	32.111(d)(2)	Apr 1984

FAR Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW FAR	DATE
52.232-17	Interest	32.617	Jun 1996
52.232-18	Availability of Funds	32.705-1(a)	Apr 1984
52.2 32-23	Assignment of Claims, ALT 1	32.806(a)(1)	Jan 1986
	Prompt Payment		
52.232-25	For the purposes of this clause, the blank(s) are completed as follows: (A)(6)(I) 7 th (B)(2) 30 th	32.908(c)	Oct 2003
52.232-33	Payment by Electronic Funds TransferCentral Contractor Registration	32.1110(A)(1)	Oct 2003
52.233-1	Disputes (Alt 1)	33.215	Jul 2002
52.233-3	Protest after Award	33.106(b)	Aug 1996
52.237-2	Protection of Government Buildings, Equipment, and Vegetation	37.110(b)	Apr 1984
52.237-3	Continuity of Services	37.110(c)	Jan 1991
52.241-8	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows:	41.501(d)(2)	Feb 1995
	<u>To be determined</u> .		
52.242-1	Notice of Intent to Disallow Costs	42.802	Apr 1984
52.2 42-13	Bankruptcy	42.903	Jul 1995
52.243-1	Changes – Fixed Price - Alt I	43.205(a)(1)(2)	Aug 1987
52.244-6	Subcontracts for Commercial Items	44.403	Jul 2004
52.249-2	Termination for Convenience of the Government (Fixed Price)	43.205(a)(1)	May 2004
52.249-8	Default (Fixed Price Supply and Service)	49.504(a)(1)	Apr 1984
52.252-6	Authorized Deviations in Clauses	52.107(f)	Apr 1984
52.248-1	Value Engineering	48.201	Feb 2000

I.3 DFARS Clauses Incorporated by Reference

The use in this solicitation or contract of any Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (48 CFR Chapter 2) clause with an authorized deviation is indicated by the addition of "(DEVIATION)" after the name of the regulation.

DFARS Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
252.203-7001	Prohibition on Persons Convicted of Fraud or Other Defense-Contract-Related Felonies	DFARS 203.570-5	Mar 1999
252.203-7002	Display of DoD Hotline Poster	DFARS 203.7002	Dec 1991
252.204-7000	Disclosure of Information	DFARS 204.404-70(a)	Dec 1991
252.204-7003	Control of Government Personnel Work Product	DFARS 204.404-70(b)	Apr 1992
252.204-7004	Required Central Contractor Registration	DFARS 252.204-7304	Nov 2003
252.205-7000	Provision of Information to Cooperative Agreement Holders	DFARS 205.470-2	Dec 1991
252.209-7000	Acquisition from Subcontractors Subject to Onsite Inspection under the Intermediate-Range Nuclear Forces (INF) Treaty	DFARS 209.103-70	Nov 1995
252.209-7001	Disclosure of Ownership or Control by the Government of a Terrorist Country	DFARS 209.104-70(a)	Sep 2004
252.209-7004	Subcontracting with Firms that Are Owned or Controlled by the Government of a Terrorist Country	DFARS 209.409	Mar 1998
252.215-7000	Pricing Adjustments	IAW DFARS 215.408(1)	Dec 1991
252.219-7003	Small, Small Disadvantaged and Women-Owned Small Business Subcontracting Plan (DoD Contracts)	DFARS 219.708(B)(1)(a)	Apr 1996
252.223-7004	Drug-Free Work Force	DFARS 223.570-4(a)	Sep 1988
252.223-7006	Prohibition on Storage and Disposal of Toxic and Hazardous Materials	DFARS 223.7103(a)	Apr 1993
252.225-7031	Secondary Arab Boycott of Israel	DFARS 225.770-5	Apr 2003
252.231-7000	Supplemental Cost Principals	DFARS 231.100-70	Dec 1991
252.235-7003	Frequency Authorization	DFARS 235.071(b)	Dec 1991
252.236-7005	Airfield Safety Precautions	DFARS 236.570(b)(3)	Dec 1991
252.241-7001	Government Access	DFARS 241.501-70(b)	Dec 1991
252.242-7000	Post-award Conference	DFARS 242.570	Dec 1991
252.243-7001	Pricing of Contract Modifications	DFARS 243.205-71	Dec 1991
252.243-7002	Requests for Equitable Adjustment	DFARS 243.205-72	Mar 1998
252.247-7023	Transportation of Supplies by Sea	DFARS 247.573(b)	May 2002

I.4 Clauses not applicable to Entities Submitting Prices Set by Law or Regulation (Incorporated by Reference)

Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
52.222-41	Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended	FAR 22.1006(a)	May 1989
52.222-44	Fair Labor Standards Act and Service Contract Act – Price Adjustment (Multiple Year and Option Contracts)	FAR 22.1006(c)	Feb 2002
52.230-2	Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(a)	Apr 1998
52.230-3	Disclosure and Consistency of Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(b)(1)	Apr 1998
52.230-6	Administration of Cost Accounting Standards	FAR 30.201-4(d)	Nov 1999

I.5 Clauses Applicable to Entities Submitting Prices Set by Law or Regulation

The following FAR clauses are incorporated by reference if award is made to an entity that is subject to rate regulation by an independent regulatory body with respect to its proposal under this solicitation.

Paragraph	Clause Title	IAW	Date
52.241-3	Scope and Duration of Contract	FAR 41.501(c)(2)	Feb 1995
	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows: a. 50 years		
	b. (Wastewater and Storm Water)		
52.241-4	Change in Class of Service	FAR 41.501(c)(3)	Feb 1995
52.241-5	Contractor's Facilities	FAR 41.501(c)(4)	Feb 1995
52.241-7	Change in Rates or Terms and Conditions of Service for Regulated Services	FAR 41.501(d)(1)	Feb 1995
	For the purposes of this clause the blank(s) is/are completed as follows: <u>30 days.</u>		

I.6 Other Clauses

FAR 52.222-42: Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires (May 1989)

In compliance with the Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended, and the regulations of the Secretary of Labor (29 CFR Part 4), this clause identifies the classes of service for employees expected to be employed under the contract. This clause also states the wages and fringe benefits payable to each if they were employed by the contracting agency subject to the provisions of 5 USC 5341 or 5332.

This statement is for information only; it is not a wage determination.

EMPLOYEE CLASS MONETARY WAGE - FRINGE BENEFITS

See Attachment J41 - Federal Equivalents

FAR 52.244-6: Subcontracts for Commercial Items (April 2003)

Commercial item, as used in this clause, has the meaning contained in the clause at 52.202-1. *Subcontract,* as used in this clause, includes a transfer of commercial items between divisions, subsidiaries, or affiliates of the Contractor or subcontractor at any tier.

To the maximum extent practicable, Contractor shall incorporate, and require its subcontractors at all tiers to incorporate, commercial items or nondevelopmental items as components of items to be supplied under this contract.

Notwithstanding any other clause of this contract, the Contractor is not required to include any FAR provision or clause, other than those listed below to the extent they are applicable and as may be required to establish the reasonableness of prices under Part 15, in a subcontract at any tier for commercial items or commercial components:

52.222-26: Equal Opportunity (EO 11246)

52.222-35: Affirmative Action for Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era (38 USC 4212[a])

52.222-36: Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilities (29 USC 793)

52.247-64: Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flagged Commercial Vessels (46 USC 1241) (flow down not required for subcontracts awarded beginning May 1, 1996).

The Contractor shall include the terms of this clause, including this paragraph, in subcontracts awarded under this contract.

-END OF SECTION-

List of Attachments

TABLE J.1-1

Utility-Specific Attachments

RFP Attachment	Installation	Utility System
J32	Fort Knox, Kentucky	Wastewater and Storm Water System

Attachment J42 - Example Easement

Attachment J43 – Example Bill-of-Sale

Attachment J45 – Legislative Authority

-END OF SECTION-

ATTACHMENT J32

U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems

Table of Contents

J32 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX WA	ASTEWATER	J1
J32.1 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX OVERVIEW		J1
J32.2 WASTEWATER AND STOP SYSTEMS DESCRIPTION	RM WATER	J1
J32.3 SPECIFIC SERVICE REQUIREMENTS		J6
J32.4 CURRENT SERVICE ARRANGEMENT		J7
J32.5 SECONDARY METERING		J7
J32.6 MONTHLY SUBMITTALS		J7
J32.7 INFILTRATION AND INFLC PROJECTS	 DW (I&I)	J7
J32.8 SERVICE		J8
J32.9 OFF-INSTALLATION SITES		J8
J32.10 SPECIFIC TRANSITION REQUIREMENTS		J8

List of Tables

Table 1 - Wastewater Collections System Age	 J2
Distribution	

Table 2 - Lift Station Age.Distribution	 J3
Table 3 - Fixed	 J4
Table 4 - Spare Parts	 J5
Table 5 - Specialized Equipment and Vehicles	 J5
Table 6 - Manuals, Drawings, and Records	 J6
Table 7 - Service Connections and Disconnections	 J9
Table 8 - System Improvement Projects	 J9

J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems

J32.1 U.S. Army Fort Knox Overview

Located in north central Kentucky, Fort Knox is the home of the U.S. Army Armor Center, the U.S. Army Armor School, and the U.S. Bullion Depository. The 170 square mile post is currently under the command of the U.S. Army Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC).

American soldiers occupied Fort Knox as early as the Civil War. In 1862 the 6th Michigan Infantry constructed the first fortifications in the area. In January 1918, Congress established a field artillery training center that they named Camp Knox after Major General Henry Knox, chief of Artillery for the Continental Army during the American Revolution and later the nation's first Secretary of War. The post was closed as a permanent installation in 1922, but continued to serve until 1932 as a training center for the V Corps, for reserve officer training, Citizens Military Training Camps, and for the National Guard. In 1936 the U.S. Treasury Department began construction of the U.S. Bullion Depository. The Gold Vault was opened in 1937.

On January 1, 1932, Congress designated Camp Knox as a permanent garrison and changed the name to Fort Knox. The Armored Force School and the Armored Force Replacement Center were officially established at Fort Knox October 1, 1940. Today, Fort Knox has an on-post population of nearly 27,000 people and the post serves a total of 163,000 people including over 10,000 soldiers.

J32.2 Wastewater and Storm water Systems Description

J32.2.1 Wastewater System Fixed Equipment Inventory

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater system consists of all appurtenances physically connected to the system from the point of demarcation. Generally, the point of demarcation will be the termination of a building's service line at the collection system including the collection joint. The system may include, but is not limited to, pipelines, lift stations, manholes, and a wastewater treatment plant. The following description and inventory is included to provide the Offeror with a general understanding of the size and configuration of the system. The Offeror shall base the proposal on site inspections, information in the offeror's library, other pertinent information and the following description. Under no circumstances shall the successful Contractor be entitled to any rate adjustment based on the accuracy of the following description and inventory.

J32.2.1.1 Description

Wastewater Collection System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater collection system consists of sewer mains and service connections for disposal. The sewer mains direct sewage from both the base and the City of

Muldraugh, Kentucky to a wastewater treatment plant located on the base. The collection system on the base consists of approximately 838,979 feet of sewer mains ranging in size from 2" to 36", with 8" being the most common size. There are approximately 1,745 manholes within the base collection system.

The collection system is broken up into four individual classifications that are identified with the letters C, H, M and W followed by two numbers (e.g. C10). Letter C is an abbreviation for Capart Housing, letter H is an abbreviation for other housing, M is an abbreviation for Military and W is an abbreviation for Wherry Housing. The two numbers followed by two zeros represent block numbers (e.g. 1000 Block).

The age of the wastewater collection system ranges from 70 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups with the majority of the collection system being constructed prior to 1940.

Storm Water System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox storm water system consists of, but is not limited to, manholes, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, metal and concrete culverts, open concrete ditches, and various lengths of underground pipes ranging in size from 2 to 72 inches in diameter. Majority, but not all of these components, are shown on storm water drawing attached. See Table 3.1 for inventory of system. The age of the system components range from 50+ years to 5 years and the approximate age of various components is shown in Table 1.1.

Table 1 presents a summary of the age distribution.

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM AGE DISTRIBUTION WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX Sewer Main Number of Year Length in ft Manholes < 1950 516,807 1,205 1950 - 1989 304,547 486 101,515 54 1990 - 2000

TABLE 1

Lift Stations

The U.S. Army Fort Knox collection system includes a total of twenty (20) lift stations with sixteen (16) containing submersible pumps, three (3) containing dry pit pumps, four (4) containing grinder pumps and one (1) containing a sewage ejector.

The lift stations containing submersible pumps include pumps ranging in size from 2 to 40 hp. Fourteen (14) are identified as the following building numbers: 2389A, 2389B, 4015, 6151, 4767, 4990, 6035, 7233, 7238, 7241, 9384, 9101A, 9387 and 5543. The remaining two (2) lift stations are located at the following locations: Brave Rifles, and Camp Carlson 9101B.

The lift stations containing dry pit pumps include pumps ranging in size from 10 to 60 hp and are identified as the following building numbers: 4208, 5540 and 7873.

The sewage ejector has a capacity of 50 gpm and is identified as Bldg. 4002. Seven (7) lift stations have emergency generators as part of their system. These lift stations are identified as the following building numbers with the size of the generator in parentheses: 4002 (10 KW), 4015 (188 KW), 4208 (256 KW), 5540 (169 KW), 6151 (33 KW), 7873 (100KW), 4767 (33 KW).

The age of the lift stations ranges from 58 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups. **Table 2** presents a summary of the age distribution of the lift station structure. The equipment in the lift station has typically been replaced and is significantly newer than the date listed.

TABLE 2

LIFT STATION AGE DISTRIBUTION
WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM U.S.
ARMY FORT KNOX

Year	Number of Lift Stations
< 1950	2
1950 - 1989	10
1990 - 2000	8

Wastewater Treatment System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system consists of one 6 million-gallonsper-day (MGD) wastewater treatment plant. The wastewater treatment plant is designed for an average wastewater flow of 6 MGD, a maximum daily flow of 14 MGD and a peak wastewater flow of 18 MGD.

The wastewater treatment plant consists of the following components:

- Preliminary Treatment
 - Two Mechanical Bar Screens
 - Two Vortex Grit Removal System
 - Influent Lift Station
- Septage Receiving Station 10,000 gal capacity
- Two Extended Aeration Oxidation Ditches at 2.55 MGD capacity each with four 75 hp brush surface rotors each
- Four Secondary Clarifiers at 75' diameter and 13' SWD
- Sludge pumping includes six 15 hp return activated sludge pumps and six 5 hp waste activated sludge pumps
- Two Chlorine Contact Basins at 93,750 gal each, with a total of two chlorine gas feeders with

Dechlorination Injection System and a total of two sulfonators

Two Gravity Sludge Thickeners at 35' diameter and 13' SWD

- Two Aerobic Digesters at 65' by 65' and 17' SWD with three 150 hp Blowers and Coarse Bubble Air Diffusion
- Sludge Dewatering Facility with two Belt Press Systems, 2 m width each, polymer feeds, sludge handling pumps, and conveyor systems
- Non-potable water system capable of supplying between 250 gpm and 500 gpm.

This wastewater treatment plant handles flows from both the Base and the City of Muldraugh. Between April 1999 and March 2000, the wastewater treatment plant received an average influent flow of 3.3 MGD and a maximum daily influent flow of 13.8 MGD. In addition, plant personnel indicated that during wet weather, the influent flow into the treatment plant could be as high as 20 MGD.

Emergency Generator will be owned and maintained by Nolin RECC. Generator will be available at all times for emergency backup.

The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds will no longer be required as part of the wastewater contract. Thus any specific references to the sludge drying beds have been deleted form the solicitation.

TABLE 1.1 Storm Water Collection Age Distribution Storm Water Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Storm Water Pipe (Linear Feet)
<1950	90,000
1950 -1989	298,000
1990 - 2002	18,000

Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity.

J32.2.1.2 Inventory

Table 3 provides a general listing of the major collection system fixed assets for the U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system included in the purchase. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition without any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

FIXED INVENTORY

TABLE 3

Item	Size	Quantity	Unit	Approximate Year of Construction
Pipe	2"	3,00	Linear Feet	Various
	4"	16,300	Linear Feet	Various
	6"	250,150*	Linear Feet	Various
	8"	346,900*	Linear Feet	Various
	10"	49,629*	Linear Feet	Various
	12"	54,300	Linear Feet	Various
	15"	43,000	Linear Feet	Various
	18"	28,100	Linear Feet	Various
	20"	4,600	Linear Feet	Various
	21"	3,000	Linear Feet	Various
	24"	17,700	Linear Feet	Various
	30"	15,600	Linear Feet	Various
	36"	7,070	Linear Feet	Various
Manholes		1,745	Each	Various
Lift Stations		20	Each	Various

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

*The changes to TABLE 3 above are per amendment 0007 02/09/04. 6" pipe is reduced by 13,350 LF from 263,500 to 250,150, 8" pipe is reduced by 67,100 from 414,000 to 346,900, and 10" pipe is reduced by 2,571 from 52,200 to 49,629. Total LF is reduced to 838,979. *"Linear feet of wastewater pipes shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity."*

TABLE 3.1 Fixed Inventory Storm Water System U.S. Army Fort Knox

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.) MISC. SIZES
		(UNKNOWN LF)
2	1,904	6" X 12"
4	1,711	16" X 25"
5	1,247	16" X 29"
6	18,862	18" X 29"
8	35,209	20" X 96"
10	8,353	36" X 58"
12	97,424	2' X 2'
14	49	3' X 4'
15	40,788	4' X 4'
16	883	4' X 5'
18	51,289	4' X 6'
20	186	4' X 7'
21	10,560	4' X 8'
22	51	4' X 10'
24	43,367	4' X 12'
27	2,194	5' X 18'
28	477	8' X 8'
30	20,565	8' X 11'
PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.)	MISC. SIZES
		<u>(UNKNOWN LF)</u>
04	750	0 ELV 10
34	756	9.5' X 13'

			(UNKNOWN LF
34		756	9.5' X 13'
35		234	10' X 15'
36		10,808	
42		3,632	
48		2,527	
54		832	
60		2,872	
72		6,372	
UNKNOV	VN DIM.	10,057	
OPEN CONCRET	TE DITCHES	<u>33,721</u>	
	TOTAL	406,930	

Table 3.1 provides a general listing of the major storm water system fixed assets at Fort Knox. Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. Majority of underground pipes are clay tile, concrete with the latest installed being PVC and culverts are both concrete and corrugated metal. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition in that any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

J32.2.2 Wastewater System Non-Fixed Equipment and Specialized Tools Inventory

Table 4 lists other ancillary equipment (spare parts) and **Table 5** lists specialized vehicles and tools included in the purchase. Offerors shall field verify all equipment and tools prior to submitting a offeror. Offerors shall make their own determination of the adequacy of all equipment and tools. The successful Contractor shall provide any and all equipment, vehicles, and tools, whether included in the purchase or not, to maintain a fully operating system under the terms of this contract.

TABI	_E 4
------	------

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

SPARE PARTS

Qty	ltem	Description	Remarks
		The spare parts inventory varies on a day-to-day basis, but is estimated to be worth \$ 64,000.	
TABLE	Ξ5	SPECIALIZED EQUIPMEN	T AND VEHICL
Waste	water Syst	em U.S. Army Fort Knox	
Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT LABORATORY EQUIPMENT	
1	Ea	INCUBATOR – MODEL #MFU20F3GW	
1	Ea	11.8 REFRIGERATOR - MODEL #TB12SBB	
1	Ea	DESICCATOR	
1	Ea	TIMER – MODEL #171	
1	Ea	STEAM STERILIZER – MODEL #800V	
1	Ea	LAB OVEN – MODEL #10201C	
1	Ea	LAB LINE – MODEL #4205	
1	Ea	STILL – WALL MOUNT	
1	Ea	WATER BATH – MODEL #5D	
1	Ea	COLONY COUNTER – MODEL #3325	
1	Ea	D.O. METER – MODEL 54ARC	
1	Ea	VAC PUMP – MODEL #XX6000000	
1	Ea	BALANCES MODEL #AC100	
2	Ea	ISCO SAMPLER – MODEL #6700FR	
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT COLLEC SYSTEM EQUIPM	
1	Ea	JET RODDER AND VACUUM TRUCK	
1	Ea	FARM TRACTOR	

1	Ea	TRASH PUMP, 3" DISCHARGE, 5 HP GAS MOTOR
1	Ea	ELECTRIC EEL SEWER MACHINE AND TRAILER
1	Ea	MODEL 666 SEWER RODDER
		WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
		EQUIPMENT
1	Ea	FORKLIFT
1	Ea	TRUCK, LIGHT CUSHMAN
		PUMP, FAIRBANKS-MORSE, W-3 WATER,
1	Ea	VERTICAL TURBINE,
		3-STAGE, MODEL #7M-7000AW
1	Ea	PUMP, JOHNSTON – SERIES JT, 3-STAGE
•	Base C.C.	PROPELLER, BELTWASH, MODEL #6AC-3
1	Ea	PUMP, FLYGT, SUBMERSIBLE – 35 HP, 2250 GPM, RAW WASTEWATER, MODEL #CP-3201X-MT
		PUMP, FLYGT, SUBMERSIBLE – 5 HP,
1	Ea	DILLUTION WATER, MODEL #CP-3102
		PUMP, CHLORINE INDUCTION - MODEL SWC
1	Ea	3F
	5 .	PUMP, SULFUR DIOXIDE INDUCTION – MODEL
1	Ea	SWC 2F
1	Ea	PUMP, SUBMERSIBLE, SEWAGE, ZOELLER – 1
1		HP, 230V, MODEL #E-284C
1	Ea	MOTOR, SEW, EURODRIVE, 230/460V, 3 HP, BELT PRESS DRIVE, TYPE DF26BHSDT100L24-KS
		MOTOR, GE, 184T-FR, 5 HP, 230/460V, SLUDGE
1	Ea	CONVEYOR, MODEL #5KS184BC205
	_	MOTOR, BALDOR, 215T-FR, 10 HP, 230/460V, PTB AIR
1	Ea	HANDLER DRIVE, MODEL #37F380X954

J32.2.3 Wastewater and Storm Water System Manuals, Drawings, and Records Inventory

 Table 6 lists the manuals, drawings, and records that will be transferred with the system.

TABLE 6

MANUALS, DRAWINGS, AND RECORDS

Wastewater and Storm Water Systems U. S. Army Fort Knox

Qty	ltem	Description	Remarks
3	12 Volumes	Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M Manuals	N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Drawings	N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant As-Built Drawings	Reviewing
1	CD*	Storm Water Drawing (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)	None

* The CD can be requested by contacting Mr. J. R. Cardin, Fort Knox at (502) 624-7914 or by sending an email at "<u>James.Cardin@knox.army.mil</u>", or Mr. Randy Ball at (502) 624-6061, email at "<u>Randy.Ball@knox.army.mil.</u>" The site visit can be setup during May 6 –10, 2002 by contacting Mr. Cardin or Mr. Ball.

J32.3 Specific Service Requirements

Excess Capacity

The wastewater treatment plant currently has excess capacity except during some storm water events. The Contractor may use the excess capacity per paragraph C.4.2. However this excess capacity is reserved for mobilization and must be available to Fort Knox at any time. Full capacity of treatment plant must be maintained in order to meet mobilization requirements.

Pretreatment Program

Successful offeror shall implement and maintain a Pretreatment Plan in accordance with KPDES permit. The U.S. Army Fort Knox currently has a pretreatment program for their wastewater treatment plant and a copy of the program is available for viewing. The objective of the pretreatment program is to prevent violation of the Clean Water Act by preventing the introduction of pollutants into the Wastewater Treatment Plant that could interfere with its operation; and/or prevent the pass-through of pollutants that could cause a violation of the operating permit limitations and/or applicable water quality standards. The Pretreatment Program document, dated 26 November 1996, presents a description of the pretreatment program including discharge limits for pollutants, typical sampling locations and a monitoring plan. Activities associated with the pretreatment program include, but are not limited to, facility monitoring and source identification of prohibited pollutants. Facility monitoring includes facility inspections, wastewater sampling/analysis and wastewater flow measurement. Facility inspections include semi-annual formal inspections and informal inspections as required. Sampling/analysis includes guarterly scheduled sampling/analysis events for each facility and unscheduled random sampling/analysis events as required. Flow from each facility is measured as required to quantify waste streams. Currently, a total of 25 on-base facilities and the City of Muldraugh are being monitored as part of the pretreatment program.

Geographical Information System

The Government shall furnish available drawings and related engineering and property information to the Contractor within sixty (60) days of contract award. Such available drawings of the wastewater and storm water systems may not be comprehensive. Drawings and related property information shall include, but not be limited to, wastewater and storm water systems facilities and distribution lines and related system components. The Contractor shall thereafter incorporate the entire privatized wastewater and storm water systems into an automated Geographical Information System (GIS) compatible with the Government system within six (6) months of receipt of the Government furnished information. GIS system being utilized by Government is GEOSYNC and drawings are in AUTOCAD format. Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment facilities, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, culverts, and storm water pipes shall be included in the GIS system. Information shall include, but not be limited to, sewer and storm water pipe lines sizes, materials, and age, manhole type, materials, age, and invert elevations, lift station pipe sizes, materials, age and invert elevations, valve sizes, materials and age, lift station pump sizes, materials and age, emergency generators information, culvert sizes and materials, and treatment plant information. The Contractor shall maintain "as-built" drawings for all facilities and related system components installed and/or modified and update the Government GIS system within ninety (90) days after installation/modification. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may inspect and copy such drawings and the Contractor shall provide available to the Government.

J32.4 Current Service Arrangement

The U.S. Army currently provides wastewater collection and treatment service for Fort Knox and the City of Muldraugh. Current service agreement with City of Muldraugh shall remain in affect for a period of one year after award. At that time a new agreement may be negotiated. Other treatment services to be provided include treatment of waste from Field Latrines and grey water placed in system at Septic Receiving Station by contractors and units, treatment of Landfill Leachate placed by contractor in Burke Motor Park Manhole, and treatment of cooked grease from dining facilities and soil from car wash placed on drying beds by contractors. The treated wastewater is discharged into Mill Creek under a Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit # KY 0002917.

J32.5 Secondary Metering

There are currently no requirements for secondary metering of wastewater included in this contract. Any future wastewater secondary metering requested by the Government will be IAW C.3, Future Secondary Meters.

J32.6 Monthly Submittals

In addition to the submittal requirements from Clause H.5, the Contractor shall provide the Government monthly submittals for:

1. Invoicing (IAW G.2) for the previous months services. The Contractor's invoice shall be prepared in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer. Monthly invoices shall be submitted to Directorate of Base Operation Support, Engineer and Services Division, Building 1110, Fort Knox, KY 40121.

- 2. Monthly interruption report for the previous month. The Contractor's monthly interruption report shall be prepared in the format presented in Attachment 1.
- 3. System Efficiency Report. If required by Clause C.3 the Contractor shall submit a system efficiency report in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer.

J32.7 Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) Projects

IAW C.3, Utility Service Requirement, only an Infiltration and Inflow Study has been implemented by the Government for managing and monitoring I&I.

Roy F. Weston, Inc. conducted an Infiltration and Inflow Study for the U.S. Army Fort Knox Base in November 1998. The study's scope was to identify sources of infiltration and inflow in the Base's wastewater collection system. Infiltration is defined as water originating from rainfall or groundwater seepage flowing into the wastewater collection system through cracks in pipes and separated pipe joints. Inflow is defined as water being contributed to the wastewater collection system from connected housing sump pumps, storm sewers and roof drains.

For the purpose of the study, the entire base wastewater collection system was divided into ten distinct drainage basins. The study included the inspection of 50 manholes and dry and wet weather flow monitoring throughout the entire wastewater collection system. During the flow monitoring, the flow meters were checked for accuracy and reliability once per day.

Manhole inspection indicated that most manholes had cracked offset rings and some pipes to manhole connections were also cracked. Both of these conditions can result in significant infiltration. The flow monitoring indicated, that all basins except one had no significant I&I sources. One drainage basin exhibited I&I of between 1,500 to 2,000 gpd/idm.

Weston, Inc.'s major recommendations were to repair cracked offset rings and pipe to manhole connections and to investigate the one drainage basin with the highest I&I for the location of pipe cracks and non-wastewater connections. A copy of I & I report will be available for viewing during solicitation process and will be provided to successful offeror.

J32.8 Service Area

IAW Clause C.4, Service Area, the service area is defined as all areas within the installation boundaries. Fort Knox has a total area of approximately 170 square miles. The northern boundary of the installation is the Ohio River and the town of Cupio. On the east, the installation extends to Beech Grove and Lebanon Junction. The south is bounded by highway 313 and Radcliff, while the western boundary is Rock Haven and Red Hill.

J32.9 Off-Installation Sites

There is only one off-installation site, which is the City of Muldraugh. The City is located approximately one (1) mile north of the U.S. Army base and has an approximate population of 1,376. The requirement for sewage services is part of and associated with this scope. The City of Muldraugh maintains the sewer system to the end of the force main.

J32.10 Specific Transition Requirements

IAW Clause C.17, Transition Plan, **Table 7** lists service connections and disconnections required upon transfer, and **Table 8** lists the improvement projects required upon transfer of

the Fort Knox wastewater collection and treatment system. Other transition requirements include development of a modified pretreatment program including reassigning of specific duties and reporting requirements.

TABLE 7

SERVICE CONNECTIONS AND DISCONNECTIONS

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Location

Description

None Identified

TABLE 8

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Project Location Project Description

None Identified

ATTACHMENT J42 Army Easement (Real Estate Office)

TO BE ISSUED BY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY REAL ESTATE OFFICE AND COORDINATED WITH THE CONTRACTING OFFICER REPRESENTATIVE (COR).

ATTACHMENT J43 Army Bill of Sale (Real Estate Office)

TO BE ISSUED BY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND FORT KNOX, KENTUCKY REAL ESTATE OFFICE AND COORDINATED WITH THE CONTRACTING OFFICER REPRESENTATIVE (COR).

FORT KNOX WASTEWATER SND STORM WATER COLLECTION SYSTEM HARDIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #1 CONTRACT SP00600-04-C-8275

ATTACHMENT J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table of Contents

J32 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX WASTEWATER SYSTEM	J1
J32.1 U.S. ARMY FORT KNOX OVERVIEW	J1
J32.2 WASTEWATER AND STORM WATER SYSTEMS (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) DESCRIPTION	J1
J32.3 SPECIFIC SERVICE REQUIREMENTS	J6
J32.4 CURRENT SERVICE ARRANGEMENT	J7
J32.5 SECONDARY METERING	J7
J32.6 MONTHLY SUBMITTALS	J7
J32.7 INFILTRATION AND INFLOW (I&I) PROJECTS	J7
J32.8 SERVICE AREA	J8
J32.9 OFF-INSTALLATION SITES	J8
J32.10 SPECIFIC TRANSITION REQUIREMENTS	J8

List of Tables

Table 1 - Wastewater Collections System Age Distribution	J2
Table 2 - Lift Station Age Distribution	J3
Table 3 - Fixed Inventory	J4
Table 4 - Spare Parts	J.5
Table 5 - Specialized Equipment and Vehicles	J5
Table 6 - Manuals, Drawings, and Records	J6

Table 7 - Service Connections and Disconnections	nections	J9
Table 8 - System Improvement Projects		J9

J32 U.S. Army Fort Knox Wastewater and Storm Water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Section J32 with revisions highlighted in RED replaces the current Section J32 in its entirety Per Amendment 0002 01/14/02. Revisions highlighted in BLUE are Per Amendment 0005 04/26/02. Revisions highlighted in GREEN are Per Amendment 0007 02/09/04.

J32.1 U.S. Army Fort Knox Overview

Located in north central Kentucky, Fort Knox is the home of the U.S. Army Armor Center, the U.S. Army Armor School, and the U.S. Bullion Depository. The 170 square mile post is currently under the command of the U.S. Army Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC).

American soldiers occupied Fort Knox as early as the Civil War. In 1862 the 6th Michigan Infantry constructed the first fortifications in the area. In January 1918, Congress established a field artillery training center that they named Camp Knox after Major General Henry Knox, chief of Artillery for the Continental Army during the American Revolution and later the nation's first Secretary of War. The post was closed as a permanent installation in 1922, but continued to serve until 1932 as a training center for the V Corps, for reserve officer training, Citizens Military Training Camps, and for the National Guard. In 1936 the U.S. Treasury Department began construction of the U.S. Bullion Depository. The Gold Vault was opened in 1937.

On January 1, 1932, Congress designated Camp Knox as a permanent garrison and changed the name to Fort Knox. The Armored Force School and the Armored Force Replacement Center were officially established at Fort Knox October 1, 1940. Today, Fort Knox has an on-post population of nearly 27,000 people and the post serves a total of 163,000 people including over 10,000 soldiers.

J32.2 Wastewater and storm water Systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) Description

J32.2.1 Wastewater System Fixed Equipment Inventory

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater system consists of all appurtenances physically connected to the system from the point of demarcation. Generally, the point of demarcation will be the termination of a building's service line at the collection system including the collection joint. The system may include, but is not limited to, pipelines, lift stations, manholes, septic tanks (delete) and a wastewater treatment plant. The following description and inventory is included to provide the Offeror with a general understanding of the size and configuration of the system. The Offeror shall base the proposal on site inspections, information in the offeror's library, other pertinent information and the following description. Under no circumstances shall the successful Contractor be entitled to any rate adjustment based on the accuracy of the following description and inventory.

J32.2.1.1 Description

Wastewater Collection System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater collection system consists of sewer mains and service connections for disposal. The sewer mains direct sewage from both the base and the City of Muldraugh, Kentucky to a wastewater treatment plant located on the base. The collection system on the base consists of approximately 838,979 922,870 (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04) feet of sewer mains ranging in size from 2" to 36", with 8" being the most common size. There are approximately 1,745 manholes within the base collection system.

The collection system is broken up into four individual classifications that are identified with the letters C, H, M and W followed by two numbers (e.g. C10). Letter C is an abbreviation for Capart Housing, letter H is an abbreviation for other housing, M is an abbreviation for Military and W is an abbreviation for Wherry Housing. The two numbers followed by two zeros represent block numbers (e.g. 1000 Block).

The age of the wastewater collection system ranges from 70 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups with the majority of the collection system being constructed prior to 1940.

Storm Water System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox storm water system consists of, but is not limited to, manholes, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, metal and concrete culverts, open concrete ditches, and various lengths of underground pipes ranging in size from 2 to 72 inches in diameter. Majority, but not all of these components, are shown on storm water drawing attached. See Table 3.1 for inventory of system. The age of the system components range from 50+ years to 5 years and the approximate age of various components is shown in Table 1.1. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table 1 presents a summary of the age distribution.

TABLE 1

Wastewater Collection System Age Distribution Wastewater Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Sewer Main Length in ft	Number of Manholes
< 1950	516,807	1,205
1950 - 1989	304,547	486
1990 - 2000	101,515	54

Lift Stations

The U.S. Army Fort Knox collection system includes a total of twenty (20) lift stations with sixteen (16) containing submersible pumps, three (3) containing dry pit pumps, four (4) containing grinder pumps and one (1) containing a sewage ejector.

The lift stations containing submersible pumps include pumps ranging in size from 2 to 40 hp. Fourteen Eleven (delete) (14) are identified as the following building numbers: 2389A, 2389B, 4015, 6151, 4767,

4990, 6035, 7233, 7238, 7241, 9384, 9101A, 9387 and 5543. The remaining two (2) lift stations are located at the following locations: Brave Rifles, Ammo Storage (delete) and Camp Carlson 9101B.

The lift stations containing dry pit pumps include pumps ranging in size from 10 to 60 hp and are identified as the following building numbers: 4208, 5540 and 7873.

The sewage ejector has a capacity of 50 gpm and is identified as Bldg. 4002. The lift station containing two (2) grinder pumps, with 2 hp motors each, is identified as Bldg. 4760. (delete) Seven (7) lift stations have emergency generators as part of their system. These lift stations are identified as the following building numbers with the size of the generator in parentheses: 4002 (10 KW), 4015 (188 KW), 4208 (256 KW), 5540 (169 KW), 6151 (33 KW), 7873 (100KW), 4767 (33 KW).

The age of the lift stations ranges from 58 years old to 1-year-old and can be divided into three major age groups. **Table 2** presents a summary of the age distribution of the lift station structure. The equipment in the lift station has typically been replaced and is significantly newer than the date listed.

TABLE 2

Lift Station Age Distribution Wastewater Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Number of Lift Stations
< 1950	2
1950 - 1989	10
1990 - 2000	8

Wastewater Treatment System

The U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system consists of one 6 million-gallons-per-day (MGD) wastewater treatment plant and two septic tanks (delete). The wastewater treatment plant is designed for an average wastewater flow of 6 MGD, a maximum daily flow of 14 MGD and a peak hourly (delete) wastewater flow of 18 MGD.

The wastewater treatment plant consists of the following components:

- Preliminary Treatment
 - Two Mechanical Bar Screens
 - Two Vortex Grit Removal System
 - Influent Lift Station
- Septage Receiving Station 10,000 gal capacity
- Two Extended Aeration Oxidation Ditches at 2.55 MGD capacity each with four 75 hp brush surface rotors each
- Four Secondary Clarifiers at 75' diameter and 13' SWD
- Sludge pumping includes six 15 hp return activated sludge pumps and six 5 hp waste activated sludge pumps
- Two Chlorine Contact Basins at 93,750 gal each, with a total of two chlorine gas feeders with two-(delete) Dechlorination Injection System Chambers, one following each chlorination basin with (delete) and a total of two sulfonators
- Two Gravity Sludge Thickeners at 35' diameter and 13' SWD

- Two Aerobic Digesters at 65' by 65' and 17' SWD with three 150 hp Blowers and Coarse Bubble Air Diffusion
- Sludge Dewatering Facility with two Belt Press Systems, 2 m width each, polymer feeds, sludge handling pumps, and conveyor systems
- Non-potable water system capable of supplying between 250 gpm and 500 gpm.
- 17 Sludge Dryng Beds, 63280 SF, with filtrate return pumps, 2' + depth (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04)

This wastewater treatment plant handles flows from both the Base and the City of Muldraugh. Between April 1999 and March 2000, the wastewater treatment plant received an average influent flow of 3.3 MGD and a maximum daily influent flow of 13.8 MGD. In addition, plant personnel indicated that during wet weather, the influent flow into the treatment plant could be as high as 20 MGD.

Two septic tank systems are used on the Base. One is located north of the City of Muldraugh in the Armor Board Area and the other is located in the Ammo Storage Area. (delete)

Emergency Generator will be owned and maintained by Nolin RECC. Generator will be available at all times for emergency backup.

The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds at the WWTP are regulated as Solid Waste Management Units (SWMUs) by the Corrective Action section of our Hazardous Waste Storage Permit (Part B), IAW the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). A RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) has been accomplished. Based on the results of the RFI, more investigation or remediation/monitoring will need to be performed. This will be the responsibility of the Contractor. (delete per amendment 0007 02/09/04) The seventeen (17) sludge drying beds will no longer be required as part of the wastewater contract. Thus any specific references to the sludge drying beds have been deleted form the solicitation (per amendment 0007 02/09/04).

TABLE 1.1Storm Water Collection Age DistributionStorm Water Collection System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Year	Storm Water Pipe (Linear Feet)
<1950	90,000
1950 -1989	298,000
1990 - 2002	18,000

Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.2.1.2 Inventory

Table 3 provides a general listing of the major collection system fixed assets for the U.S. Army Fort Knox wastewater treatment system included in the purchase. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition without any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility.

TABLE 3

Fixed Inventory Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Item	Size	Quantity	Unit	Approximate Year of Construction
Pipe	2"	3,00	Linear Feet	Various
	4"	16,300	Linear Feet	Various
	6"	263,500 250,150*	Linear Feet	Various
	8"	414,000 346,900*	Linear Feet	Various
	10"	52,200 49,629*	Linear Feet	Various
	12"	54,300	Linear Feet	Various
	15"	43,000	Linear Feet	Various
	18"	28,100	Linear Feet	Various
	20"	4,600	Linear Feet	Various
	21"	3,000	Linear Feet	Various
	24"	17,700	Linear Feet	Various
	30"	15,600	Linear Feet	Various
	36"	7,070	Linear Feet	Various
Manholes		1,745	Each	Various
Lift Stations		20	Each	Various
Wastewater Treatment Plant (delete)		1	Each	1995

*The changes to TABLE 3 above are per amendment 0007 02/09/04. 6" pipe is reduced by 13,350 LF from 263,500 to 250,150, 8" pipe is reduced by 67,100 from 414,000 to 346,900, and 10" pipe is reduced by 2,571 from 52,200 to 49,629. Total LF is reduced to 838,979. "Linear feet of wastewater pipes shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity."

TABLE 3.1 Fixed Inventory Storm Water System U.S. Army Fort Knox

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	LINEAR FEET (APP.)	MISC. SIZES
		(<u>UNKNOWN LF)</u>
2	1,904	6" X 12"
4	1,711	16" X 25"
5	1,247	16" X 29"

6	18,862	18" X 29"
8	35,209	20" X 96"
10	8,353	36" X 58"
12	97,424	2' X 2'
14	49	3' X 4'
15	40,788	4' X 4'
16	883	4' X 5'
18	51,289	4' X 6'
20	186	4' X 7'
21	10,560	4' X 8'
22	51	4' X 10'
24	43,367	4' X 12'
27	2,194	5' X 18'
28	477	8' X 8'
30	20,565	8' X 11'

PIPE DIAMETER (INCHES)	<u>LINEAR FEET (APP.)</u>	<u>MISC. SIZES</u> (UNKNOWN LF)
34	756	9.5' X 13'
35	234	10' X 15'
36	10,808	
42	3,632	
48	2,527	
54	832	
60	2,872	
72	6,372	
UNKNOWN DIM.	10,057	
OPEN CONCRETE DITCHES	<u>33,721</u>	
ΤΟΤΑ	L 406,930	

Table 3.1 provides a general listing of the major storm water system fixed assets at Fort Knox. Linear feet of storm water pipe shown are an approximation and are not intended to be an actual quantity. Majority of underground pipes are clay tile, concrete with the latest installed being PVC and culverts are both concrete and corrugated metal. The system will be sold in a "as is, where is" condition in that any warranty, representation, or obligation on the part of Government to make any alterations, repairs, or improvements. Ancillary equipment attached to, and necessary for, operating the system, though not specifically mentioned herein, is considered part of the purchased utility. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.2.2 Wastewater System Non-Fixed Equipment and Specialized Tools Inventory

Table 4 lists other ancillary equipment (spare parts) and **Table 5** lists specialized vehicles and tools included in the purchase. Offerors shall field verify all equipment and tools prior to submitting a offeror bid (delete). Offerors shall make their own determination of the adequacy of all equipment and tools.

The successful Contractor shall provide any and all equipment, vehicles, and tools, whether included in the purchase or not, to maintain a fully operating system under the terms of this contract.

TABLE 4

Spare Parts Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
		The spare parts inventory varies on a day-to-day basis,	
		but is estimated to be worth \$ 64,000.	

TABLE 5

Specialized Equipment and Vehicles Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Wastewater Treatment Plant Laboratory Equipment1EaIncubator – Model #MFU20F3GW1Ea11.8 Refrigerator – Model #TB12SBB1Ea11.8 Refrigerator – Model #TB12SBB1EaTimer – Model #1711EaSteam Sterilizer – Model #800V1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaStill – Wall Mount1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer RodderWastewater Treatment Plant Equipment	Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
1Ea11.8 Refrigerator – Model #TB12SBB1EaDesiccator1EaTimer – Model #1711EaSteam Sterilizer – Model #800V1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Oven – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaStill – Wall Mount1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model #AC001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FR1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sever Rodder			Wastewater Treatment Plant Laboratory Equipment	
1EaDesiccator1EaTimer – Model #1711EaSteam Sterilizer – Model #800V1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaStill – Wall Mount1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Incubator – Model #MFU20F3GW	
1EaTimer – Model #1711EaSteam Sterilizer – Model #800V1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model #XX60000001EaVAC Pump – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	11.8 Refrigerator – Model #TB12SBB	
1EaSteam Sterilizer – Model #800V1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Desiccator	
1EaLab Oven – Model #10201C1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Timer – Model #171	
1EaLab Line – Model #42051EaStill – Wall Mount1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Steam Sterilizer Model #800V	
1EaStill – Wall Mount1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaHodel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Lab Oven – Model #10201C	
1EaWater Bath – Model #5D1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Lab Line – Model #4205	
1EaColony Counter – Model #33251EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Still – Wall Mount	
1EaD.O. Meter – Model 54ARC1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Water Bath – Model #5D	
1EaVAC Pump – Model #XX60000001EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FRWastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Colony Counter – Model #3325	
1EaBalances – Model #AC1002EaISCO Sampler – Model #6700FR Wastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	D.O. Meter – Model 54ARC	
2EaISCO Sampler Model #6700FR Wastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1EaJet Rodder and Vacuum Truck1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	VAC Pump – Model #XX6000000	
Wastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipment1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Ea1Model 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Balances – Model #AC100	
 Ea Jet Rodder and Vacuum Truck Ea Farm Tractor Ea Trash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor Ea Electric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer Ea Model 666 Sewer Rodder 	2	Ea	ISCO Sampler – Model #6700FR	
1EaFarm Tractor1EaTrash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder			Wastewater Treatment Plant Collection System Equipmen	ıt
 Ea Trash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor Ea Electric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer Ea Model 666 Sewer Rodder 	1	Ea	Jet Rodder and Vacuum Truck	
1EaElectric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer1EaModel 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Farm Tractor	
1 Ea Model 666 Sewer Rodder	1	Ea	Trash Pump, 3" Discharge, 5 HP Gas Motor	
	1	Ea	Electric Eel Sewer Machine and Trailer	
Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment	1	Ea	Model 666 Sewer Rodder	
			Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment	
1 Ea Forklift	1	Ea	Forklift	
1 Ea Truck, Light Cushman	1	Ea	Truck, Light Cushman	

1	Ea	Pump, Fairbanks-Morse, W-3 Water, Vertical Turbine, 3-Stage, Model #7M-7000AW
1	Ea	Pump, Johnston – Series JT, 3-Stage Propeller, Beltwash, Model #6AC-3
1	Ea	Pump, FLYGT, Submersible – 35 HP, 2250 GPM, Raw Wastewater, Model #CP-3201X-MT
1	Ea	Pump, FLYGT, Submersible – 5 HP, Dillution Water, Model #CP-3102
1	Ea	Pump, Chlorine Induction - Model SWC 3F
1	Ea	Pump, Sulfur Dioxide Induction – Model SWC 2F
1	Ea	Pump, Submersible, Sewage, Zoeller – 1 HP, 230V, Model #E-284C
1	Ea	Motor, SEW, Eurodrive, 230/460V, 3 HP, Belt Press Drive, Type DF26BHSDT100L24-KS
1	Ea	Motor, GE, 184T-FR, 5 HP, 230/460V, Sludge Conveyor, Model #5KS184BC205
1	Ea	Motor, Baldor, 215T-FR, 10 HP, 230/460V, PTB Air Handler Drive, Model #37F380X954

J32.2.3 Wastewater and Storm Water System Manuals, Drawings, and Records Inventory (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Table 6 lists the manuals, drawings, and records that will be transferred with the system.

TABLE 6

Manuals, Drawings, and Records

Wastewater and Storm Water Systems U. S. Army Fort Knox (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

Qty	Item	Description	Remarks
3	12 Volumes	Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M Manuals	None N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Drawings	None N/A
1	Set	Wastewater Treatment Plant As-Built Drawings	Reviewing
1	CD*	Storm Water Drawing (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)	None

* The CD can be requested by contacting Mr. J. R. Cardin, Fort Knox at (502) 624-7914 or by sending an email at "James.Cardin@knox.army.mil", or Mr. Randy Ball at (502) 624-6061, email at "<u>Randy.Ball@knox.army.mil.</u>" The site visit can be setup during May 6 –10, 2002 by contacting Mr. Cardin or Mr. Ball. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02)

J32.3 Specific Service Requirements

Excess Capacity

The wastewater treatment plant currently has excess capacity except during some storm water events. The Contractor may use the excess capacity per paragraph C.4.2. However this excess capacity is reserved for mobilization and must be available to Fort Knox at any time. Full capacity of treatment plant must be maintained in order to meet mobilization requirements.

Pretreatment Program

Successful offeror shall implement and maintain a Pretreatment Plan in accordance with KPDES permit. The U.S. Army Fort Knox currently has a pretreatment program for their wastewater treatment plant and a copy of the program is available for viewing. The objective of the pretreatment program is to prevent violation of the Clean Water Act by preventing the introduction of pollutants into the Wastewater Treatment Plant that could interfere with its operation; and/or prevent the pass-through of pollutants that could cause a violation of the operating permit limitations and/or applicable water quality standards. The Pretreatment Program document, dated 26 November 1996, presents a description of the pretreatment program including discharge limits for pollutants, typical sampling locations and a monitoring plan. Activities associated with the pretreatment program include, but are not limited to, facility monitoring and source identification of prohibited pollutants. Facility monitoring includes facility inspections, wastewater sampling/analysis and wastewater flow measurement. Facility inspections include semi-annual formal inspections and informal inspections as required. Sampling/analysis includes quarterly scheduled sampling/analysis events for each facility and unscheduled random sampling/analysis events as required. Flow from each facility is measured as required to quantify waste streams. Currently, a total of 25 on-base facilities and the City of Muldraugh are being monitored as part of the pretreatment program.

Geographical Information System

The Government shall furnish available drawings and related engineering and property information to the Contractor within sixty (60) days of contract award. Such available drawings of the wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) may not be comprehensive. Drawings and related property information shall include, but not be limited to, wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) facilities and distribution lines and related system components. The Contractor shall thereafter incorporate the entire privatized wastewater and storm water systems (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) into an automated Geographical Information System (GIS) compatible with the Government system within six (6) months of receipt of the Government furnished information. GIS system being utilized by Government is GEOSYNC and drawings are in AUTOCAD format. Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations and treatment facilities shall be included in the GIS system. (delete) Information on manholes, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment facilities, headwalls, catch basins, curb inlets, culverts, and storm water pipes shall be included in the GIS system. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) Information shall include, but not be limited to, sewer and storm water pipe lines sizes. materials, and age, manhole type, materials, age, and invert elevations, lift station pipe sizes, materials, age and invert elevations, valve sizes, materials and age, lift station pump sizes, materials and age, emergency generators information, culvert sizes and materials, and treatment plant information. (per Amendment 0005 04/26/02) The Contractor shall maintain "as-built" drawings for all facilities and related system components installed and/or modified and update the Government GIS system within ninety (90) days after installation/modification. Upon reasonable request and with reasonable notice, the Government may inspect and copy such drawings and the Contractor shall provide available to the Government.

J32.4 Current Service Arrangement

The U.S. Army currently provides wastewater collection and treatment service for Fort Knox and the City of Muldraugh. Current service agreement with City of Muldraugh shall remain in affect for a period of one year after award. At that time a new agreement may be negotiated. Other treatment services to be provided include treatment of waste from Field Latrines and grey water placed in system at Septic Receiving Station by contractors and units, treatment of Landfill Leachate placed by contractor in Burke Motor Park Manhole, and treatment of cooked grease from dining facilities and soil from car wash placed on drying beds by contractors. The treated wastewater is discharged into Mill Creek under a Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit # KY 0002917.

J32.5 Secondary Metering

There are currently no requirements for secondary metering of wastewater included in this contract. Any future wastewater secondary metering requested by the Government will be IAW C.3, Future Secondary Meters.

J32.6 Monthly Submittals

In addition to the submittal requirements from Clause H.5, the Contractor shall provide the Government monthly submittals for:

- 1. Invoicing (IAW G.2) for the previous months services. The Contractor's invoice shall be prepared in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer. Monthly invoices shall be submitted to Directorate of Base Operation Support, Engineer and Services Division, Building 1110, Fort Knox, KY 40121.
- 2. Monthly interruption report for the previous month. The Contractor's monthly interruption report shall be prepared in the format presented in Attachment 1.
- 3. System Efficiency Report. If required by Clause C.3 the Contractor shall submit a system efficiency report in a format proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the Contracting Officer.

J32.7 Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) Projects

IAW C.3, Utility Service Requirement, only an Infiltration and Inflow Study has been implemented by the Government for managing and monitoring I&I.

Roy F. Weston, Inc. conducted an Infiltration and Inflow Study for the U.S. Army Fort Knox Base in November 1998. The study's scope was to identify sources of infiltration and inflow in the Base's wastewater collection system. Infiltration is defined as water originating from rainfall or groundwater seepage flowing into the wastewater collection system through cracks in pipes and separated pipe joints. Inflow is defined as water being contributed to the wastewater collection system from connected housing sump pumps, storm sewers and roof drains.

For the purpose of the study, the entire base wastewater collection system was divided into ten distinct drainage basins. The study included the inspection of 50 manholes and dry and wet weather flow monitoring throughout the entire wastewater collection system. During the flow monitoring, the flow meters were checked for accuracy and reliability once per day.

Manhole inspection indicated that most manholes had cracked offset rings and some pipe to manhole connections were also cracked. Both of these conditions can result in significant infiltration. The flow

monitoring indicated, that all basins except one had no significant I&I sources. One drainage basin exhibited I&I of between 1,500 to 2,000 gpd/idm.

Weston, Inc.'s major recommendations were to repair cracked offset rings and pipe to manhole connections and to investigate the one drainage basin with the highest I&I for the location of pipe cracks and non-wastewater connections. A copy of I & I report will be available for viewing during solicitation process and will be provided to successful offeror.

J32.8 Service Area

IAW Clause C.4, Service Area, the service area is defined as all areas within the installation boundaries. Fort Knox has a total area of approximately about (delete) 170 square miles. The northern boundary of the installation is the Ohio River and the town of Cupio. On the east west (delete), the installation extends to Beech Grove and Lebanon Junction. The south is bounded by highway 313 and Radcliff, while the western eastern (delete) boundary is Rock Haven and Red Hill.

J32.9 Off-Installation Sites

There is only one off-installation site, which is the City of Muldraugh. The City is located approximately one (1) mile north of the U.S. Army base and has an approximate total-(delete) population of 1,376. The requirement for sewage services is part of and associated with this scope. The City of Muldraugh maintains the sewer system to the end of the force main.

J32.10 Specific Transition Requirements

IAW Clause C.17, Transition Plan, **Table 7** lists service connections and disconnections required upon transfer, and **Table 8** lists the improvement projects required upon transfer of the Fort Knox wastewater collection and treatment system. Other transition requirements include development of a modified pretreatment program including reassigning of specific duties and reporting requirements.

TABLE 7

Service Connections and Disconnections Wastewater System U.S. Army Fort Knox

Location	Description	
None Identified		
TABLE 8		·····
System Improvement	Projects	
Wastewater System U	5	
Project Location	Project Description	
None Identified		·······